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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE 6 H 30 Hik/NEH

Six months ended 30 June sAEf
S 2021 4 2020 4 (%)
Results ARWTIE CREFER) | ARBTIL CRE®ER) Change
2021 2020 (%)
RMB'000 (Unaudited) RMB'000 (Unaudited)
s
B%[&)\ 1,993,014 1,860,759 7.11
Operating revenue
1) R 4
AT 34,530 41,746 -17.28
Total profit
550 B 7 B D I SRR R
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of 25,961 30,873 -15.91
parent company
EA R AR R
\ TEF
(MR ICS7) 0.2404 0.2859 15.91
Basic and diluted earnings per share
(expressed in RMB per share)
220214 6 A 30 H #2020 412 A 31 H
WA R ANRBETIT CREER) ARWBTIC RER) | %8 (%)
Financial Position As at 30 June 2021 As a 31 December 2020 Change(%)
RMB'000 (Unaudited) RMB'000 (Audited)
4
REE 2,753,721 2,799,403 -1.63
Total assets
HeE
o 2,246,810 2,296,854 -2.18
Total liabilities
" Sz
kﬁ@ﬁﬂ 506,910 502,549 0.87
Total equity
FRFEE (UERARKEITIIR)
Net assets per share (expressed in RMB per 4.6936 4.6532 0.87

share)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

* DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Yao Chuanglong

Zheng Yuyan

Lin Zhixiong

Non-executive Director

Li Weisheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Wan Chi Wai Anthony

Zhou Tao

Guan Jian (also known as Guan Suzhe)

* SUPERVISORS
Zhang Ling

Zheng Xiyue

Lin Zhijie

* COMPANY SECRETARY

Lin Zhixiong

* AUDIT COMMITTEE

Wan Chi Wai Anthony (Chairman)
Zhou Tao

Guan Jian (also known as Guan Suzhe)

* NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Zhou Tao (Chairman)
Yao Chuanglong

Guan Jian (also known as Guan Suzhe)

* REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Zhou Tao (Chairman)
Wan Chi Wai Anthony
Lin Zhixiong

* RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Yao Chuanglong (Chairman)

Lin Zhixiong

‘Wan Chi Wai Anthony
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* STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Yao Chuanglong (Chairman)
Zheng Yuyan
Zhou Tao

* AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Zheng Yuyan
Lin Zhixiong

* AUDITOR

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)

* LEGAL ADVISERS

Chungs Lawyers in association with DeHeng Law Offices
(as to Hong Kong laws)
Shu Jin Law Firm (as to PRC laws)

* REGISTERED OFFICE AND HEADQUARTERS
No. 235, Song Shan North Road, Longhu District,

Shantou City, Guangdong Province, PRC

* PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen's Road
East,Wanchai, Hong Kong

* PRINCIPAL BANKS
China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd. (Shantou Branch)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (Shantou Branch)

* H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

* COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chmyy.com

* STOCK CODE
2289.HK
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

* INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Under the combined and interactive effects of new medical reform
policies including the “Healthy China” initiative, “Internet+
Healthcare” , increased adoption of centralised procurement, and
the introduction of medical insurance payment fund, the ecology of
pharmaceutical distribution industry will be reshaped and experiences
high-quality development through further empowerment from new
technologies and new drivers in the era of big data and “Internet+
Pharmaceutical Distribution” . Meanwhile, restricted by stronger
supervision and policies, national and regional pharmaceutical
wholesalers expand their market coverage by means of merger and
acquisition, reorganisation, and alliance between powerful enterprises,
leading to an increasing market concentration in the pharmaceutical
distribution industry.
Gradually improving medical insurance system and further
liberalising the pharmaceutical distribution market
According to the Guideline on Establishing and Improving a General
Support Mechanism for Covering Outpatient Medical Bills under
the Basic Medical Insurance for Urban Employees* ( { [ 7% &t 37
e 220 TR A B ROR PR T 55 4 O PR I A R BRI P B B ) (the
“Guideline” ) issued by the General Office of the State Council on
22 April 2021, gradual steps shall be taken towards reimbursing the
general outpatient bills for frequently occurring and common diseases
through unified accounts; the pooled account for general outpatient
bills shall cover all the insured people by the medical insurance for
employees; the settlement and dispensing of prescriptions shall be
supported in designated retail drugstores. The Guideline further allows
the insured employees and their spouses, parents, and children to use
the personal medical insurance accounts of insured employees for
medical bills, as well as for purchasing medical devices, medicines,
and medical consumables at designated retail drugstores. Thus, not
only the insured employees, but also their immediate family members
are insured by the medical insurance system. The employees' families
are better insured under the medical insurance system, leading to a

higher level of social welfare.
- 004 -
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On 10 May 2021, the National Healthcare Security Administration
and the National Health Commission issued the Guiding Opinion on
Improving the Dual-channel Management Mechanism of Drugs in
the National Medical Insurance Negotiations* ( € [#fl i3 HE 37 52 % [
RERHHIEET TEE ) EPEH ARSI L) ). For the first
time, the designated retail drugstores are nationally included in the
medical insurance pharmaceutical supply guarantee scope, and are
subject to the same payment policies with the same with the medical
institutions. This shows that the supply guarantee of negotiated drugs
is diversified and the pharmaceutical distribution market is further
liberalised.

A new competitive pattern reshaped in the pharmaceutical
distribution industry when the distribution service becomes
increasingly important

During the COVID-19 pandemic ( the “pandemic” or “COVID-19
pandemic” ) period, it is crucial to secure the transportation of
pandemic prevention drugs and materials. Pharmaceutical distribution
enterprises utilise the nationwide sales channels to maximise the
integration and allocation of market resources, providing medical
materials for pandemic prevention and control. By bridging
pharmaceutical companies or warehouses storing anti-virus supplies
and the virus-hit areas, pharmaceutical distributors have played
an important part in supporting the fight against the pandemic and
ensuring stability amid the COVID-19 pandemic and strengthened
their role in the public health system, fully displaying the industry's
value and social responsibility.

In April 2021, the Bidding and Procurement Department of the
National Healthcare Security Administration held a workshop for
pharmaceutical distribution enterprises, on deepening the reform
for centralised and volume-based procurement of medicines and
medical consumables, pharmaceutical distribution links and supply
guarantee capacity. The workshop emphasised that all participants
should fully understand the key role of distribution service in the
reform of centralised and volume-based procurement of medicines
and medical consumables, thoroughly study the development trend
of distribution service in the normal promotion of centralised and
volume-based procurement, and allow distribution enterprises to play

a comprehensive role in the medicine supply guarantee.
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Driven by the Two-Invoice System and national centralised
procurement policies, the ecology of the whole industry is
transforming itself at a fast speed, with a new picture in channels
and distribution. As the distribution service provided by traditional
pharmaceutical distribution enterprises is increasingly important, the
big distribution enterprises have more powers and opportunities to
obtain the right of purchase and distribution.

Business transformation of pharmaceutical companies and
distributors driven by the changes in the pharmaceutical market to
promote the development of non-bidding market and third-party
logistics business

With the implementation of “Control on Medical Insurance Fee
(BRI #E), centralised medicine procurement directly reduces
drug prices and also narrows the profit margin across the whole
value chain of pharmaceutical products. The operating pressure
on pharmaceutical distribution has brought about a change in the
business model of the pharmaceutical industry. The change in the
medication of public medical organisations has further reduced
the profit of industrial enterprises in the pharmaceutical sector.
Meanwhile, the advancement of the tiered diagnosis and treatment
system has come with the accelerated expansion of the end market
to county areas, expanding the share in the retail end market. The
transformation of business model has become an inevitable result
of the shift in role of distributors which focus on public hospital
businesses from “distribution” to “delivery” and the need to face
the competitions of new third-party logistics service providers. The
products that did not award tenders in centralised procurement will
turn to the pharmaceutical retail market and increase the investment
and promotion in the retail market, pharmaceutical distributors with
a solid retailer base will be increasingly favored by pharmaceutical
companies to strengthen their advantage in market expansion.

In the field of pharmaceutical logistics, cloud computing, big data
and Internet of Things ( “IoT” ) technology have been widely used
as support, and the integration of “logistics, information flow and
capital flow” has been promoted through the integration of resources
of upstream and downstream links of the supply chain, so as to
establish a diversified and collaborative pharmaceutical supply chain

system. National and regional pharmaceutical distribution companies

- 006 -
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are increasingly focused on transforming into pharmaceutical supply
chain solution service providers, and gradually set up a full-chain
distribution system from pharmaceutical manufacturers to patients
through self-operated logistics service providers or cooperation
with third-party social logistics service providers. Pharmaceutical
distribution enterprises will accelerate the expansion of third-party
logistics business, and leverage the advantages of their logistics
network to provide pharmaceutical manufacturers with nationwide
and regional third-party pharmaceutical logistics services with
synergic storage effect.

Total national health expenditures are on a rise, retail pharmacies
are expanding their shares in the end market

Total national health expenditures are rising year after year,
accounting for 7.1% of GDP in 2020. There is still big growth
potential.

According to the data of MENET, in 2020, the pharmaceutical sales
in the six major markets of the three major terminals amounted to
RMB1,643.7 billion, representing a decrease of 8.5% compared
to 2019, of which, suffering the least from the pandemic, the retail
pharmacy stores recovered faster. The retail pharmacy stores terminal
recorded a growth rate of 3.2% in sales revenue with a market
share of 26.3%, representing an increase of 2.9 percentage points as
compared to 2019.

Sales rebounded along with an increasing concentration ratio in
the pharmaceutical distribution enterprises

Due to the outstanding performance of pharmaceutical distribution
enterprises, the whole industry's sales growth rebounded from -8.08%
in the first quarter to 2.4% in the whole year. The main business
income of top 100 pharmaceutical distribution enterprises (the "Top
100") in 2020 had a year-on-year growth of 2.5%. The Top 100
accounted for 73.7% of national pharmaceutical market and saw a
year-on-year increase of 0.4 percentage point.

Internet healthcare rose rapidly, and the policy allowing online
sales of prescription drugs came into effect

During the fight against the COVID-19 pandemic, Internet healthcare
provided a more convenient and safer access to medical resources than
the traditional route of visiting hospital, while reducing the number

of people gathering in one place. The pandemic provided a good
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opportunity for the quick growth of the Internet healthcare sector,
and also accelerated the process of the ordinary people becoming
aware of online consultancy, Internet hospitals and online pharmacies.
Along with the advancement of technologies including cloud
computing, big data, and artificial intelligence (Al), and supported by
favorable policies constantly issued by the country, the downstream
pharmaceutical retailers have stronger expansion power and wider
development space in the era of “Internet+ Healthcare” . According
to the statistics, the retail sales of drugs reached RMB 431.6
billion (including hospitals, pharmacy stores, and primary medical
institutions) in 2020, increasing by RMB 24.4 billion or 6% over last
year. And, the online sales of drugs arrived at RMB 159.3 billion,
increasing by RMB 59.1 billion or 59% over last year. The absolute
growth of online sales was about 2.4 times of that of offline sales.
In March 2021, the Fourth Session of the 13th National People's
Congress approved the Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan (2021-
2025) for National Economic and Social Development, and the Long-
Range Objectives Through the Year 2035* ( {Hr3E \ RALFIRE R
AQTAN A B R S T DU LA IR 2035 4E i H R ) )
submitted by the State Council. In the section of improving national
medical insurance system, the Internet healthcare services which meet
the conditions should be included in the medical insurance coverage,
and the settlement of hospitalisation expenses by people in places
away from their hometowns should be materialised. The Opinions
of the General Office of the State Council on Supporting Efforts to
Ensure Stability on Six Fronts and Maintain Security in Six Areas and
Further Promoting the Reform of Simplification and Decentralisation
issued by the General Office of the State Council* (B AR 75F&
AR E—S e TRCEIR) SRR IR R) ) in April
2021 makes clear that the prescription drugs not under the national
special control can be sold online on the premise that the source of
the electronic prescription is authentic and reliable.
The new-generation information and communication technology
network has facilitated the deep connection of supply and demand sides,
leading to a closed loop in the medical industry. The gradual relaxation
of restrictions on Internet healthcare and prescription pharmacy outflow
will significantly promote the expansion of non-bidding market and the

transformation and updating of pharmaceutical distribution industry.
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Whole life cycle health management model to comprehensively
promote the “Healthy China”

The Healthy China 2030 Planning Outline* (  T#REr-PE 2030, A
% ) ) published in 2016 marked the elevation of the full life
cycle health concept to the national strategic level for the first
time. In 2020, China further emphasises that the concept of health
management throughout the full life cycle should be implemented
throughout the city planning, construction and management of every
part in the whole process. This health management model will create
a high quality, highly efficient and high-growth healthcare industry
which meets the development needs of the society. China's 14th Five-
Year Plan (2021-25) proposes to exhaustively advance the “Healthy
China” initiative, put the protection of people's health in a strategic
position for prioritised development, and provide people with a full
range of whole cycle health services.

Proceeding from the whole set of wide-ranging and social influential
factors on health, the whole life cycle health management performs
continuous health management and provides relevant services at
different stages of the mankind with a focus on their life cycle
for the purpose of integrated governance over those factors. The
increasing demand of the public for health and the gradually
improved health spending awareness of the residents have come
with the exploration into the whole life cycle management model of
drugs. Fully leveraging on new technologies such as Internet-based
medical care and big data, this endeavor causes the medical service
system to provide all the people with a full package of medical
solutions integrating prevention, treatment, rehabilitation and health
management in a bid to advance the pharmaceutical industry's healthy
development and the volume expansion of the end market.

Sources of the above information: data of National Medical Products
Administration Southern Medical Economic Research Institute;
MENET; National Statistical Bulletin on the Development of Health
Industry in 2020 ( (2020 F R F T F (5 F B RF 2R );
Annual Report on China's Pharmaceutical Distribution Industry (2020)
( (HhEIZ S BT TR B ) (2020)) .
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* BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal business of Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (the
“Company” or “we”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
is pharmaceutical distribution in the PRC, with most of our operating
revenue derived from pharmaceutical distribution. We procure
pharmaceutical products from pharmaceutical manufacturers and
distributor suppliers and sell the products to distributor customers,
retail pharmacy stores, hospitals, clinics, health centres and others.
We followed the operation target set, and continued to explore
Guangdong market in depth and radiating to surrounding areas, with
a focus on developing the business with retail end-customers. As at
30 June 2021, our distribution network covered 10,639 customers,
among which 619 were distributors, 6,634 were retail pharmacy
stores and 3,386 were hospitals, clinics, health centres and others,
representing an increase of 2,265 in the number of customers,
including the increase of 55 distributors, the increase of 1,032 retail
pharmacy stores, and the increase of 1,178 hospitals, clinics, health
centres and others compared to the corresponding period of last year.
In order to meet the different needs of customers and enhance
customer adhesion, we strengthened cooperation with well-known
domestic and overseas manufacturers, and expanded the variety and
scale of first-level distribution products; continued to optimise product
structure by introducing marketable, high-quality products with high
profit margin to enrich product categories. As at 30 June 2021,we
had a total of 1,007 suppliers, of which 614 were pharmaceutical
manufacturers and 393 were distributor suppliers, representing an
increase of 35 suppliers compared to the corresponding period of last
year. As at 30 June 2021, we distributed 11,841 types of products,
representing an increase of 2,220 types of products compared to the

corresponding period of last year.
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Official operation of Shenzhen subsidiary will increase market
share in Shenzhen

The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary Shenzhen Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ( “Shenzhen Charmacy” ) officially
operated in June 2021. After its official operation, Shenzhen
Charmacy will further refine the distribution network in Shenzhen and
surrounding areas, and proactively look for distribution opportunities
in Shenzhen to provide terminal clients in Shenzhen with better
product portfolios more suitable for local market demand and with
more careful and thoughtful services. In this way, our market share
in Shenzhen will increase. It's advantageous for the Company
in contributing to the advancement of the strategy “Intensive
Engagement in Guangdong Province and Extensive Coverage across
Surrounding Areas” , and raising the Company's revenue and elevate
the Company's status in the whole market of South China.
Increasingly greater advantages of Guangdong Pharmaceutical
Sorting and Distribution Center based on the service capacity of
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area

In the second half of 2020, Charmacy (Guangzhou) Pharmaceutical
Sorting and Distribution Center ( Al 35853 ( BN ) B &5 BRAC
3% H1 0 ) was officially launched, As a warehouse in the centre of
Pearl River Delta, it has a gross floor area of 38,489m? and a storage
area of 32,155m?, which greatly enhanced the Group's warchousing

capacity and market competitiveness in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
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Macao Greater Bay Area. The existing logistics base of the Company
in Guangdong can store approximately 300,000 pieces of goods,
and can fully meet the storage demand for the rapid growth of drug
categories and quantity. By adopting advanced logistics solutions
such as Automatic Storage and Retrieval System (AS/RS), Warehouse
Control System (WCS) and Pick-to-Light (PTL) system, which,
when combined with the Group's existing SAP system, the Group
has significantly improved its integrated and intelligent logistics
management. Meanwhile, based on more professional and convenient
third-party logistics service provided to the upstream suppliers and
downstream clients, the expansion of the third-party logistics business
of the Company can be promoted, and the Company's profitability be
boosted.

* PROSPECTS

With the mission of creating a healthy, beautiful life firmly in mind,
we will uphold the business philosophy of operating honestly, creating
benefits for the others and the general public and achieving win-
win outcomes through cooperation, follow the development strategy
of focusing on “Intensive Engagement in Guangdong Province
and Extensive Coverage across Surrounding Areas” , and commit
ourselves to becoming the most competitive health and medical
service provider in China. The Company's development strategy and
long-term business objectives did not change from last period.

2021 is the starting year of the 14th Five-Year Plan in China. It will
also mark a turn in the changing pharmaceutical market landscape in
the PRC. The pharmaceutical distribution industry will have a new
development opportunity when China accelerates the establishment
of a dual circulation development pattern in which domestic and
foreign markets reinforcing each other with the domestic market as
the mainstay. The in-depth promotion of reform of medical care,
medical insurance and pharmaceutical industry has speeded up the
implementation of Healthy China Strategy. The medical reform
represented by Two-Invoice System Regulation and centralised
procurement in large quantities lead to cost increase, profit decrease,
and product structure adjustment in distribution enterprises which
cover the bidding market and bring up opportunities to the third-party
logistics service under the situation of higher market concentration

and greater product variety advantages. The medical reform which
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focuses on separation of medical care and pharmacy and hierarchical
medical system squeezes the business scale of bidding market, but
bring up opportunities for retail and primary diagnosis market.

In the long run, China's economy has both tenacity and growth
potential, and the trend of steady progress will not change. Moreover,
the non-tender market will progressively raise its share alongside
the advancement of the medical reform, the government's increasing
inputs into healthcare, the acceleration of aging and the enhancement
of people's health awareness. This will contribute to the long-term
growth of business. In such a context, we need to secure an edge in
competition, positively grasp the policy opportunities and market
opportunities to constantly promote market network development
and service improvement, enhance fine management, achieve a high-
quality growth and keep a leading place in the competition.

We will strengthen risk management, improve business quality, seize
the opportunities arising from the expansion of the primary medical
market, adhere to the market strategy of “Intensive Engagement in
Guangdong Province and Extensive Coverage across Surrounding
Areas” , and build a pharmaceutical retail terminal network with full
coverage on Guangdong Province and surrounding areas. We will
further construct the regional pharmaceutical distribution centers
and constantly expand and develop the distribution networks in all
areas to fully achieve a dense coverage of sales, service, and logistics
network in Guangdong and surrounding areas.

We will grasp the opportunity that the regulations including Internet+
Healthcare and hierarchical medical system are gradually implemented
in the expansion of primary medical market, to positively develop the
feasible promotion measures for Internet + Healthcare and constantly
upgrade and develop the functions and applications of e-commerce
platform. Combining with multi-dimensional and comprehensive
marketing and operation, we will speed up the product transfer in
supply chain with a higher efficiency and benefit more clients with
excellent services and suitable tools. We will positively promote
standardised, streamlined, and intelligent pharmaceutical distribution
and delivery service and constantly improve our service ability to
efficiently achieve operation result with a low cost.

We will search for long-term strategic cooperation with pharmaceutical

producers and focus on strengthening our cooperation with major
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prescription drug manufacturers to capture more growth opportunities
in non-tendering market products, diversify our product portfolios
and cement the strength of our products. What's more, using the
pharmaceutical retail terminal network resources and data of the
Group, we will provide upstream suppliers with across-the-board
brand promotions and product launch programs.

In alignment with the trends of simplified supply chains and
fragmented order needs of end users, we will utilise the Company's
automated, intelligent and IoT technologies to actively raise the
efficiency of dismounting and sorting. We will continue to strengthen
the building of modern and professional pharmaceutical logistics
capabilities, actively explore the application of intelligent logistics
technologies, integrate transportation resources to ramp up delivery
service capabilities, optimise the multi-warehouse network layout
adopting integrated operation in Guangdong Province, and implement
refined management of logistics costs. We will leverage on its strong
logistic and warehousing capabilities, the Group's warehousing and
sorting scale will be expanded, and multi-warehouse collaboration by
integrating pharmaceutical warehousing and transportation resources
will be attained, A more reasonable pharmaceutical logistics network
arrangement in which information of the whole the warehousing
and transportation process is traceable guarantees the more secure,
efficient, and convenient distribution, to further unleash our advantages
in customers, products, management and services and better expand
the terminal distribution network. At the same time, we will actively
expand the third-party pharmaceutical logistics business to enhance
storage utilisation rate, increase transportation efficiency, leverage on
our own logistics network advantages to provide upstream suppliers
and downstream customers with warehousing and third-party logistics
services, so as to enhance the Group's market competitiveness and
profitability.

We will continue to tap into the growth potential of the pharmaceutical
non-tender market, accelerate the duplication of the mature non-
tender pharmaceutical market operation model, strive to elevate the
operating efficiency of our pharmaceutical supply chain, optimise the
portfolio of pharmaceutical products and customer service experience,
and reduce the cost of pharmaceutical distribution, striving to become
the most competitive service provider in the medical and healthcare

industry in China.
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* [ B Il * FINANCIAL REVIEW
FEE RPN Operating revenue
BE 6 A 30 HIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June
IiH 2021 4 2020 4§
Items ARWTIT CREER) ARWETIC CREER)
2021 2020
RMB'000 (Unaudited) RMB'000 (Unaudited)
5%
EERE 1,978,106 1,847,726
Principal Business
H
,J’@%i’% 14,908 13,034
Other Business
e
E¥L&)\ 1,993,014 1,860,759
Operating Revenue

AR B 2021 4F 6 A 30 H 73 fH
FAREERA R AR 1,993.01 HH

JC, TRRLEREAREMN 7.11%.,

The operating revenue of the Group for the six months ended 30 June

2021 was RMB1,993.01 million, representing an increase of 7.11%

over the corresponding period of last year.

BE 6 A 30 HIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June
& PR 2021 4% 2020 4
Customer Type ARBTIE OREER AREETIT CREEERD
2021 2020

RMB'000 (Unaudited) RMB'000 (Unaudited)
ﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁ 908,768 887,648
Distributors
g A 3%
BRI 997,840 906,740
Retail Pharmacy Stores
BRBE, WP, A R A
Hospitals, Clinics, Health Centres And Others 71)498 53’338
EERBHA o , 1,978,106 1,847,726
Revenue From Principal Business
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During the six months ended 30 June 2021, our revenue from
principal business was derived from product sales to (i) distributor
customers; (ii) retail pharmacy stores; and (iii) hospitals, clinics,
health centres and others. During the six months ended 30 June 2021,
over 96% of our revenue from principal business was derived from

distributor customers and retail pharmacy stores.

Our operating revenue increased by 7.11% over the corresponding
period of 2020, mainly because of the Group's strategy of introducing
new products contributed of an aggregate of RMB148.05 million to
the Company's revenue base.

Operating cost, gross profit and gross profit margin

The operating cost of the Group increased by 6.87% to RMB1,857.97
million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from RMB1,738.49
million for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The growth of

operating costs was at par with that of revenue.

The gross profit of the Group increased by 10.45% to RMB135.05
million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from RMB122.27
million for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The gross profit
margin of the Group increased to 6.78% for the six months ended 30
June 2021 from 6.57% for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The
main reason lies in the Company's active adjustment of product mix
by replacing part of products with low gross profit margin with those

with high gross profit margin.

Selling expenses

The selling expenses of the Group increased by 28.66% to RMB52.28
million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from RMB40.64
million for the six months ended 30 June 2020. Main reasons
include: (i) corresponding depreciation of fixed assets increased
by RMB3.88 million following the completion of the construction
of Guangzhou Drug Sorting and Delivery Centre and the use of
supportive logistics equipment; (ii) payroll of marketing personnel
and logistics personnel increased by RMB2.33 million because of the
growth of those personnel and their performance; (iii) freight rose by

RMB1.92 million as the number of customers in the end markets in
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Huizhou and Dongguan increased in the first half year of 2021 and
the Company did not enjoy the policy of highway tolls exemption
amid the pandemic outbreak in the first half year of 2020; and (iv)
social insurance payment increased by RMB1.51 million because the
preferential policy that the payment of social insurance for employees
by large enterprises was halved, and that by small enterprises was

exempted expired this period and the headcount increased.

Management expenses

The management expenses of the Group increased by 14.96% to
RMB18.99 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from
RMB16.52 million for the six months ended 30 June 2020. This is
mainly owing to the increase of headcount of Huizhou Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Charmacy, and the increase
of payroll by RMB1.84 million following the expiration of the
preferential policy that the payment of social insurance for employees
by large enterprises was halved, and that by small enterprises was
exempted this period.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by 42.38% to RMB21.80
million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from RMB15.31
million for the six months ended 30 June 2020.The main reasons
include: (i) capitalisation of the interest on the loan granted to the
Guangzhou Drug Sorting and Delivery Centre project stopped
following the completion of the project construction, and the
Company had to make interest payment, leading to an increase of
interest expense by RMB3.86 million; and (ii) discount interest
increased by RMB1.83 million.

Non-operating revenue

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, non-operating revenue
amounted to RMB0.07 million, representing a decrease of 92.80% as
compared with the non-operating revenue of RMB0.96 million for
the six months ended 30 June 2020. The big decline is mainly due
to a one-off subsidy of RMB0.55 million received by Guangdong
Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. for work and production
resumption after the suspension of business amid the COVID-19

pandemic.
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Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group decreased by 21.19% to
RMB&8.57 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from
RMB10.87 million for the six months ended 30 June 2020, and the
current income tax expenses were recognized and the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities were adjusted according to the accounting
standards.

Net profit

The net profit of the Group decreased by 15.91% to RMB25.96
million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from RMB30.87
million for the six months ended 30 June 2020. In particular, the net
profit attributable to the shareholders of parent company decreased
by 15.91% to RMB25.96 million for the six months ended 30 June
2021 from RMB30.87 million for the six months ended 30 June 2020.
The increase of depreciation expenses after Guangzhou Drug Sorting
and Delivery Centre became a fixed asset and the growth of financial
expenses following the stop of capitalisation of interest on the project
loan caused the increase of total expenses to exceed that of gross

profit.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 30 June 2021, the cash and bank deposits of the Group
amounted to RMB35.41 million, while the cash and bank deposits
amounted to RMB113.77 million as at 31 December 2020.

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
net current assets of RMB91.95 million and RMB89.32 million,
respectively. As at 30 June 2021, the current ratio (based on the
calculation of current assets divided by current liabilities) of the

Group was 1.04 (2020: 1.04).

The bank borrowings of the Group as at 30 June 2021 were
RMB673.10 million (short-term borrowings: RMB538.65 million,
long-term borrowings: RMB134.45 million, including long-term
borrowings due within one year: RMB31.79 million). All the bank
borrowings were provided by the banks within the PRC, which bear
fixed interest rates. The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is

presented in RMB, and is approximate to the fair value. The Group
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did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes or did not
have any existing borrowings and/or other hedging instruments for
hedging net foreign currency investments.

Bill receivables and trade receivables

As at 30 June 2021, the Group's bills receivables and trade receivables
amounted to RMB762.98 million, representing an increase of
RMB24.79 million compared to those as at 31 December 2020. This
was mainly due to an increase in operating income of RMB132.25

million over last period.

Bills payables and trade payables

As at 30 June 2021, the Group's bill payables and trade payables
amounted to RMB1,467.64 million, representing a decrease of
RMB40.79 million compared to those as at 31 December 2020. This
was mainly due to a decrease in the settlement of loans paid using

bank acceptance bills.

Treasury policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management strategy in
executing its treasury policy. Thus, a sound liquidity position was
able to be maintained throughout the period under review. The Group
continues to assess its customers' credit and financial positions so as
to minimise credit risks. In order to control liquidity risks, the Board
of Directors (the “Board” ) would closely monitor the liquidity
position of the Group to ensure that its assets, liabilities and other
flow structure committed by the Group would satisfy the funding
needs from time to time.

Foreign currency exchange risk

The transactions of the Group are denominated in RMB, and most
of the assets and all liabilities are denominated in RMB. The foreign
exchange risk that the Group has to bear is extremely low. For the
six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging the foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group had no bank

borrowings which bear interest at floating rate.
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Capital commitment
Set out below is the Group's gearing ratios as at 30 June 2021 and 31

December 2020, respectively:

202146 H30 H
30 June 2021

2020412 A 31 H
31 December 2020

EARMIER

Gearing ratio

55.71% 53.25%
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Note: Gearing ratio is equal to net liabilities divided by aggregate
capital as at the end of the period.Net liabilities represent total
borrowings deducted by cash and cash equivalents; and aggregate
capital is the sum of net liabilities and total equity.

Capital commitment

As at 30 June 2021, the Group's capital commitment amounted to

RMBO million (31 December 2020: RMBO million).

Employees' information

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had a total of 842 employees (including
executive Directors), representing an increase of 52 employees
compared with the number of employees as at 30 June 2020. The total
staff cost (including emoluments of directors and supervisors) was
RMB37.67 million, as compared to RMB31.96 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2020. The emoluments were determined with
reference to market practice and the performance, qualification and
experience of individual employees.

The employees are entitled to bonus based on the results of the Group
and individual performance other than basic salaries. Other staff
benefits include other related insurances set up for the employees
employed by the Group in accordance with the rules and regulations
under Labor Law, Employment Contract Law, Social Insurance Law
of the PRC and the current regulatory requirements of the PRC.

The salaries and benefits of the employees of the Group are kept at
a competitive level. The employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of the Group's salary and
bonus system, which is reviewed annually.

The Group focuses on the career development of its employees. We
provide the employees with internal training and the opportunity of

external training on a regular basis, to support and encourage them to
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continuously study and to improve their own integrated qualities and
business capability.

Material investments held, acquisitions and disposals held

The Group had no material investment, acquisition or disposal during
the six months ended 30 June 2021.

Future plans related to material investments and capital assets
Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 2
December 2015, the Group has no other future plans related to
material investments and capital assets.

Material acquisitions and disposals related to subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

During the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group had no material
acquisitions and disposals related to subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

Pledge of assets

As at 30 June 2021, the Group was granted a credit limit of
RMBI1,428.07 million by various banks, while the Group's utilised
banking facilities totaled RMB1,114.02 million, which were secured
by (i) property, plant and equipment held by the Group with a
carrying amount of RMB278.40 million as at 30 June 2021; (ii) land
use rights held by the Group with a carrying amount of RMB133.31
million as at 30 June 2021; and (iii) the Group's inventories with a

carrying amount of RMB350.00 million as at 30 June 2021.

Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2020: Nil).

Significant event after the reporting period

As at the date of this report, the Group had no significant events after
the reporting period.

* INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 (interim dividend of 2020:
Nil).
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OTHER INFORMATION

* CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company had been complying with the code provisions (the
“Code Provisions” ) set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules” ) for the six
months ended 30 June 2021, save for the deviation as stated below:
Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Yao Chuanglong is
our chief executive officer, and he also performs as the chairman of
our Board as he has considerable experience in the pharmaceutical
distribution industry. Our Board believes that vesting the roles of
both the chairman of our Board and the chief executive officer in the
same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within
our Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning of our Group. The Company considers that the balance
of power and authority under the present arrangement will not be
impaired and this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Company will
continue to review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer when it is appropriate and suitable

by taking into account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.
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*MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code” ) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct in dealings
with the Company's securities for the Directors and supervisors of the
Company. Having made enquiries with all Directors and supervisors
of the Company, the Company confirmed that all Directors and
supervisors have complied with the required standard as set out in the

Model Code for the six months ended 30 June 2021.

* PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the listed

securities of the Company.

*INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES, AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2021, the interests of the Directors, supervisors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company, its members of the Group and/ or any of
its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO” )) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were

as follows:
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Class and number Approximate shareholding | Approximate shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/
of Shares percentage in the relevant percentage of the total
Nature of interest . N
class of Shares" issued share capital®
59,000,000
HRREL | gesman | )
Mr. Yao ) 73.75% 54.63%
Beneficial owner 59,000,000
Chuanglong
Domestic Shares (L)
N e 3,200,000 &
T i LT
o Interest in controlled 4.00% 2.96%
Mr. Lin Zhixiong 3,200,000

corporation

Domestic Shares (L)

ML) REZBANLRARNF R (T
Br1 ) R CEFR ARSI EIREIE
XV#) o
B
(1) SZETETIEFRA AT 2021 6 A 30
H E3#/ TN %A 80,000,000 BEifSH,
(2) FZEMRTIEGRAATIA 2021 42 6 H 30
H E 3T Hy4284 108,000,000 A% iTif5Hi,
(3) FZEBAYHATET R G EH A
¥ (ARE®) (IREBEE) ) F
o HIRMREESEAE A AR R E G
BN, ORISR SR BRI 2R 2
AR Y PR R
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The letter “L”  denotes a person's long position (as defined under

Part XV of the SFO) in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”).

Notes:

(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 80,000,000
domestic shares in issue of the Company as at 30 June 2021.

(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 108,000,000
Shares in issue of the Company as at 30 June 2021.

(3) These Shares are held by Shantou Meizhi Investment
Management Limited Partnership ({IISH 1T EH L EEEE B
¥ (AIRA®) ) ( “Meizhi Investment” ). As Mr. Lin Zhixiong
is the general partner of Meizhi Investment, he is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Meizhi Investment under the SFO.
Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company has any other
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, its members of the Group or any of
its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO)
which have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or which are required to be
entered in the register referred to therein pursuant to Section 352 of

the SFO or which are required pursuant to the Model Code.
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* DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Interests or Short Positions
of the Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executives in the Shares,
Underlying Shares, and Debentures” , at no time during the six
months ended 30 June 2021, the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and supervisors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate, or any Directors, supervisors of the
Company or their spouses or children under 18 years of age was
granted any right to subscribe for Shares or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate or exercised any such right.

*INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
OF THE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, the following
persons/entities (other than any Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company) had or deemed to have an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company
which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which had entered in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:
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Name of shareholder

RERE IR R 7

Nature and capacity of

w27 8 E K ER

Number and class of

CiEletide
BRI T 7
B
Approximate

shareholding

B TRA
MR R
EE L @
Approximate

shareholding

interest securities
percentage | percentage of the
in the relevant | total issued share
class of Shares capital®
59,000,000
/i 3E2 RN LA B (L)
A et P (L) 73.75% 54.63%
Ms. You Zeyan Interest of spouse 59,000,000
Domestic Shares (L)
5,400,000 A%
= j: '*'é % (L
%Fé%# H %ﬁ)\ WK (L) 6.75% 5.00%
Ms. Wu Binhua Beneficial owner 5,400,000
Domestic Shares (L)
5,400,000 A%
FIEELL A HaEHAEA 5% (L,
Ik EURE e P (L) 6.75% 5.00%
Ms. Liu Jigui Beneficial owner 5,400,000
Domestic Shares (L)
EEAZLFEERAT 7,906,500 i
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical B H )@
e BUREAA B 28.24% 7.32%
Baiyunshan Hong Kong Beneficial owner 7,906,500
Company Limited H Shares (L)*
TN 1 22 L B S S )
— - Y 7,906,500 i
IR Tk B L
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Interest in controlled 7906500 28.24% 7.32%
Pharmaceutical Holdings corporation H’ She;res '
Company Limited
iz N e 7,906,500 f%
JE M BB R A PR AT] ZISTEERE R I—; I EL)M’
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Interest in controlled 7906500 28.24% 7.32%
Holdings Limited corporation H, Sh;res w®
5,534,000 i
RAYS Capital Partners gyl H B (L)®
e B X (L) 19.76% 5.12%
Limited Investment manager 5,534,000
H Shares (L)(S)
N e 5,534,000 A%
ZROEmH o L
RUAN David Ching Chi Interest in controlled 5.534.000 19.76% 5.12%

corporation

H Shares (L)(S)
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Asian Equity Special 5
Opportunities Portfolio Master | Ef 25 A A H B (L)'
ortunities Portfolio Master F
PP o 5,130,000 18.32% 4.75%
Fund Limited Beneficial owner 5
H Shares (L)
3,488,000 A%
FHESEAE HEHAEA H & (L) 12.46% 3.93%
Mr. Wang Yonghui Beneficial owner 3,488,000 ’ ’
H Shares (L)
DIGBEEREAR A 2,302,000 i
Gl =627 2SN H#@L)©
0, 0
Kingworld Medicines Health | Beneficial owner 2,302,000 8.22% 2.13%
Management Limited H Shares (L)
o g N e 2,302,000 f%
SIEBEEMATRAT | TREES -
Kingworld Medicines Group | Interest in controlled 5302.000 8.22% 2.13%
Limited corporation H, Sh;res w°
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The letter “L” refers to a person's long position (as defined under
Part XV of the SFO) in the Shares.

Notes:

(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 80,000,000
domestic shares in issue and the total number of 28,000,000 H shares

in issue of the Company as at 30 June 2021.

(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 108,000,000
Shares in issue of the Company as at 30 June 2021.

(3) Ms. You Zeyan is the spouse of Mr. Yao Chuanglong, the
Chairman and executive Director of the Company, and is deemed to
be interested in these Shares under the SFO.

(4) These shares are held by Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Baiyunshan
Hong Kong Company Limited. As Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Baiyunshan Hong Kong Company Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Company Limited, which in turn is held by Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited as to 45.23%. Guangzhou
Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited and
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited are deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Baiyunshan Hong Kong Company Limited.

(5) These shares are held by Asian Equity Special Opportunities



Opportunities Portfolio Master
Fund Limited ###, H}% Asian Equity
Special Opportunities Portfolio
Master Fund Limited % RAYS Capital
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i RAYS Capital Partners Limited
A #1 RUAN David Ching Chi & 1
5 95.24% 73, # RAYS Capital
Partners Limited & RUAN David Ching
Chi # # # ¢ Asian Equity Special
Opportunities Portfolio Master
Fund Limited #HAI& 2GR H#E
F#at,
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Portfolio Master Fund Limited. Since Asian Equity Special
Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of RAYS Capital Partners Limited and 95.24% interest of
RAYS Capital Partners Limited is held by Ms. RUAN David Ching
Chi, RAYS Capital Partners Limited and RUAN David Ching Chi are
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Asian
Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund Limited.

(6) These shares are held by Kingworld Medicines Health
Management Limited. As Kingworld Medicines Health Management
Limited is a wholly- owned subsidiary of Kingworld Medicines
Group Limited, Kingworld Medicines Group Limited is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Kingworld Medicines
Health Management Limited.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors were not aware of any person
who had, as at 30 June 2021, an interest or short position in Shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to our Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or be directly or indirectly interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member
of our Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors
was aware that any other persons/entities (other than any Directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company, its
members of the Group or associated corporations which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or which had entered in the register required to

be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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* AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW ON
THE INTERIM RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee” )
consists of three members and three of them are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony (Chairman),
Mr. Zhou Tao and Mr. Guan Jian. The Audit Committee reports
to the Board and has held regular meetings to review and make
recommendations to improve the Group's financial reporting process
and internal controls. Other than that, the primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
review the financial statements and material advice in respect of
financial reporting and overseas internal control of the Company.

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the unaudited
interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 and is of the view that the interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2021 has been prepared
in accordance with the applicable accounting standards, rules and

regulations, and appropriate disclosures have been duly made.

By order of the Board

Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Yao Chuanglong

Chairman

Shantou, the PRC, 20 August 2021
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30 June 2021 31 December 2020
FRRE 7
HH ltems Note6 | CREEHED (Unaudited) | (A% (Audited)
ARM¥IT RMB ARMIT RMB
WiE¥EFE Current assets

HEHE Monetary funds 1 435,875,043.20 590,322,268.07
JEI =i Bills receivables 2 12,064,910.00 20,639,970.00
TR Trade receivables 3 750,918,136.32 717,554,454.07
TG ER Account receivable financing 4 7,874,680.55 25,799,692.96
TR Prepayments 5 370,690,068.98 253,766,373.02
HoAthEBGER Other receivables 6 12,343,872.32 12,839,764.71
sy Inventories 7 590,337,957.71 585,008,876.72
HoAhim Bt e Other current assets 8 41,384,267.03 45,377,379.28
T GEE Total current assets 2,221,488,936.11 2,251,308,778.83

dEiBh % £ Non-current assets
E Fixed assefs 9 345,442,686.42 354,551,660.22
TEEETE Construction in progress 10 1,537,623.76 1,496,742.97
e FAREG PE Right-of-use assets 11 14,981,412.30 16,451,641.00
TR Intangible assets 12 146,278,588.24 152,191,599.87
e Goodwill 13 6,024,104.16 6,024,104.16
RIS E N Long-term expenses to be amortized 14 7,877,324.47 8,085,530.37
JRIEFAS R Deferred income tax assets 15 10,089,973.89 9,292,634.77
AEmEE Total non-current assets 532,231,713.24 548,093,913.36
e Total assets 2,753,720,649.35 2,799,402,692.19
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_— tems B 7 _— 30 June 2-()21 .il DcAccmbcr 2020
Note 6 CRESHEIZ) (Unaudited) (K8#1%) (Audited)
ARMIT RMB ARM¥IT RMB
B £11# Current liabilities
TR Short-term borrowings 16 538,653,425.45 535,919,072.17
JERT IR Bills payables 17 828,285,576.43 938,611,254.96
JERTHRK Trade payables 18 639,357,234.40 569,826,535.10
AR AE Contract liabilities 19 1,883,441.20 5,013,052.93
JEEAST I L35 Salaries payable to employees 20 4,648,773.70 5,788,619.82
JER Tax payables 21 58,521,633.32 58,549,342.70
HoAthE R Other payables 22 23,647,809.53 13,765,328.93
Hrb BEAFIR Including: Interests payable R R
R | e e duewihin 34,538,611.62 34,520,568.55
one year
mEI e GE Total current liabilities 2,129,536,505.65 2,161,993,775.16
3B £ i Non-current liabilities
RHEIMER Long-term borrowings 24 102,661,492.74 118,455,570.44
HEAH Lease liabilities 25 14,066,223.93 15,331,202.41
JEAEW S Deferred income 26 533,237.24 761,767.49
JEAEFF 1SR B0 Deferred income tax liabilities 15 12,890.18 311,457.13
EmBE e as Total non-current liabilities 117,273,844.09 134,859,997.47
ARAT Total liabilities 2,246,810,349.74 2,296,853,772.63
JB¢HAERS Shareholders' equity
[N Share capital 27 108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
IR N Capital reserve 28 278,990,829.04 278,990,829.04
BER A Surplus reserve 29 18,439,830.70 18,439,830.70
HRACHTE Unallocated profits 30 101,479,639.87 97,118,259.82

L) SEZNTIIVEEEY E ey

Total equity attributable to the

shareholders of parent company

506,910,299.61

502,548,919.56

BB R Minority interests - -

TR A Total shareholders' interests 506,910,299.61 502,548,919.56
Total liabilities and shareholders'

R R R A 2,753,720,649.35 2,799,402,692.19

interests

-031 -



=
INTERIM REPORT

PRI

2021

CEURAEES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

#ZE 2021 4£ 6 A 30 H1E7MEH For the six months ended 30 June 2021

6582°0 $ObT'0 e areys 1od s3urties paynIp pue orseg T A A 7 T
oreys 1od sSutureq A WX O
- - SIopjoyaIeys AJLIOUIW 0 A[qeINqLIIe AWodul dAIsuayaIdwod [e1o], T T A L o T O < S B
79°6L1°€L8°0E S0°08€196°5T Auedwod juared Jo S19p[OYAIEYS S 0} AQEINGUIE AWOSUT dAISUAYAIdWOd [B10], TR T S R R N7 S B
79'6L1°€L8°0E S0°08€ 19657 owodut dAISUAYRIdWOd [E10L TA BT
- - (S50] 10U 10] ) SIDPJOYIBYS AILIOUIL JO SSO] JO 1YOIJ'T (i ) QEHAED) TRHRRIEG T
79'6LT°€L8°0E S0°08€196°5T (ss0] 10U 10 ) Auedwod juaied Jo s1UMO a) 0} A[qEINqUNE IYOId ON'T | (ET¥E [~ YATFHSHED) IR B Bl [0 7 o S B T
79°6L1°€L8°0€E S0°08€196°SC dwssoumo &g (7) S B B e (D)
- - (5501 19 10j ) uonEIado panunuodsIp woxy 1Yoid PN'T (&% T-) YAHFHED BRIRE ST T
79'6L1°€L8°0E S0°08€196°5T (ss0 19 10] ~,) uoneIddo Sumunuod woyy 1yoid N1 (ha¥erds [-) YAHFSHED Bl SRt T
79°6L1°€L8°0¢ S0°08€°196'ST suoneiado jo Aymunuoo &g (1) BB mRE SR (—)
79'6LT°€L8°0E S0°08€T96°5T (507 19U 305 ) 1yo1d IDN'A (leriryle T YABHHE) BRI
67°0Sk2L8°0T 08'880°695‘8 w asuadxa xe) awodu] 153 AT BI
16°629°SHL Th S8°89t°0€S Ve (5501 12103 10§ ~,) 10ad [EIOL AL (ke [-) YmEsEE) Wkl “hd
21°€69°€9 vELE0'6T It sosuadxo Sunerodo-uoN s eSO
65°LTT'Y96 $0°26€°69 oy onuaAai Funesado-uoN :ppy g S il
Pr°S02‘SH8°0 STHIT06Y PE (ss0] 10 =) 1yoad Sunesado iy (et T-) WHE) BHGES =
S8'vh6TT €L 6YTTT- 6 (S50] 10J ) $1OSSE JO [ESOdSIP UO Suren (Iadads -1 YEHD MBI
80°87€¥S6°C- 86'STZ 9ET - 8¢ (5501 10 ) $1955% JO $50] JuALITEdW] (3% ) WKED Y EREHEE
SE'6HT LOT E- 69°SYTLYT L€ (5501 10 =) 11PaID JO §SO] JudULITEdwW] (g T-) WHED HFEPR )
06'%£5°05€ P8 8167 9¢ sures Yo PPy O
€€'99£°960°C 02'0£9TZ6'T awioouy Jsasopu AT
£8'565°605 VT 9£°88€00€°0C sasuadxa 1sa101u] :3utpnjouy HHRRE I © ok
¥8°0€0°80€°ST 14°960°96LTC g€ §1500 douBULY g2
LT°S06°LTS 9T 67°676°886'ST ¥€ sasuadxa uowogeuey liprrnec)
10°89L8€9°0F L1°806V82°TS €€ sasuadxa ulfjog [iEpraste]
9L°98L492‘E L0°€V8°98E Y € sofeyoms pue soxe], YR &8
68'TH9°98Y‘8EL T P6°78L°L96°LS8 T 1€ 1500 Sunesado :Burpnjoug YN b
68'TH9°98Y‘8EL T P6°78L°L96°LS8 T 1500 Sunesodo [e10L 11 YRS
6L°G6£65L098°T 65021 410°€66'T 1€ onudad1 Funesdd( :Buipnjouy NMh3EE: * i
6L'S6€°65L098‘T 65°0ZTYT0°€66°T anuaaa1 Funesado [e10L ] N
AINY 2L TINY 25
(pawpneun) (paypneun)
CRHEREN) CARBRE) 9 310N N
¢ ae e H
0202 = 0207 1202 =ty T20T

auN[ og PaPUS SYIUOW XIS dY) 10
HEWNH 0E H 9 %

-032 -



i WK

CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

19662016905 |- T9°662°0T6°905 | £8°6€9'6L7TOT | 0L'068'6EF'ST | #0'628°066'8LC | 00°000°000°80T potiad ay Joy 20ueeq Fuisol) AL By b
. B B - - S0 (1A) ¥ 0
- - - - - - - pouad oy w a5 g Y "
- - - - - - - pouad ayy Joy uoneudoxddy ' YEEHAY T
- - - - - - - Q10531 91J103dg (A) et (1)
- - - - - - - SIRYO 9 WE 9
sguues
- - - - - - - PAULBJAI 0] PIBALIOJ PALLIED WOAUI dAISUYAIWOD J2Y)() *§ WxhE) BSOS
sBurues
- - - - - - - poutejl 0) pieaoy patied ue(d yyouaq pauyap ut fuey) | W) BEBIERIFILT RN b
- - - - - - - $ass0] dn Sunyew 10§ 2A10821 snjding *¢ R BT e
- - - - - - - [eyded areys o) da0sa1 snydans Jo sjsuvi] 7 Pl v N A
- - - - - - - [evded areys 0y ansasar [eyide Jo sdjsura] | Pt 1 INAR- Y
- - - - - - - Kymba s1opjoyareys ay) urgm s1AJSuel (A]) RN (k)
- - - - - - - S0 Wy
0000000972~ |- 00°000°009TZ- | 00°000°009'TZ- | - - - SIaPJOYRITYS 0} UOEAV[]Y °¢ TG €
- - - - - - - uorsiaoxd ysu [esduaf jo uoneudoxddy -7 B T
- - - - - - - aaasa1 snjdans jo uoneudoiddy -] B 1
0000000972~ |- 00°000°009TZ- | 00°000°009'TZ- | - - - uonedo[[e 1goiq (11D WY (=)
- - - - - - - SIYI0 b Wiy
- - - - - - - Amba siaplotieys o1 pagpoio wowiked poseqromvs '€ | I GYTERNIN 2N
- - - - - - - sjuaunnsut A1mba 1aypo jo s1apjoy £q uonnquuod fende) 7 YH B BT TN T
- - - - - - - saIeys AIRUIPIO 0) LONNQLIUOD SIOP[OYAILYS *| HBEM RS T
- - - - - - - uoyonpai [e)des pue s1apjoyaIeys Jo uonnqLyuo) (11) YRR (D)
S0°08€196'SC - S0°08€T96'SC | S0°08€°T96°ST | - - - auioou dAISUYIdWOd [eIof, () HEHThes ()
(¥
S0°08ET9EY - SO08ETEY | SO'0SETOEY |- - - (2582109p 107 -,) pouad ayf J0f WAWNOW TIT |, —, Y 4) WS IERREBA Y =
9561685205 | - 95°616'8¢S205 | T8'6ST'STI'L6 | 0L'0€8'6EH'ST | #0'628°066'8LZ | 00°000°000°0T powad oy 105 doueeq Suwado 11 [EATICE e -
- - : - . - 90 i
- - - - - - - [01)UOI UOWILIO JOPUN SUOIRUIQUIOD SSAUISNE HEET [4E—[
- - - - - - - 10119 Sn01A31d JO UondALI0) T
- - - - - - - satorjod Sununoooe ur sagueyo :ppy WEMEE 1l
9561685205 | - 95°616°84S°20G | T8'6ST'STIL6 | 0L°0€8'6EH'ST | #0°'628°066'8£Z | 00°000°000°0T poad jse] 10§ 2oue|eq Suso) | BT
AKymba SIS 1pi01gng syoud oanasarsnjding | oasasar [ende) | fendes areyg
i fouy | |4 pajedo[eun) .
SIOP[OYIRYS [BJ0L SR IR Wi R
By BB swa)[ Hiff
e L]
W Kuredwoo juared jo s1apjoyareys o) a[qeInrnye Kby W a7 {31 Bk

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

= 2021 4 6 A 30 H1E/MEH For the six months ended 30 June 2021

D/ BEBEBRGSRIE
B R

sk CHME!

(GINY) 120T ounf O¢ Papuod sqyuow Xis oyy 10 (AN HEINLITH 0€ | 9 y 1207 Tx

-033 -



=
INTERIM REPORT

PRI

2021

TL'€00°TS0‘80% - TL°€00°TS0'80Y | 9°8¥S‘LTE'S | €0°9Z9TEL'ST | +0°628°0668LZ | 00°000°000°80T pouad ayy 10y doue[eq Sutsol) Al Y hd

S1YO (1A) WH O

pouad oyy ut asp) g Y T

- - - pouad oy 10y uoneudorddy | M T

- - - - - - 2A10591 0y102ds (A) WEck (1)

- - - - - - - SO 9 WH 9
s3urures paurejor

- - - - - - - 0] PIEAIO] PALLIED SWOOUT AAISUAYAIdWOD 1010 *§ TrxhE) R S T Xh S S

- - - - - - - sSuruies paurejor w

- - - - - - - 03 premioy patiied ueld yyauaq pauyop ut 3uey) 'y | WhA) R AR IEE LT R A Y

00°000°00%C€-

00°000°00%‘C€-

P6490°LSY VT

90°SE6TH6 L

00°000°00% T€-

00°000°00t €~

$6490°LSY¥T

90°SE6TH6L

00°000°00%‘C€~

00°000°00%‘C€-

P6490°LSY VT

90°SE6TH6 L

sasso[ dn Funjew 10y aatesar snjding ¢

[endeo a1eys 0} 9A1951 sn[dins Jo 19JSUBL], T
Tendes areys o) aazesar [eides jo sojsuely, |
Aynba s1opjoyareys ay) uryim siojsuel], (A[)
S1YO ¥

SIOP[OYAIBYS O} UONEIO[[Y "€

uorstaoid s [e1ud3 jo uonendoiddy 7
aasasar snjdins jo uonendoiddy ‘|

uonedo[[e 3yo1d (I11)

S104)0 "

Kyba

(SIopjoyaIeys 03 PayIpao juowked paseq-dreys ‘¢
sjuawnnsuI

Kymba 1oyio jo s1op[oy Aq uonnquyuod ende) g
Sa1RYS AIBUIPIO 0] UONNQLIUOD SIOP[OYRIRYS “[
uononpar

[endeo pue s19pjoyaIRyYS JO uoNNqLIU0)) (11)
awoour aarsueyaidwod [ejof, (1)

(9s82109p 10] ,—,,) poLIad Ay} 10J JUSWIAOI “TI]

HEHER BT YT "€
NHRRIEN W T
SR Y IR T
T D SER MR (i)
WH v

DO LHME '€

W7 T
TR (=)
WH v

B LIS AL M 23 €

S EANEEE B TR T
THRCR N T T

SRR (5
WIS (—)
[(Fare

WL IRy "=

W« K7

LL°8E6€66'STH - LL'8E6€66'STY | 0L'€8Y'OLTET | €0°929TEL'ST | +0°628°0668LZ | 00°000°000°80T pouad ayy 10y doueeq Sutuad *If BRIy
_ R - - - - SO WH
- - - - - - - [01IUOD UOWILIOD J9pUN SUONBUIQUIOD Ssaulsng »@/ﬁ.ﬂ %A_\_u_r_‘_&m%‘ﬁ_
- - - - - - - SI10112 SN01AdId JO UONIA1I0)) AT HEZZ e

LL'8E6°€66'STH

LL'8E6C66STY

0L°€8+°0LT'ET

€0°929°T€L'ST

$0°628°0668LT

00°000°00080T

sard1od Sununosoe ur sadueyd :ppy

pouad jse] 10§ dour[eq Suiso[) [

BRI 0
W

Aynba s1apjoyareys [e10],

O R

sisosoNI
Kysoury
LR
e

[e10qng
FENT

siyoid
paedo[eun

BllnR o

aarasar sniding

LA

aarasar [ende)

22

Tendes areys
2]

Auedwoo juaied jo s1apjoyareys 0 oqeInqLIIe AVNDT 25 3y dh 2 [11 37 45 31 25148

0T0T dunf Q€ PApU sypuowr Xis ayy 1o [ EF)SLITH 0€ H 9 =y 0T0T T

Swal

HEr

- 034 -



€9 v16 VST T

8590801 ‘SE

potiad oY) 10J sjud[eAINbS Ysed pue yseo Jo doueeq SUIso[) TA

BRI S M S HRE N

06'ver‘6vT Ot
€L°6L¥°S00°TT

ST'00ETLLETT
£9°€6°09€ 8L

porad oy 103 sjuo[EAIMbS YsED PUE Yseo Jo oourreq Suruad( PPV

sjua[eAINba yses pue yseo ur asearour 1N A

BRI S S MO S M G 1
BRI R i) S M S I

98'¢6L L

€1°6L5°0bT

sjuajeainbs yseo pue yseo uo sajer d3uryoxa ul dFuerYd JO 1P ‘Al

e P GG R 5 S U S M s s hd

50°S9€8L2 69T
YT TIEL09LYTTT
€TH6LTE99SL

$S ISP 8Y6°9T
Ly'S8T°08T 1EY
62°96L°80 V8T

26'686°G60vE6
L£7908°TH6 6vS

95°895°6£8CS

T8EPL698°8KET

+1°881°696298

€0'VL8€L6 YT

59 18E°0€6°SSH

8€°TIE6vL IOV T

LT'T19209°€Y6
12 T0L 9V T 8SY

SONIANOE SUIOUBUY WO MOY YSED JON

SONIANOE SUIOUBUY WO MO[INO Ysed Jo [e101-qng

sanianoe Suroueuy 03 Suneal pred yses BYO

SoLIBIPISQNS

Aq sysa10ut Kyuourwr 03 pred sygoad pue spuspialq :Surpnjouy
Juowked

1sa191ul 10 s)goxd pue SPUSPIAIP JO UOTINQLISIP 10] Juowked yse)
s1qap Jo yudwkedar 10§ pred yse)

SONIANOE SUIOUBUY WOLJ MOPUI [SED JO [210)-qnS

SoNIAIOR SuloURUY 03 SUNB[II PIAISODI SBD 1010
SSUIMOLIOQ WOLJ PIAIIOAL [SED)

:sanIATIOR SuIdouRUY WOI) MOY yseD 1T

S M (AR
AR M (E A
UL MY BB A RS A F R 22

Btk M OH B RO T D R ZE (87 e
SULR ZE R R U AE R I3l b £
UL ZE G B

AN RS U RIR S
LUILHM BB A5 b NS T
L UELHIE R RS K

UMW HERIAE =

Lt"006°66S ‘8-
L"009°€€9°8T
00°000°000°T
L"009°€€9°LT

00°00L‘€E
00°00L°€E

TLL9E8L9 TT-
TLL9E°689TT
TLTL9€°G89°TT

00°000°2
00°000°2

SOIIAIIOE FUNISOAUL WO MO S 19N

SONIANOE BUNSIAUL WOL MOINO YSED JO [210)-qNS

sanianoe Junsaaul 03 Sunea pred yseo 0YO

sjIun ssaulsng Idy10 pue saueipisqns Surimboe 10y pred yses 1N
$19SSE WLIO)-FUO IOYI0 PUE S)OSSE

S|qiSuruI “s10888 POXY JO UONONNSUOO pue uonisinboe 10§ pred yse)
SONIANOE BUNSIAUL WOL) MO[UL [SED JO [E10}-qNS

$)95SE ULI9I-SUO] 19Y)0 pue

sjosse o[qISuriul ‘s1oSSE POXY JO [BSOASIP WOLJ POAISIAI YSED 10N
:SONIANOE SUNSOAUT WO MOY YSED “[[

BRI WD M O SR R S AT

RN R R M A T
UL BB AT ) R 22

ERARSS ML) 20 T s 3 5 A 0 (237 5
LHr

CHP) 22 3 RA M 2T B FE L SRR SR A 2 Bl
AR M A T
B HE

() [l 25t S5 AR 20 T T L S BA Ml TR 0 [ T
MY T E AT

TL°8LL089‘6TT-
TTTSLLLLTOLT
6b°8F0°LYT 0T
£8'T6€°80C T
1L°€Tr 0T e
+0°888T8T‘S69°T
0v'€L6°960°THS T
SEY98°0L9°E
657618908
9v'682°619°LES T

+9°€£2C08°60T-

€0°LbE 8T ISLT

€2°9TS€0T‘9C
T1°22LL06°ET
00°69tLEEGE

69°6£9°618C99°T
6€°€L0°99€ TH9 T

L6VOTYLTT

806160 049 T

sonIAnoe Sunerodo woly MOy Ysed 19N

sanianoe Sunerddo woly MOINO yseo Jo [e101-qng
santanoe 3uneiado 0y Sunerar pred ysed 1L2y10

soxe) snouea 10j pred yseD)

soakodws jo jjeyaq uo pue saakojdwa 0y pred yse)
$001A108 SUIAI9001 puE spood Jo soseyoind 10§ pred ysed
sanianoe Sunerado woly mogut yses Jo [e101-qng
san1anoe Sunerado 0) Fune[alr PaAIdAI Ysed YO
POAIOODI pUNJOI XEL,

SOOIAISS JO SULISPUAI PUE SPOOT JO SI[BS WO PIAISIAI YseD)

BRARCE WS M O (R 5
RN RS M R B
UL e B R R S i) 2
FWHES LR 2
LML ZE DR N LS 7
SHLIN Z gz B
AN WS U E LR Y
L HELHHE B R L S R i) H SR
BERE WSS
SUILHIE RIS T B R

CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

124 :sanianoe Sunerodo woly Moy ysed | WML H G —
AN L5 Y INY L5 Y
(payrpneun) (parrpneun)
AT CAEFN) 9 910N B
swoy Hr
(EETY

020¢ = 020T

10T = 20T

#Z 2021 4£ 6 A 30 H1E7MEH For the six months ended 30 June 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

v BIEEmERHBERZLE

R R €S

sk CHME!

aun[ og PapPUS SYIUOW XIS Y} 10,
HENSH 0€ H 9 =%

-035 -



Bl EEA RS

BALANCE SHEET OF THE PARENT COMPANY

#2 2021 4E 6 A 30 H As at 30 June 2021

H

2021 RS

202146 A 30 H

2020412 A 31 H

Wik 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
HH ltems k= CREGEM) (Unaudited)| (568 (Audited)
e RHE RMB RAE RMB
Wid¥EFE Current assets

ISt & Monetary funds 151,406,624.21 239,709,765.10
JECEE 5 Bills receivables 12,064,910.00 20,639,970.00
TR Trade receivables 1 346,539,197.28 321,717,989.20
JEWCHRIE R Account receivable financing 3,049,400.72 9,677,815.64
rEoE Prepayments 218,347,607.98 91,888,737.10
FHAMbREBGER Other receivables 2 99,472,425.20 34,922,983.93
78 Inventories 176,429,478.25 179,239,640.35
HAtbiiEh g e Other current assets 19,231,801.98 18,023,139.49
B E G Et Total current assets 1,026,541,445.62 915,820,040.81

dEiBh% £ Non-current assets
RIARERE Long-term investments in equity interest 3 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24
M Investment properties 41,083,546.17 34,810,133.27
[i6]5E ¥4 P Fixed assets 301,067,938.03 311,448,122.87
e T2 Construction in progress 1,537,623.76 1,496,742.97
FEFIREVE Right-of-use assets 14,033,122.35 15,383,143.11
e Intangible assets 123,265,562.67 132,004,780.13
[EE Goodwill R R
RIARHEE A Long-term expenses to be amortized 7,229,815.91 7,948,414.37
JEAEFFFS R PE | Deferred income tax assets 1,936,822.19 2,147,739.64
B e Non-current assets 710,133,283.32 725,217,928.60
i it Total assets 1,736,674,728.94 1,641,037,969.41
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CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

HH

Items

(B3
+=
Note 13

202146 H 30 H

2020412 A 31 H

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
ORECERL) [GE-229)

(Unaudited) (Audited)

ARMIC RMB ARMWEIC RMB

B &1 Current liabilities

FEIAfE R Short-term borrowings 334,356,042.65 362,876,682.42
WA g Bills payables 342,597,297.90 329,206,550.39
JEASARTK Trade payables 214,081,775.07 179,510,492.78
aFAamE Contract liabilities 491,022.88 1,808,148.58
AT T Salaries payable to employees 2,763,479.61 3,309,534.29
JEAS R Tax payables 14,816,454.59 8,411,842.59
HER R Other payables 249,757,889.30 163,935,700.97

Hep: fEAFIR

Including: Interests payable

—ENEIR AR F

Non-current liabilities due within one year

34,307,082.90

34,396,442.29

BB AR

Total current liabilities

1,193,171,044.90

1,083,455,394.31

JEHiBI £ fE Non-current liabili

ties

RIAMEK Long-term borrowings 102,661,492.74 118,455,570.44
HEA Lease liabilities 13,305,482.41 14,447,360.71
JRIEN 25 Deferred income - -
JRIEFS i ELfE Deferred income tax liabilities - R
FERB AR AT Total non-current liabilities 115,966,975.15 132,902,931.15
amaE Total liabilities 1,309,138,020.05 |  1,216,358,325.46

JBcHiiEsS Shareholders' equity

A Share capital 108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
EAAH Capital reserve 282,204,487.50 282,204,487.50
BRI Surplus reserve 18,439,830.70 18,439,830.70
KA EAI Unallocated profits 18,892,390.69 16,035,325.75

B A R 23 e SRR 2

parent company

Total equity attributable to the shareholders of

427,536,708.89

424,679,643.95

DB R Minority interests - -
S A Total shareholders' interests 427,536,708.89 424,679,643.95
B R R AR A E T Total liabilities and sharcholders' interests 1,736,674,728.94 1,641,037,969.41
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED
INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 30 June 2021 (Unless otherwise stated,

notes to the financial statements are expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY
1.General Information
As approved by Shantou Commission for Restructuring the Economic
Systems, Shantou Economic Committee, Shantou Finance Bureau
and Shantou State-owned Property Management Office with
Circular [2000] No.6 of Shantou Reform Commission, Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”
or “Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company” | together with its
subsidiaries referred to as the “Group” ) was restructured from
“Shantou Pharmaceutical Trading Development Company ( il 38
B EEE 53R AMR/AT )" and established as a limited liability
company by Shantou Medicine (Group) Limited ( JIIFHEESE ( 4
) ZAF] ), Shantou Chuangmei Trading Limited ( JIBA T A5 E 5
FBRAT] ) and Shantou Chuangmei Advertising Limited ( llIZH
RISEE & H AT ) with joint investments in 2000. The Company
obtained the BUSINESS LICENSE OF THE ENTERPRISE
LEGAL PERSON issued by Shantou Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 6 March 2000. On 28 May 2015, the Company
changed its name to Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. The
registered address of the Company is No. 235 Song Shan North Road,
Longhu District, Shantou City with a uniform social credit number of
91440500722414635C.
The Company operates in the pharmaceutical distribution industry
and is mainly engaged in the distribution of pharmaceutical products.
The business scope is: pharmaceutical business; medical device
business; distribution of health products and food; freight transport
business; domestic freight forwarder; third-party pharmaceutical
products and medical devices logistics business; commodity
information consultancy; management and planning service for

pharmaceutical enterprises; logistics information consulting service;

-042 -
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advertising business; lease of properties; distribution of sterilizing
and bactericidal equipments and instruments, disinfectors, sanitary
insecticides, cosmetics, sanitary products, detergent, daily provisions
and , chemical products (excluding hazardous chemicals) and labour
protection appliance; purchasing and initial processing of agricultural
by- products, seafood and local specialties; private warehouses
locating at 1F and 2F No. 235 Song Shan North Road, Shantou City.

The Company has the General Meeting, the Board of Directors,
the Board of Supervisors and the General Manager. The Company
has functional departments such as marketing center, operation and

maintenance support center, logistics center and finance department.

II. SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The scope of consolidated financial statements of the Group
covers four five wholly-owned subsidiaries, Guangdong Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (hereafter referred to as “Guangdong
Charmacy Company” ), Shenzhen Charmacy Pharmaceutical
Limited (hereafter referred to as “Shenzhen Charmacy Company” ),
Zhuhai Charmacy Pharmaceutical Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “Zhuhai Charmacy Company” ) and , Guangzhou Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Limited (hereafter referred to as “Guangzhou
Charmacy Company” ) and Huizhou. Charmacy Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (hereafter referred to as “Huizhou Charmacy Company” ).
There was no change in the scope of consolidated financial
statements of the Group during the reporting period. For details,
please refer to the relevant content as set out in “VII. CHANGES
IN SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION” and “VIIL. INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES” of these notes.

II1. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(1) Preparation basis

The Group prepared its financial statements on the going concern
basis, according to actual transactions and events as well as such
disclosure requirements under the Accounting Standards for
Enterprises ( {{E3£ @ 5HERI) ) and relevant provisions (collectively
referred to as  “Accounting Standards for Enterprises” ) issued by

the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, the Companies Ordinance of
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Hong Kong and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange, and based on the accounting policies and accounting
estimates set outin “IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES”  of these notes.

(2) Going concern

The Group, having evaluated its ability to continue as a going
concern for the 12 months since 30 June 2021, did not find any event
or condition which may cast significant doubt on the going concern
ability. Hence, the preparation of these financial statements was based

on the assumption of going concern.

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Tips for specific accounting policies and accounting estimates: The
specific accounting policies and accounting estimates formulated
by the Group according to the actual production and operation
characteristics include business cycle, recognition and measurement
of bad debt reserves for receivables, measurement of issued inventory,
classification and depreciation methods of fixed assets, amortization
of intangible assets, and recognition and measurement of income.
1.Declaration on compliance with Accounting Standards for
Enterprises

The Company complied with the requirements of Accounting
Standards for Enterprises in preparing its financial statements, which
give a true and full view of the relevant information such as the
financial position, operating results and cash flows of the Company
and the Group.

2.Accounting period

The Group's accounting period begins on 1 January and ends on 31
December of the calendar year.

3.Business cycle

The Group treats 12 months as a business cycle and the criteria for

classifying the liquidity of assets and liabilities.
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4.Functional currency

The Group adopts Renminbi as its functional currency.

5.Accounting methods for business combinations under common
control and business combinations not under common control
The assets and liabilities obtained by the Group as the merging party
in a business combination are measured at the combination- date
carrying amount of the merged party in the consolidated statement
of ultimate controller. The difference between the carrying amount
of net assets obtained and the carrying amount of the combination
consideration paid shall adjust additional paid-in capital; if the
additional paid-in capital is not sufficient for offsetting, the retained
earnings shall be adjusted.

The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
obtained in a business combination not under common control
shall be measured at fair value at the acquisition date. The cost of
combination is the sum of the fair value of cash and non-cash assets
paid, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity securities issued by
the Group for obtaining control of the acquiree at the acquisition
date and all expenses incurred directly in the business combination
(for the business combination is achieved in stages through multiple
transactions, its cost of combination is the sum of costs of each single
transaction). Where the cost of combination exceeds the acquirer's
share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, the
difference is recognized as goodwill; where the cost of combination
is less than the acquirer's share of the fair value of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets, the measurement of the fair values of all the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities obtained in the
business combination and the fair values of non-cash assets or equity
securities issued as the consideration for combination are firstly
reviewed. If, after that review, the cost of combination is still less than
the acquirer's share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net
assets in the business combination, the difference shall be included in
the consolidated non-operating revenue for the period.

6.Goodwill

The goodwill arising on a business combination shall be presented
separately in the consolidated financial statements and measured at
costs less accumulated provision for impairment. The goodwill is

tested for impairment at least at the end of each year.
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When conducting the impairment test for goodwill, the goodwill is
tested together with the related asset group or portfolio of asset group.
That is, the carrying amount of goodwill is reasonably allocated to
the related asset group or portfolio of asset group which benefits from
the synergies of the business combination since the acquisition date.
Relevant impairment loss is recognized if the recoverable amount of
asset group or portfolio of asset group which contains the allocated
goodwill is less than its carrying amount. The amount of impairment
loss is firstly used to offset against the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to that asset group or portfolio of asset group, and then
will be offset against the carrying amount of other assets on a pro
rata basis according to the proportion of carrying amount of all other
assets (other than goodwill) within asset group or portfolio of asset
group.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value of an asset
less costs of disposal and the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. The fair value of asset shall be
determined according to the prices stipulated in a sales agreement in
an arm's length transaction. If there is no sales agreement but active
market for assets, fair value shall be determined according to the bid
price of the asset. If there is no sales agreement or active market for
assets, the fair value of assets shall be estimated based on the best
available information. Disposal expenses include the legal costs,
related taxes, carriage expenses related to asset disposal and the
direct costs caused by the efforts to prepare the asset for its intended
sales. The present value of expected future cash flows of an asset
shall be determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows
generated from the continuous use and ultimate disposal of assets at

an appropriate discount rate.

The impairment loss of goodwill is charged to the profit or loss for
the period when it incurred and will not be reversed in any subsequent
periods.

7.Preparation methods of consolidated financial statements

The Group includes all subsidiaries controlled by it and structured
entities into the scope of consolidated financial statements.

When preparing consolidated financial statements, if there is

inconsistency on the accounting policies or accounting periods

- 046 -



v BIEEmERHBERZLE

#-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

M, fERANEIRE R ERa EEH R
BT AR ERE T LA,

AR N RN S, 2R
BRAF N R B A & DR R A IR T
DRSS, FARINATE & MR AR
REARID R DA B BTRE A HoAlAR
Bl e B R AR AR P R TR D BUBR
RN, DRE S BIRER “>
Wi, DB E AR, RERD
S SR ) L At 6 25 W R B B T /D R
BIAR S YR AERE” THE SR,

BN E — 26 R RS HBIFH T2
A, HEEBRNBEERRAAGIE
SR G DE M A5 3R A il L
AR B ERE, B EEMBREN
B TE BT iR, HRFE S IHRIE R
PR 5 2 B ) A AR L 77 B R sl e
Bl — B A7,

B 2 IR AL 5 53 0 B R — 12 N
BEAIIREHE, BAIERERA O

JEAERUS P IRE R S 3], WhFEERAE
B OB IER T, BN &
B2 IRZE 5 53 WU IR — 2l N E
FRRIHE, REOURRESHE, S
AU, HRIERAEHTT RS
HIRFEI DA H AT AR A A A TR R, 78
it LI AR IR, DA IR A SR A4
B OFFT IR BRI B S 2 77 B2l 2 Y
AR, KEEHTNAEREE. &
TEBEAAR B & DR R A LR &
wh, KA BTN AL LR
R BT & R N RAHBIEE
TS OF T TR AR EEETE
R, ABEIEER S0 ATRA I

- 047 -

between the subsidiaries and the Company, necessary adjustments
will be made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries based on
the accounting policies or accounting periods of the Company.

All significant intra-group transactions, current balances and
unrealized profits within the scope of consolidation shall be offset in
preparing the consolidated statements. The shares of owners' equity
in subsidiaries not attributable to the parent company and the shares
of net loss or profit for the period, other comprehensive income
and total comprehensive income attributable to minority interests
shall be presented in the consolidated financial statements under the
items of "minority interests, profit or loss of minority shareholders,
other comprehensive income attributable to minority interests and
total comprehensive income attributable to minority interests",
respectively.

The operating results and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired from
business combination under common control shall be included in the
consolidated financial statements from the beginning of the period
of the combination. When preparing the comparative consolidated
financial statements, relevant items in the financial statements of
the previous year will be adjusted as if the reporting entity formed
after the combination had been in existence since the time when the
ultimate controlling party gains control.

For equity of an investee under common control acquired in stages
through multiple transactions, which results in business combination,
supplementary disclosure to treatment methods in consolidated
financial statements shall be made in the reporting period of acquiring
the control. For instance, for equity of an investee under common
control acquired in stages through multiple transactions, which results
in business combination, it shall be adjusted in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements as if it had been in existence as
the current status since the time when the ultimate controlling party
obtains the control. When preparing the comparative statements,
relevant assets and liabilities of the combined party are included in
the comparative statements of consolidated financial statements of
the Group no earlier than the time when the Group and the combined
party are under the common control of the ultimate controlling
party, with the increase in net assets arising from the combination

being adjusted against the relevant items under owners' equity in
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the comparative statements. In order to avoid repeated calculation
of the value of the net assets of the combined party, the long-term
equity investment held by the Group before the completion of the
combination, as well as the relevant recognized profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and other changes in net assets from the later
of the day of acquiring the original equity or the day when the Group
and the combined party are under the same ultimate control to the
combination day shall be offset against the retained earnings at the
beginning of the period and the profit or loss for the period in the
comparative statements, respectively.

The operating results and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired from
business combination not under common control shall be included in
the consolidated financial statements since the date when the Group
gains control. When preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the financial statements of the subsidiary shall be adjusted based on
the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities determined on the acquisition date.

For equity of an investee not under common control acquired in
stages through multiple transactions, which results in business
combination, supplementary disclosure to the treatment methods
in consolidated financial statements shall be made in the reporting
period of acquiring the control. For instance, for equity of an investee
not under common control acquired in stages through multiple
transactions, which results in business combination, the equity of
the acquiree held before the acquisition date shall be remeasured at
the fair value of the equity on the acquisition date when preparing
the consolidated financial statements, with the balance between the
fair value and its book value being included in the investment gains
for the period. Except for other comprehensive income arising from
changes as a result of remeasurement of net liabilities or net assets
of the defined benefit plan of the investee, other comprehensive
income under the equity method involving the equity of the investee
held before the acquisition date and other changes in owners' equity
excluding net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution shall be converted into investment profit or loss for the

period in which the acquisition date falls.
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For the partial disposal of the Group's long-term equity investments in
a subsidiary without losing control, the balance between the disposal
price and the share of net assets (being calculated from the acquisition
date or combination date) of the subsidiary enjoyed correspondingly
in the disposal of the long-term equity investment shall be used
to adjust the capital premium or share premium, or the retained
earnings if the capital reserves are not sufficient for offsetting, in the
consolidated financial statements.

Where the Group loses its control over the investee due to the partial
disposal of equity investment or other reasons, the residual equity will
be remeasured at the fair value thereof on the date when the control
is lost in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
The excess of the sum of the consideration obtained from the equity
disposal and the fair value of the residual equity over the share of the
net assets of the original subsidiaries (being calculated in proportion
to the original shareholding percentage from the acquisition date
or combination date) shall be included in the investment profit or
loss for the period in which the control is lost, with goodwill being
offset simultaneously. Other comprehensive income relating to the
equity investment of the original subsidiaries shall be transferred to
investment profit or loss for the period when the control is lost.

When the Group disposes of its equity investment in the subsidiaries
in stages through multiple transactions till losing control, if various
transactions for disposing of equity investment of subsidiaries till
losing control belong to a package deal, each transaction shall be
accounted for as a transaction that disposes of subsidiary with loss of
control; nonetheless, before the loss of control, the balance between
each disposal price and the share of net assets of such subsidiary
enjoyed correspondingly in investment disposal is recognized as other
comprehensive income in the consolidated financial statements and
transferred to investment profit or loss for the period when the control
is lost.

8.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the cash flow statements of the Group refers to cash on hand
and the deposits ready for payment at any time. Cash equivalents in the
cash flow statements represent the investment with a term less than 3
months, which are highly liquidated, easy to be converted into known

amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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9.Foreign currency business and translation of financial

stat ts d

ted in foreign currency

(1) Foreign currency transactions

For the Group's foreign currency-denominated transactions, the
foreign currency amount is converted into RMB amount at the spot
exchange rate on the day when such transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary items are converted into RMB at the spot exchange
rate on the balance sheet date, and the conversion differences resulted
therefrom, except that those arising from special foreign currency
loans related to the acquisition and construction or production of
assets eligible for capitalisation should be treated on the capitalisation
principle, are all included in the current profit or loss.

10.Financial assets and financial liabilities

‘When the Group becomes a party to the financial instrument contract,
a financial asset or financial liability will be recognized.

(1) Financial assets

1) Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets

The Group classifies financial assets into financial assets at amortized
cost, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss based
on its business model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

The Group will classify financial assets that meet the following
conditions into financial assets measured at amortized cost: @ the
financial assets are managed within a business model whose objective
is achieved by collecting contractual cash flow; and 2 the contractual
terms of the financial assets give rise on specific dates to cash flows
that are solely the payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Such financial assets are initially measured at
fair value with related transaction costs to be included in the initial
recognition amount, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost.
Except for those designated as hedged items, the difference between
the initial amount and the maturity amount is amortized using the
effective interest method, and the amortization, impairment, exchange
gains or losses and gains or losses arising upon derecognition are

included in the profit or loss for the period.
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The Group will classify financial assets that meet the following
conditions into financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income: (D the financial assets are managed within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and @ the
contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specific dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. Such financial assets are initially
measured at fair value with related transaction costs to be included in
the initial recognition amount. Except for those designated as hedged
items, other gains or losses arising from such financial assets, other
than credit impairment losses or gains, exchange gains or losses
and interest on such financial assets calculated using the effective
interest method, are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition of the financial assets, the cumulative gains or
losses previously included in other comprehensive income shall be

transferred out and be included in the profit or loss for the period.

The Group recognizes interest income using the effective interest
method. Interest income is calculated and determined by applying the
effective interest rate to the carrying balance of the financial asset,
except: O for the purchased or internally generated credit- impaired
financial assets, their interest income is calculated and determined
based on amortized cost and credit-adjusted effective interest rate of
such financial assets since the initial recognition; @ for the purchased
or internally generated financial assets without credit-impairment
but subsequently becoming credit-impaired, their interest income is
calculated and determined based on amortized costs and effective
interest rate of such financial assets in subsequent periods.

The Group designates the investments in equity instruments not
held for trading as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Such designation cannot be revoked once
made. The investments in equity instruments not held for trading
designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income by
the Group are initially measured at fair value with related transaction
costs to be included in the initial recognition amount. Except for any
received dividends (excluding those belonging to the recovery of

the investment costs) which are included in the profit or loss for the
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period, other related gains or losses (including exchange gains and
losses) are included in other comprehensive income and may not be
transferred to the profit or loss for the period subsequently. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative gains or losses previously included in
other comprehensive income shall be transferred out and be included
in retained earnings.

Other than the above financial assets classified as financial assets
measured at amortized cost and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, the Group classifies its financial assets
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Such financial
assets are initially measured at fair value with related transaction costs
to be directly included in profit or loss for the period. Gains or losses

on such financial assets are included in profit or loss for the period.

Financial assets arising from contingent consideration recognized
by the Group during the business combination not under common
control, are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

2) Recognition and measurement of transfer of financial assets
The Group derecognizes financial assets if one of the following
conditions is satisfied: (@ the contractual rights to collect the cash
flows from the financial asset expire; @ the financial asset has been
transferred, and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; and 3 the financial
asset has been transferred, and the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, and it has not retained control over such financial asset.

If the transfer of an entire financial asset satisfies the conditions for
derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the
transferred financial assets and the sum of the consideration received
from the transfer and the accumulative amount of the changes of
the fair value originally included in other comprehensive income
which shall be apportioned to the derecognized portion (where the
contractual terms of the financial assets transferred give rise on
specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding), are included into

current profit or loss.
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If the transfer of financial asset partially satisfies the conditions of
derecognition, the entire carrying amount of the transferred financial
asset is, between the portion which is derecognized and the portion
which is not, apportioned according to their respective relative
fair value, and the difference between the sum of the consideration
received from the transfer and the accumulative amount of the
changes of the fair value originally included in other comprehensive
income which shall be apportioned to the derecognized portion (where
the contractual terms of the financial assets transferred give rise on
specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding the financial
assets transferred are available-for- sale financial assets), and the
apportioned entire carrying amount of the said financial assets are
included into current profit or loss.

(2) Financial liabilities

1) Classification, recognition and measurement of financial
liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified into financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include held-
for-trading financial liabilities and financial liabilities designated as
measured at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition.
They are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value, as well as dividends and interest
expenditure related to such financial liabilities are recorded in profit
or loss for the period.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost by using the effective interest method. Except for the following
items, the Group classifies its financial liabilities as those measured
at amortized cost: (O financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, including held-for-trading financial liabilities (inclusive
of derivatives of such financial liabilities) and financial liabilities
designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss. @
financial liabilities arising from financial assets of which the transfer
does not meet the conditions for derecognition or continuing
involvements in the transferred financial assets. (3 financial guarantee

contracts that do not fall within the range of @ or @, and loan
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commitments that do not fall within the range of above (O and are at
a rate less than the market interest rate.

Financial liabilities arising from contingent consideration recognized
by the Group as the purchaser during the business combination not
under common control, are accounted for at fair value through profit
or loss.

2) Derecognition conditions of financial liabilities

When the present obligation of such financial liability was wholly
or partially discharged, that financial liability or the discharged
obligation shall be derecognised. If the Group and a creditor enter
into an agreement to replace the existing financial liability with a
new financial liability on substantially different terms, the existing
financial liability shall be derecognized, whereas the new financial
liability shall be recognized. Where the Group made substantial
modifications to the terms of the existing financial liabilities in whole
or in part, it derecognizes the existing financial liability in whole or in
part and recognizes the financial liability with the revised terms as a
new financial liability. The difference between the book value of the
derecognized part of financial liability and the consideration paid is
included in profit or loss for the period.

11.Bills receivables

Bills receivables are divided into different portfolios and the accounting
estimation policies for the expected credit loss thereof are determined,

based on the shared characteristics of acceptors' credit risks:

HEE TRHE FRA Bt (G ahBeR
Category of portfolio Accounting estimation policy for expected credit loss

2 AL = RAHRR A
TR A PR R R ABARE RS, — BRI

Bank acceptance bill portfolio

Management evaluates that such payments have low credit risk and generally do not

provide for impairment

FRREESA &

Commercial draft portfolio

TIRTEIHE R SRR R e

Provision for impairment is made based on expected loss rate

AIREIE & 2 A f R H Rt B R TR
WIS RRR, WRZIEHHEAREIIR
BRI R E TR AR SR, A
AP [0t L 22 L 0 2 MR VM S R DA 4R
%, fHad “HHBEEK" , Jat 1
W s - SRARTEM” o MR, ARHER
ZERARERR A TR ARG

The Group calculates the expected credit loss for bills receivables on
the balance sheet date. If the expected credit loss is higher than the book
value of the current provision for the impairment of the bills receivables,
the Group will recognize such difference as impairment loss of the bills
receivables, which will be debited to "Impairment loss of credit" and
credited to "Bills receivables — Provision for bad debt". Otherwise, the

Group will recognize such difference as impairment gain.
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12.Receivables

The Group recognizes the lifetime expected loss for receivables at
the initial recognition by using the simplified approach. The Group
estimates the expected credit loss using the following two methods
based on the customers' credit ratings, business scales, historical
collections and bad debt losses:

(1) For receivables of significant amounts and involving long-term
cooperative relationships or abnormal situations in the cooperative
relationship, etc., the Group, instead of using the impairment matrix,
recognizes loss provisions for receivables at the initial recognition
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit loss based on
the specific credit risk characteristics of the receivables, such as
customers' credit ratings, industry and business characteristics,
historical collections and bad debt losses. At each reporting date,
the Group re-evaluates the changes in the amount of expected credit
losses in the remaining duration of the receivables and adjusts the loss
provisions accordingly.

(2) For other receivables that do not fall into the above circumstances,
the Group divides financial instruments into different groups based
on shared characteristics of credit risks, and uses the impairment
matrix to determine the credit losses of related financial instruments
on a grouping basis. The shared characteristics of credit risks adopted
by the Group include: credit risk rating, initial recognition date,
remaining contract term, industry of the debtor, type of collateral and

value of the collateral relative to financial assets, etc.

The Group determines the impairment matrix based on the historically
observed default rates over the expected duration of the receivables
on a grouping basis, and makes adjustments in respect of forward-
looking estimates. At each reporting date, the Group updates the
historically observed default rates, analyzes the changes in forward-
looking estimates, adjusts the impairment matrix according to the
changes if the impairment matrix needs to be adjusted, and make loss
provisions accordingly.

13.Accounts receivable financing

For bills and accounts receivable measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the portion with a term of not more than one

year since the day of acquisition is presented as receivables financing,
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and the rest is presented as other debt investments. See "Note IV.
10 to the Financial Statements: Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities" for relevant accounting policy.

14.Inventories

The Group's inventories mainly include goods in stock and goods
in delivery. The inventories are recognized at the actual cost when
acquired. Actual cost is determined using weighted average method
when the inventories are consumed or issued. Low-value consumables
are amortized using one-off write-off method.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are recognized at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher
than the net realizable value for reasons like the inventories being
damaged, becoming completely or partially obsolete or being sold at a
price lower than cost, the provision for impairment loss of inventories
shall be made at the difference between the net realizable value of the
inventory and the cost on an item-by-item basis.

The net realizable value is determined based on the estimated selling
price of such inventories after deducting its estimated selling costs
and relevant taxes in the normal production and operation process of
goods in stock.

The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.

15.Long-term equity investment

The long-term equity investment of the Group mainly refers to the
investment in subsidiaries, investment in associates and investment in
joint ventures.

The Group's basis for judgement in respect of common control
is that all participating parties or a group of participating parties
control such arrangement, and that policies on related business of
such arrangement have to obtain unanimous agreement from all
participating parties that collectively control such arrangement.

The Group directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries owns more
than 20% (inclusive) but less than 50% of the voting right of the
investee, which is usually deemed to have significant influence on the
investee. For voting rights of less than 20% in the investee, significant
influence over the investee will be judged by comprehensively taking
into consideration of such facts and circumstances as dispatching

representative to the Board or similar authority of the investee, or
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participating in the formulation process of financial and operation
policies of the investee, or having major transactions with the
investee, or sending management personnel to the investee or

providing key technical information to the investee.

An investee that is under the control of the Group shall be deemed as
a subsidiary of the Group. For long- term equity investment acquired
through business combination under common control, the share of
the book value of net assets of the combined party in the combined
statement of the ultimate controlling party on the combination date
shall be accounted for as the initial investment cost of the long-term
equity investment. If the book value of net assets of the combined
party on the combination date is negative, the cost of the long- term
equity investment is determined as nil.

For equity in an investee under common control obtained in stages
through multiple transactions, which results in business combination,
supplementary disclosure to treatment methods of the long-term
equity investment in the financial statements of the parent company
shall be made in the reporting period of acquiring the control. For
instance, for equity in an investee under common control obtained
in stages through multiple transactions, which results in business
combination, the Group will conduct accounting treatment on
each transaction as one transaction which obtains control if the
transactions belong to a package deal; if the transactions do not
belong to a package deal, the share of the book value of net assets
of the combined party in the combined financial statements of the
ultimate controlling party upon the combination shall be deemed as
the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment on the
combination date. The difference between the initial investment cost
and the sum of the book value of long- term equity investment before
the combination and the book value of newly-paid consideration for
further acquisition of shares on the combination date shall be applied
to adjust capital reserve. If the capital reserve is insufficient for
offsetting, the retained earnings shall be offset.

For long-term equity investment obtained through business
combination not under common control, combined cost shall be
recognized as initial investment cost.

For equity in an investee not under common control obtained in
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stages through multiple transactions, which results in business
combination, supplementary disclosure to treatment methods for
long-term equity investment in financial statements of the parent
company shall be made in the report period for acquiring the control.
For instance, for equity in an investee not under common control
obtained in stages through multiple transactions, which results in the
business combination, the Group will conduct accounting treatment
on each transaction as one transaction which obtains the control right
if the transactions belong to a package deal. If the transactions do
not belong to a package deal, the sum of the book value of equity
investment held originally and additional investment costs shall be the
initial investment cost whose calculation method is changed to cost
method. If the equity held before the acquisition date is calculated
by equity method, the related other comprehensive income originally
calculated by equity method shall not be adjusted; and the accounting
treatment shall be conducted as per the same basis as that of directly
disposing of related assets or liabilities of the investee when disposing
of the investment. If the equity held before the acquisition date is
calculated by fair value in the investments in other equity instruments,
the accumulative change in fair value originally included into other
comprehensive income shall be transferred into the investment profit
or loss for the period on the date of combination.

Apart from the long-term equity investments acquired through business
combination mentioned above, for long-term equity investments acquired
by cash payment, the investment cost is the actual amount of cash
paid for the acquisition; for long-term equity investments acquired by
issuing equity securities, the cost of investment is the fair value of the
equity securities issued; for long-term equity investments invested by
the investor, the investment cost is the agreed consideration under the
investment contract or agreement.

The Group's investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the
cost method, and the investments in joint ventures and associates are
accounted for using equity method.

For long-term equity investments for which the subsequent
measurement is accounted for using the cost method, when
additional investment is made, the book value of the long-term equity
investment cost will be added according to the fair value of cost paid
for additional investment and the related expenses incurred by related

transactions. For cash dividend or profit declared and paid by the
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investee, it shall be recognized as its investment income for the period
at the amount to which it entitles.

For long-term equity investment for which the subsequent
measurement is accounted for using the equity method, the book
value of long-term equity investment shall be increased or decreased
accordingly according to the change in the owners' equity of the
investee. In which, the attributable net profit or loss in the investee
is recognized on the basis of the fair value of various identifiable
assets in the investee at the time of acquisition and in accordance with
the accounting policies and accounting period of the Group, based
on the share attributable to the investor as calculated according to
shareholdings, after elimination of the profit or loss for intra-group
transactions with associates and joint ventures and after adjustment to
the net profits of the investee.

On disposal of a long-term equity investment, the difference between
the book value and the proceeds actually received shall be included in
investment income for the period. If the long-term equity investment
accounted for under the equity method is included in owners' equity
due to the other changes in the owners' equity of the investee besides
net profit and loss, the portion previously included in the owners' equity
shall, when disposing of such long-term equity investment, be transferred
to the profit or loss on investment for the period on a pro-rata basis.
Where the common control or significant influence over the investee
is lost due to the partial disposal of equity investment, the residual
equity after disposal will be calculated as per the investments in
other equity instrument, the balance between the fair value and book
value of such residual equity on the date when the common control
or significant influence is lost shall be included in profit or loss for
the period. Other comprehensive income recognized as a result
of calculating original equity investment by equity method shall
be accounted for on the same basis as that used by the investee to
directly dispose of the relevant assets or liabilities when ceasing to
use the equity method.

When the control over the investee is lost due to the partial disposal
of long-term equity investment, for residual equity which still
has common control or significant influence over the investee
after disposal, it shall be accounted for under the equity method.
Difference between the book value of equity disposed and the

disposal consideration shall be included in investment income. Such
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residual equity shall be adjusted assuming that it is treated as being
accounted for under the equity method since acquisition. For residual
equity which cannot exercise common control or impose significant
influence over the investee after disposal, it can be accounted
for under relevant requirements for investments in other equity
instrument, and the difference between book value of equity disposed
and the disposal consideration shall be included in investment
income, and the difference between fair value and the book value of
residual equity on the date of loss of control shall be included in profit
or loss on investment for the period.

For each transaction where equity is disposed by the Group in
stages until loss of control and which does not belong to a package
transaction, the accounting for each transaction shall be conducted
separately. For the "package transaction", the accounting treatment
shall be conducted on each transaction as the transaction that disposes
of subsidiary with loss of control. However, before loss of control, the
difference between disposal price for each transaction and the book
value of corresponding long-term investment of the equity disposed
of, shall be recognized as other comprehensive income, and, upon
loss of control, shall be transfer to the profit or loss for the period
when the control is lost.

16.Investment property

Investment property refers to those held by the Group for the purpose
of rentals or capital appreciation, or both. Investment property of the
Group includes the rented land use rights and rented buildings, etc.
The Group shall measure the investment property by using the cost
mode.

The investment property of the Group shall be depreciated or
amortized on straight-line basis. The estimated useful life, net residual
value rate and annual depreciation (amortization) rate of various

investment properties are as follows:

. THRIRER (%) FEHTER (%)
B | KE | -3
| M IR (4F) Estimated Residual Annual Depreciation
No. Category Depreciation Period (year)
Value Rate (%) Rate (%)
1 - A HH R ER AR R AR IR 0 .
Land use rights Remaining term upon transfer
2 %E}%éﬂ% 30 5 3.17
Buildings and structures
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17.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in the production
of goods, supply of labour, rental or operation management, with a
unit value of more than RMB2,000 and have a useful life of more
than one accounting year. Fixed assets are recognized only when its
related economic benefits are likely to flow into the Group and its cost
could be reliably measured. Fixed assets are initially measured at cost

and taking into account the effect of estimated costs of disposal.

For subsequent expenses related to fixed assets, if the economic
benefits related to such fixed assets are likely to flow into the Group
and its cost could be reliably measured, such expenses are included
in the cost of fixed asset, and the book value of the replaced part will
be derecognized. Save for the above, other subsequent expenses are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.

Fixed assets are depreciated on straight-line basis over their useful life
from the month after they are brought to working condition for the
intended use. The useful life, estimated net residual value and annual

depreciation rates of each category of fixed assets are as follows:

Pk | ARl PrEEEm (4) TEFTEHER (%) FEHTER (%)
No. Category Depreciable Life (year) | Estimated Residual Value Rate (%) | Annual Depreciation Rate (%)
40
1 %ELﬁ% 30 5 3.17
Buildings and structures
2
2 %%%‘guxﬁ . 10, 13. 15 0 10.00. 7.69. 6.67
Machinery and equipment
‘ﬁ 2T
5 Jja“uux{% 3 0 12.5
Transportation facilities
R/ \ 2
4 | REME 35 0 33.33, 20.00
Office equipment
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Estimated net residual value is the amount that the Group would
currently obtain from disposal of fixed asset after deducting the
estimated costs of disposal, assuming such asset is out of its expected
useful life and in the expected condition of ending its useful life.

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal or when no economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. When a fixed asset is
sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the amount of any proceeds

on disposal of the asset net of the book value and relevant taxes is
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included in profit or loss for the period.
The Group shall review the useful life, estimated net residual value
and the depreciation method of a fixed asset at least at the end of each

year, and account for any change as a change in accounting estimate.

18.Construction in progress

Construction in progress shall be transferred into fixed assets at the
estimated value as per the project budget, construction prices or actual
construction costs from the date when they are ready for intended use,
and be depreciated from the next month and be adjusted for difference
from the original value of fixed asset after the completion settlement
procedures.

19.Borrowing costs

For borrowing costs incurred that are directly attributable to fixed
asset, investment property and inventory which are ready for their
intended use or sale after activities related to their acquisition,
construction or production last for more than one year, capitalization
shall commence when expenditures for the asset and borrowing
costs have been incurred, and activities relating to the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset that are necessary for the asset
to be ready for its intended use or sale have begun; and capitalization
shall be ceased when the acquired, constructed or produced qualifying
asset for capitalization is ready for its intended use or sale, and
borrowing costs subsequently incurred shall be recognized in profit
or loss for the period. If acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset for capitalization is interrupted abnormally, and
the interruption lasts for more than 3 months, the capitalization of
borrowing costs shall be suspended until the acquisition, construction
or production activities of the asset are resumed.

Where borrowings are borrowed for a specific purpose, the actual
interest expense incurred on that borrowing for the period less any
bank interest earned from depositing the unutilized borrowed funds
in banks or any investment income on the temporary investment
of those borrowings shall be capitalized. Where borrowings are
borrowed for general purpose, the amount to be capitalized is
determined on multiplying the weighted average of the excess amount
of accumulated asset expense over the amount of specific-purpose

borrowings by capitalization rate of general-purpose borrowings
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occupied. The capitalization rate shall be determined based on the
weighted average interest rates applicable to the general-purpose
borrowings.

20.Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets are defined as the rights of the Group as a
lessee to use the leased assets in the lease term.

(1) Initial recognition

At the commencement of the lease term, the Group initially measures
the right-of-use assets at cost, which includes the following: @
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; (2 any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less the
amount of lease incentives received, if any; 3 any initial direct
costs incurred, i.e. the incremental costs incurred for the execution
of the lease; @ the costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and
removing the leased asset, restoring the site on which the leased asset
is located or restoring it to the condition as agreed in the terms of the

lease, except those incurred for the production of inventories.

(2) Subsequent measurement

After the commencement of the lease term, the Group adopts a cost
model for the subsequent measurement of the right-of-use assets,
where the right-of-use assets are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Where the Group re-
measures the lease liability in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the lease standards, the book value of the right-of-use assets shall
be adjusted accordingly.

(3) Depreciation of right-of-use assets

The Group provides for the depreciation of the right-of-use assets
from the commencement of the lease term. Right-of-use assets
are usually depreciated from the month in which the lease term
commences. The amount of the provision for depreciation is included
in the cost of the relevant assets or the current profit or loss according
to the use of the right- of-use assets.

When determining the depreciation method of the right-of-use
assets, the Group makes decisions based on the expected methods of
consuming the economic benefits related to the right-of-use assets,
and provides for depreciation for the right-of-use assets on a straight-

line basis.
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When determining the depreciation period of the right-of-use assets,
the Group adheres to the following principles: if it is reasonably
certain that the ownership of the leased assets will be obtained at
the end of the lease term, the provision for depreciation will be
made within the remaining useful life of the leased assets; if it is not
reasonably certain that the ownership of the leased assets will be
obtained when the lease term expires, the provision for depreciation is
made during the lease term or the remaining useful life of the leased
assets, whichever is the shortest.

(4) Impairment of right-of-use assets

If the right-of-use assets are impaired, the Group will make
subsequent provision for depreciation based on the book value of the
right-of-use assets after deducting the impairment losses.
21.Intangible assets

The Group's intangible assets include land use right, software and
software license, customer resources , etc. Intangible assets are
measured at the actual costs upon acquisition, of which the purchased
intangible assets, actual paid cost and other relevant expenses are
presented as the actual costs. For intangible assets invested by
investors, the actual costs are determined according to the values
specified in the investment contract or agreement, for the unfair values
agreed in contract or agreement, the actual costs are determined at
the fair value. For the intangible asset acquired from combination
not under common control which is owned by the acquiree but is
not recognized in the financial statements, it shall be recognized as
intangible asset at its fair value upon the initial recognition of the
acquiree's assets.

The land use right shall be evenly amortized when it is obtained from
the date of transfer. The software and software use rights, customer
resources are amortized evenly by stages over the shortest of
estimated useful life, beneficial term stipulated by contract and legal
effective term. The amortization amount is credited into relevant asset
cost and profit or loss for the period according to its beneficiaries. The
Group reviews the estimated useful life and amortization method of
intangible assets with limited useful life at the end of each year, and

any changes will be treated as changes on accounting estimates.
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22.Impairment of long term assets

The Company reviews items such as long term equity investments,
investment properties, fixed assets, construction in progress and
right-of-use assets measured by the cost model, intangible assets
with definite useful life, etc. on each balance sheet date. The Group
conducts impairment test when there is any indication of impairment.
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life are tested
at the end of each year for impairment, whether indication of
impairment exists or not.

If the book value of such asset exceeds its recoverable amount after
impairment test, the difference is recognized as impairment loss.
The above impairment losses shall not be reversed in subsequent
accounting periods once recognized.

23.Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses of the Group include expenses for
building renovation, etc. Such expenses are amortized evenly over
periods in which benefits are derived. If the long-term deferred
expenses are no longer beneficial in subsequent accounting periods,
the amortized value of the unamortized item is transferred in full to
profit or loss for the period.

24.Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities reflect the Group's obligation to transfer goods
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Before the
Group transfers goods to a customer, the customer has already paid
the contract consideration, or the Group has obtained unconditional
right to receive the contract consideration. At the earlier of the date
of actual payment from the customer and the due date of payment,
contract liabilities were recognized in accordance with the amount

received or receivable.
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25.Staff remuneration

Staff remuneration refers to all forms of rewards or compensations
given by the Group in exchange for services rendered by employees
or for the termination of employment relationship. Staff remuneration
includes short-term remuneration, post- employment benefits,
termination benefits and other long-term employee benefits.

Except for the compensation for terminating the relationship with
employees, the Group shall recognize the staff remuneration payable
as a liability during the accounting period in which an employee
renders his/her service.

The Group participates in social security systems for employees
operated by the government authorities according to the regulations,
including basic pension insurance, medical insurance, housing
provident fund and other social security systems. The corresponding
expenses shall be included in the cost of related assets or profit or loss
for the period when incurred.

When the Group terminates the employment relationship with
employees before the expiry of the employment contracts or provides
compensation as an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary
redundancy, if the Group has a formal plan for the termination
of employment relationship or has made an offer for voluntary
redundancy which will be implemented soon, and the Group cannot
unilaterally withdraw the termination plan or the redundancy offer, the
compensation payable arising from the termination of employment
relationship with employees is recognized as expected liability and
included in profit or loss for the period.

Short-term remuneration refers to the employee compensation other
than post-employment benefits and termination benefits, which are
required to be fully paid by the Group within 12 months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees rendered
relevant services. In particular, short-term remuneration includes staff
salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare payments,
social insurance premiums including medical insurance premiums,
work injury insurance premiums and maternity insurance premiums,
housing provident fund, labour union expenses and staff education
expenses, short- term paid leaves, short-term benefits sharing scheme,
non-monetary welfare and other short-term remuneration. During the

accounting period in which the employees render services, the Group
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recognizes the short-term remuneration payable as liabilities and
includes them into relevant asset costs or expenses according to the
beneficiaries of the services rendered by employees.
Post-employment benefit refers to all kinds of remunerations and
benefits other than short-term remuneration and termination benefits
that are provided by the Group after the retirement of the employees
or termination of employment relation with the enterprises in
exchange for services rendered by employees. The post- employment
benefits include basic pension insurance, annuity, unemployment
insurance, early retirement benefits and other post-employment
benefits.

The Group categorizes the post-employment benefits as defined
contribution plan and defined benefit plan. Post-employment
benefit refers to the agreement reached between the Group and its
employees on the post-employment benefits or the rules or measures
formulated by the Group for providing post- employment benefits
for its employees. In which, defined contribution plan refers to the
post-employment benefit plan under which the Group assumes
no obligation of making further payment after depositing fixed
amount to independent funds; defined benefit plan refers to the post-
employment benefit plan other than defined contribution plan. Within
the accounting period in which the employees render services to the
Group, contributions payable under defined contribution plan are
recognized as liabilities and accounted for in profit and loss or the
cost of related assets for the period.

Termination benefits are the compensation to employees when the
Group terminates the employment relationship with employees before
the expiry of the employment contracts or as an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy. If the Group provides
termination benefits to the employees, the liabilities arising from
termination benefits will be recognized and included in profit or loss
for the period at the earlier of the following dates: @ when the Group
cannot unilaterally withdraw termination benefits for the employment
termination plan or the redundancy offer; and @ when the Group
recognizes the costs or expenses related to the reorganization
involving in payment of termination benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits refer to the employee
compensation except for short-term compensation, post-employment

benefits and termination benefits.
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26.Lease liabilities

(1) Initial recognition

The Group initially measures lease liabilities based on the
present value of the lease payments that have not been paid at the
commencement date of the lease term.

1) Lease payments

Lease payments are defined as the payments made by the Group to
the lessors related to the rights to use leased assets during the lease
term, including: @ fixed payments and fixed payments in substance,
net of lease incentives, if any; @ variable lease payments based on
indexes or ratios, which are determined at the initial measurement
based on the indexes or ratios on the commencement date of the lease
term; (3 the exercise price of the purchase option when the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the purchase option; @ the payments
required to be paid for exercising the option to terminate the lease
when the lease term reflects that the Group will exercise the option to
terminate the lease; and (& the amount expected to be paid based on

the residual value of the guarantee provided by the Group.

2) Discount rate

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate when it is unable
to determine the interest rate implicit in the lease. The incremental
borrowing interest rate refers to the interest rate payable by the Group
to borrow funds under similar mortgage conditions in similar periods
in order to acquire the assets of an amount close to the value of the
right-of-use assets in a similar economic environment.The interest rate
is related to the following: (@ the Group's own situation, that is, the
Group's solvency and credit status; 2 the term of the "borrowing",
that is, the lease term; (3 the amount of "borrowed" funds, that is,
the amount of lease liabilities; @ "mortgage conditions", that is,
the nature and quality of the underlying assets; 3 the economic
environment, including the jurisdiction in which the lessee is located,
the currency of denomination, and the time of signing the contract.
Based on the long-term bank loan interest rate, the Group makes
adjustments in respect of the above-mentioned factors to derive the

incremental borrowing interest rate.
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(2) Subsequent measurement

After the commencement date of the lease term, the Group conducts
the subsequent measurement of the lease liabilities according to
the following principles: @ increasing the book value of the lease
liabilities when recognizing lease liabilities; @ reducing the book
value of the lease liabilities when making lease payments; 3 re-
measuring the book value of the lease liabilities in case of any change
in the lease payments due to revaluation or lease variations.

The interest expenses of the lease liabilities in each period of the lease
term are calculated at fixed periodic interest rates and are included
in the profit and loss for the current period, except those that shall be
capitalized. Periodic interest rates refer to the discount rates used by
the Group in the initial measurement of lease liabilities, or the revised
discount rates adopted by the Group when lease liabilities need to
be re-measured at revised discount rates due to changes in lease

payments or lease variations.

(3) Re-measurement

After the commencement date of the lease term, when the following
circumstances occur, the Group re-measures the lease liabilities at the
present value calculated based on the lease payments after changes
and the revised discount rates, and adjusts the book value of the
right-of-use assets accordingly. If the book value of the right-of-use
assets has been reduced to zero, but the lease liabilities still need to
be further reduced, the Group will include the balance in the current
profit and loss. The circumstances include @ any change in the fixed
payment in substance; (@) any change in the expected payable amount
of the residual value of the guarantee; (3 any change in the indexes
or ratios used to determine the lease payments; 4) any change in the
evaluation result of the purchase option; (& any change in evaluation
result or actual exercise of the option to renew or terminate the lease.
27.Recognition principle and measurement of income

Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies the performance
obligation in the contract by transferring the control over relevant
goods or services to customers.

Where two or more performance obligations are included in a
contract, at the commencement date of the contract, the Group will

allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation on the
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proportion of the standalone selling prices of each distinct good or
service promised, and measure the revenue based on the transaction
price being allocated to each performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised
goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. The transaction price recognized by the
Group shall not exceed the amounts that are most unlikely to have
a significant reversal for accumulated recognized income when the
relevant uncertainties are resolved. The amount which the Group
expects to refund to the customer is recognized as liabilities and
excluded from transaction price. Where the contract contains a
significant financing component, the Group determines the transaction
price as the amount payable in cash by a customer when he/she
obtains the control of the goods or services. The difference between
the transaction price and the consideration of the contract is amortized
using effective interest method over the contract term. The Group
will not consider a significant financing component in a contract if it
expects, on the inception date of the contract, that the period between
the obtaining of the control of the goods or services by a customer
and the payment by the customer will be one year or less.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation over time if one of the
following criteria is met; or otherwise, a performance obligation is
satisfied at a point in time:

The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs; the
customer can control the services (or goods) provided during the
Group's performance; the services (or goods) provided during the
Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use
and the Group has a right to payment for performance completed to
date in the contract period.

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the Group recognizes
revenue over time by the progress of the satisfaction of that
performance obligation. When the progress of that performance
obligation cannot be measured reasonably, but the Group expects to
recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation,
the Group recognizes revenue as the costs incurred until such time
that it can reasonably measure the progress of the performance

obligation.
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For performance obligation satisfied at a point in time, the Group
recognizes revenue at the point in time at which the customer obtains
the control of relevant goods or services. To determine whether a
customer has obtained the control of goods or services, the Group
considers the following indicators:

The Group has a present right to payment for the goods or services;
the Group has transferred physical possession of the goods to the
customer;

The Group has transferred the legal title of the goods or the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the customer; the
customer has accepted the goods or services.

The rights of the Group to receive consideration from customers
(depending on factors other than the passage of time) for the
transferred goods or services is presented as contract assets which is
provided for impairment on the basis of expected credit losses. The
Group's unconditional right (only the passage of time is required) to
consideration from customer is presented as receivables. The Group's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer is presented as contract liability.

The income of the Group includes income from the sales of goods,
income from provision of advisory services. The following is the
description of accounting policies regarding income from its principal
activities:

The specific income recognition policy for the Group's products:
the Group entered into a sales contract with the customer while
the counterparty shall, within 3 days after receipt of the goods,
inspects and accepts according to the product quality requirements
and the GSP acceptance criteria. Overdue acceptance is deemed to
constitute standard product. The fact that the goods provided are
not in conformity with the order, damage, pollution, expiration, etc.,
shall be submitted to the Group within 3 days after the goods have
been received, and detailed information shall be provided. If the
responsibilities rest with the Company after verification, the return
procedures will commence upon confirmation. Based on the above
terms, the Group recognizes the income 3 days after the goods were
shipped (which shall be deemed to have transferred the control

thereof to the customer) for the sake of prudence.



AR RS BN LB BCR: A
HASEBS WA B2 N F 277 B GE T
RN SRR AL, A T
JEEE 7T A R SRS YN e Al RS 22
AT (RBStED) , ARIRIRHEAIR
HEARES DY A TR, AL S bR
B, AFEIAESR LIRS A R
1%, W& P RRIEBRE E ROHE 2] L
WL N BN

28. BUiFHiE)

BURFRB 2 FE A 42 L BT S S B
Wbk AR I A, BN TE
RES & BUR R BN AR 4 £ ELRESAICE
RE T DARERR. AR B BURF 1B B 45 5L
B M BUT ). SRS R B
JRERB

BURFRBh 2 B Wb Y, AR BRI
S SRR, BHEIRE 2 AR
W IURED), BOEHERA R IRE
FHRESA & I B R BOR H e AR R
1 BTEENRESIR R Bk R B, 1%
TR SRE R B TR A dE
PEEFER), WRAREMRE, ARE
ENRE AT SEEUS Y, THIBRB/EH (1
It ) #HE.

B 7 A B 1140 IS ) B il 0 2 DR SE L
%, TEAARHE 2 S an N Bt
NERER, BLIESAH B BUR F B,
RV T DA% 57 S 0 A R 2 B4R 2%
9, HeRAIRAENES, TERERAHRE
FREIME NS EG,; ARmEe
ERHBRE I sRCH), BEEEINER

i

B3 H W TS EHRE A BOR B, IEE
IR E, At AH AR s

H

2021 RS

The specific income recognition policies for the Group's service fees:
income of the Company's other business is mainly the advisory service
income from provision of brand promotion, product marketing, etc.
for some pharmaceutical manufacturers and distributors. The advisory
service fee is charged on the specific service content provided
according to the service agreement signed, which is independent of
the product procurement contract. The income will be recognized
by the Company after the end of the evaluation period of provision
of advisory service to the extent that payment from the customers is
received or it is determined that the amount can be fully received.
28.Government grants

Government grants are monetary and non-monetary assets received
by the Group from the government with no charge. Government
grants shall be recognized when the attaching conditions thereto can
be met and the grants can be received. The government grants of the
Group include the government subsidies related to the assets and the
revenue.

If a government grant is in the form of a monetary asset, it is
measured at the amount received; If the grants are allocated in
accordance with fixed quotas, or if there is sufficient evidence at the
end of the year to show that the entity complies with the relevant
conditions of financial supporting policies and it is expected to
receive financial supporting funds, the grants shall be measured at
the amount receivable; If a government grant is in the form of a non-
monetary asset, it is measured at fair value, and if the fair value could
not be reliably obtained, it is measured at its nominal amount (RMB1).
The government grants related to assets are recognized as deferred
revenue and are amortized equally over the useful life of the relevant
assets and included in the profit or loss for the period. When the
government grants related to the revenue are used to make up the
relevant expenses or losses incurred in subsequent periods, they shall
be recognized as deferred revenue and shall be included in the profit
or loss for the period during the period in which relevant expenses
are recognized. When the government grants are used to make up the
relevant expenses or losses incurred, they shall be directly included in
the profit or loss for the period.

The government grants related to business activities of an enterprise

are recognized as other income or a reduction of relevant costs and
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expenses in the light of the nature of such business. The government
grants non-related to business activities of an enterprise are
recognized as non-operating income or expense.

The Group accounts for interest subsidies of policy-based preferential
loans it obtains on the following principles and under two

circumstances:

(1) Where the finance allocates the interest subsidy to the lending
bank and the lending bank loans to the Group at the policy- based
preferential interest rate, the Group records the amount of loan it
actually receives as the entry value of the loan, and calculates the
related borrowing costs based on the principal amount of the loan and
the policy-based preferential interest rate (or records the fair value of
the loan as the entry value of the loan and calculates the borrowing
costs based on the effective interest rate method; and recognises the
difference between the actual amount received and the fair value of
the loan in deferred income. The deferred income is amortised over
the duration of the loan using the effective interest rate method and is
used to offset the related borrowing costs.)

(2) Where the finance allocates the interest subsidy to the Group
directly, the Group offsets the related borrowing costs with the
subsidy.

When the Group has to return government grants it has already
recognised, such grants are accounted for in the period in which they
are required to be returned under different circumstances:

1) If the carrying value of the related assets is offset upon initial
recognition, the carrying value of the assets is adjusted.2) If there
is related deferred income, the book balance of deferred income is
offset, and the excess is included in the current profit or loss.3) In
other cases, the returned grants are directly included in the current
profit or loss.

29.Leasing

(1) Identification of lease

Lease refers to a contract in which a lessor assigns the right to use
an asset to a lessee within a certain period of time in exchange
for consideration. On the commencement date of a contract, the
Group assesses whether the contract is a lease or contains a lease.

A contract is a lease or contains a lease if one party to the contract
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transfers the right to control the use of one or more identified assets
within a certain period of time in exchange for consideration. In
order to determine whether a contract transfers the right to control
the use of the identified assets within a certain period of time, the
Group assesses whether the customers in the contract are entitled to
receive almost all of the economic benefits arising from the use of the
identified assets during the period of use and have the right to direct
the use of the identified assets during the period of use.

If a contract contains multiple separate leases, the Group will split
the contract and account for each separate lease. Where a contract
contains both lease and non-lease components, the Group will account

for the lease and non-lease components separately.

(2) The Group as a lessee

At the commencement date of the lease term, the Group recognizes
the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the lease. The right-
of-use assets are initially measured at cost, including the initial
measurement amount of the lease liabilities, the lease payments (net
of the amount of lease incentives received) made on or before the
commencement date of the lease term, the initial direct costs incurred,
and the costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing
the leased asset, restoring the site on which the leased asset is located
or restoring it to the condition as agreed in the terms of the lease.

The Group as a lessee recognizes right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases.

1) Lease variations

Lease variations refer to the variations of the lease scope, lease
consideration and lease duration beyond the original contract terms,
including the addition or termination of the right to use one or more
leased assets, and the extension or shortening of the lease term
stipulated in the contract. The effective date of a lease variation is the
date on which the parties agree on such lease variation.

When there is a lease variation and the following conditions are
simultaneously met, the Group accounts for the lease variation as a
separate lease: (D the lease variation expands the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more leased assets; @ the additional
consideration is equal to the separate price of the enlarged scope of

the lease as adjusted for the circumstances of the contract.
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Where the lease variation is not accounted for as a separate lease,
on the effective date of the lease variation, the Group allocates the
consideration of the contract after the variation in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the lease standards, and re- determines the
lease term after the variation; and re-measures the lease liabilities by
applying the revised discount rate to discount the lease payments after
the variation. When calculating the present value of lease payments
after the variation, the Group uses the interest rate implicit in the
lease for the remaining duration of the lease as the discount rate;
where the interest rate implicit in the lease for the remaining duration
of the lease cannot be determined, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate of the lessee on the effective date of the lease variation
as the discount rate. As for the effect of the aforesaid adjustments to
lease liabilities, the Group applies different accounting treatments
according to the following: (O where the lease variation reduces the
lease scope or lease term, the lessee shall reduce the book value of the
right-of-use assets, and include the gains or losses resulting from the
partial or complete termination of the lease in the current profit and
loss; @ where the lease liabilities are re-measured due to other lease
variations, the lessee shall adjust the book value of the right-of-use
assets accordingly.

2) Short-term lease and lease of low-value assets

For the short-term leases with a lease term of less than 12 months,
and the leases of low-value assets where the single leased assets are
brand new assets, the Group chooses not to recognize right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities. The Group includes the lease payments for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets in the relevant costs
of assets or current profit or loss using the straight-line method or
other systematic and reasonable methods in each period of the lease
term.

(3) The Group as a lessor

On the basis that the contract is a lease or contains a lease as
evaluated in (1), the Group, as a lessor, divides the lease into a finance

lease or operating lease on the commencement date of the lease.

If a lease transfers almost all of the risks and rewards related to the

ownership of the leased assets in substance, the lessor classifies
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the lease as a finance lease and those other than finance leases as

operating leases.

A lease is generally classified as a finance lease by the Group if one or
more of the following conditions are met: (O upon the expiration of
the lease term, the ownership of the leased assets is transferred to the
lessee; (2 the lessee has the option to purchase the leased assets, and
the purchase price as agreed is sufficiently low compared to the fair
value of the leased assets when the option is expected to be exercised,
0 it can be reasonably determined at the commencement date of
the lease that the lessee will exercise the option; (3 although the
ownership of the assets is not transferred, the lease term represents
most of the useful life of the assets (not less than 75% of the useful
life of the leased assets); @ at the commencement date of the lease,
the present value of the lease receipts is almost equal to the fair value
of the leased assets (not less than 90% of the fair value of the leased
assets); (® the leased assets are of a special nature and can only
be used by the lessee with any major modification. A lease may be
classified as a finance lease by the Group if there are one or more of
the following signs: @ if the lessee cancels the lease, the loss caused
to the lessor by the cancellation of the lease shall be borne by the
lessee; (@) the gains or losses resulting from the fluctuations of the fair
value of the residual value of the assets belong to the lessee; @ the
lessee has the ability to continue the lease to the next period at a rent

far below the market level.

1) Accounting of financial leases

@ Initial recognition

At the commencement date of the lease term, the Group recognizes
finance lease receivables for financial leases and derecognizes finance
lease assets. When performing the initial measurement of financial
lease receivables, the Group accounts for the finance lease receivables
at the net lease investment.

The net lease investment is the sum of the unguaranteed residual
value and the present value of the lease payments that have not
been received at the commencement date of the lease, discounted at
the interest rate implicit in the lease. The lease receipt refers to the

amount that the lessor should collect from the lessee for transferring
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its right to use the leased assets during the lease term, including: @
the fixed payments and the fixed payments in substance to be paid
by the lessee, net of lease incentives received, if any; @ variable
lease payments depending on indexes or ratios, which are determined
at the initial measurement based on the indexes or ratios at the
commencement date of the lease; ) the exercise price of the purchase
option, provided that it is reasonably certain that the lessee will
exercise this option; @ the payments that the lessee needs to make
for exercising the option to terminate the lease, provided that the lease
term reflects that the lessee will exercise the option to terminate the
lease; (® the residual value of the guarantee provided to the lessor by
the lessee, a party related to the lessee and an independent third party
with the financial ability to fulfill the obligation of the guarantee.

(2 Subsequent measurement

The Group calculates and recognizes interest income for each period
of the lease term at a fixed periodic interest rate. The periodic interest
rate refers to the implicit discount rate used to determine the net lease
investment (in the case of a sublease, if the interest rate implicit in the
sublease cannot be determined, the discount rate of the original lease
will be used (as adjusted based on the initial direct costs relating to
the sublease)), or the revised discount rate as determined according to
relevant requirements when the variation of the financial lease is not
accounted for as a separate lease, and the condition is satisfied that
the lease will be classified as a finance lease if the variation becomes
effective at the commencement date of the lease.

(3 Accounting of lease variations

When there is a variation of the finance lease and the following
conditions are simultaneously met, the Group accounts for the
variation as a separate lease: a. the variation extends the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or more leased assets; b. the
additional consideration is equal to the separate price of the enlarged

scope of the lease as adjusted for the circumstances of the contract.

If a variation of a finance lease is not accounted for as a separate
lease, and the condition is satisfied that the lease will be classified
as an operating lease if the variation becomes effective at the
commencement date of the lease, the Group will account for it as a

new lease from the effective date of the lease variation, and use the
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net lease investment before the effective date of the lease variation as
the book value of the leased assets.

2) Accounting of operating leases

@ Accounting of rentals

In each period of the lease term, the Group uses the straight-line
method to recognize lease receipts from operating leases as rental
income.

@ Incentives provided

Where a rental-free period is provided, the Group allocates the total
rent over the entire lease term without deducting the rent-free period
on a straight-line basis, and recognizes rental income in the rent-free
period. If the Group bears certain expenses of the lessee, the expenses
shall be deducted from the total rental income, and the balance of the
rental income after deduction shall be allocated during the lease term.
(3 Initial direct costs

The initial direct costs incurred by the Group related to operating
leases shall be capitalized to the costs of the underlying assets of the
lease, and shall be charged to the current profit and loss in installments
over the lease term on the same basis as the rental income.

@ Depreciation

For the fixed assets under operating leases, the Group adopts the
depreciation policies for similar assets to provide for depreciation.
For other assets under operating leases, systematic and reasonable
methods are used for amortization.

(® Variable lease payments

The variable lease payments received by the Group related to
operating leases and not included in the lease receipts are included in
the current profit and loss when they are actually incurred.

(6) Variation of operating lease

When there is a variation of an operating lease, the Group will
account for it as a new lease from the effective date of the variation,
and the lease receipts received in advance or receivable related to the
lease before the variation will be treated as the receipts for the new
lease.

30.Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities of
the Group are calculated and recognized based on the difference

(temporary differences) between tax bases and carrying amounts of
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assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax asset is recognized for
the deductible losses that are deductible against taxable profit in
subsequent years in accordance with the requirements under tax laws.
No deferred tax liability is recognized for temporary difference arising
from initial recognition of goodwill. No deferred income tax assets
or deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for a temporary
difference arising from initial recognition of asset or liability due to a
transaction other than a business combination, which affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (or deductible loss). At balance
sheet date, deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates for the period when
the asset is expected to be recovered or the liability is expected to be
settled.

The Group shall recognize the deferred income tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which any deductible temporary difference, deductible loss or tax
deduction can be utilized.

31.Discontinued operation

Discontinued operation refers to a component of the Group which
meets one of the following requirements and can be distinguish
separately and has been already disposed of or classified as held-for-
sale:

(1) the component represents an independent major line of
business or a major independent geographical area of operations;
(2) the component is part of a plan for the contemplated disposal
of an independent major line of business or a major independent
geographical area of operations; (3) the component is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively for the purpose of resale.

32.Changes of significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates

(1) Changes of significant accounting policies

There is no change in significant accounting policies of the Group for
the reporting period.

(2) Changes of significant accounting estimates

There is no change in the significant accounting estimates of the

Group for the reporting period.
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1. B V. TAXATION
1. FEBRM AR 1. Main types of tax and tax rates
Fotd Rzl i
Type of tax Tax basis Tax rate
W{ER JERBA 0%. 3%. 6%.
VAT Taxable income 9%. 13%
IR MR RS B AR 70
Urban maintenance and construction tax Amount of actual payable turnover tax
FEEN M BRSNS R
. 3%
Education surcharge Amount of actual payable turnover tax
7T HE B B AR 204
Local education surcharge Amount of actual payable turnover tax
T IHE AR - ERRRU
Tax on land use Land area Fixed rate
G 5 R IFAER) 70% sARBIN 1.2% =% 12%
Property taxes 70% of original value of the properties or rental income 1.2% or 12%
ke UGS JEAAFE 1S HE

Enterprise income tax

Amount of taxable income

25%
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VI. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For data in the financial statements as disclosed below, “beginning
of the period” represents 1 January 2021, “end of the period”
represents 30 June 2021, “the period” represents the six months

ended 30 June 2021 and the monetary unit shall be RMB, unless

BB 2 N RS TT, specified otherwise.
1. BWEE 1.Monetary funds
202146 H30H 2020412 H 31 H
PR RS AR (REZ)
TEHH Items
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
FEAFH A Cash on hand 615,381.60 773,462.50
SRATIERK Cash in bank 34,795,424.98 112,997,837.75
HUE®ES Other monetary funds 400,464,236.62 476,550,967.82
&5t Total 435,875,043.20 590,322,268.07
2. MR R 2.BILLS RECEIVABLES
(1) FE S hR A (1) Classification of bills receivables
202146 H30H 2020412 H 31 H
BREH CRESHIZ) BREH (AR¥A%)
IHH Item
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December
(Unaudited) 2020 (Audited)
[EE ey Commercial drafts 12,100,000.00 20,700,000.00

INet Subtotal 12,100,000.00 20,700,000.00
T8 BEERME Less: Provision for bad debt 35,090.00 60,030.00
&5t Total 12,064,910.00 20,639,970.00

(2) 722021 4 6 A 30 HEHRES

(2) Pledged bills receivables as at 30 June 2021

FRIRE NS SR 4
2021 4F 6 H 30 HE & #f&HH
CRESERZ)

HE Item
Pledged amount as at 30 June 2021
(Unaudited)
[EE S Commercial drafts 2,600,000.00
&5t Total 2,600,000.00
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(3) #2021 6 A 30 HELEFHK (3) Bills receivables endorsed or discounted as at 30 June 2021 but
WA BL7E ¥ 7 BB R H MR B R not mature at the balance sheet date
L2t
2021 4 6 A 30 H# R 2021 4 6 A 30 HARK L
ERR R OREGER) TERERE CRISER)
HH Item
Amount derecognised as at Amount not derecognised as
30 June 2021 (Unaudited) at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited)
T S o Commercial drafts - 9,500,000.00
&5 Total - 9,500,000.00
(4) 122021 4 6 A 30 HARFLERH (4) As at 30 June 2021, no bills were reclassified to trade receivables
BB K A L R AR 0 R due to inability of the issuers to settle the bills.
(5) #HIERSHE B FEYIR (5) Classification by the methods for making provisions for bad
debt
A 2021 4F 6 A 30 HERRE CRESHERX)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited)
HRHIRRAH ARG
Book balance Provision for bad debt
i ificati S 7 AT ARfE{A
kel Classification T
R | LB (%) PR | WEREAR
(%)
Lifetime
Percentage expected
Amount Amount Book value
(%) credit loss rate
(%)
I8
fﬁ B " | Bad debt provision made
at 2 | on individual basis i i i ) i
HRHEM
H & .
N Bad debt provision made
iR ] . . 12,100,000.00 100.00 | 35,090.00 0.29| 12,064,910.00
on a collective basis
HRIE
BB AH | .
N Aging portfolio 12,100,000.00 100.00 | 35,090.00 0.29| 12,064,910.00
=
gf B Low risk portfolio - - - - -
& Total 12,100,000.00 100.00 | 35,090.00 -| 12,064,910.00
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#2020 4E 12 A 31 HEpEE (%)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
HR T AR AR EARIE
Book balance Provision for bad debt
E=pal) Classification = o ~ HRMEAE
S| B (%) g | EIRAUTEUN
- - PR (%)
Lifetime
Percentage
Amount %) Amount expected credit Book value
° loss rate (%)
2 B IE | Bad debt
12 B BR #E | provision made on - _ _ B R
5 individual basis
%40 & %f | Bad debt
FE I AR #E | provision made on 20,700,000.00 100.00 | 60,030.00 0.29| 20,639,970.00
# a collective basis
fREREHA | Aging portfolio 20,700,000.00 100.00 | 60,030.00 0.29| 20,639,970.00
i 4
E}E Fed Low risk portfolio - - - - -
(=)
o Total 20,700,000.00|  100.00| 60,030.00 -| 20,639,970.00

D S FHE R IR AR

1) Bad debt provision for bills receivables made on a collective basis

B 2021 4 6 A 30 HEREH CRESHERK)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited)
HRMY Age e N
HRTHI BRAH ERHREEM FHEELHE (%)
Book balance Provision for bad debt Provision ratio (%)
14PN Within 1 year 12,100,000.00 35,090.00 0.29
&t Total 12,100,000.00 35,090.00 0.29

w1 BIRHR A AR SR ST E SR [
IR CASEL AR PE B AR HOREIHIRY
TSR ST HE SR ) R E RS IR &,
SRR R SR AR I T P 4R R AT
FeBIEH(E IR E R,

FE 20 AR BRI E IR AR
1HEZN,
(6) AHARMHE. Welml, #E [ () B L
TRIHARME
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Note 1: For the aging portfolio comprising the amounts of the
commercial drafts held as at the end of the period and the commercial
drafts discounted as at the end of the period but not mature at the
balance sheet date, the impairment losses of credit are provided for
with reference to the expected credit loss rates for the parent company
oftrade receivables.

Note 2: The age of the aforementioned bills receivables of the Group
were within one year.

(6) Provisions for bad debt accrued, recovered and reversed for bills

receivables during the period
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#E 20214 6 A 30 Hik
FNEA S BE CRASEZ)
2020412 A 31 ch for the si the ended 202146 H30H
, anges for the six months ende -
Rk (b 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) i ORAge )
B | Category \
w2 LrqE ] S B
Balance as at 31
Recovered or | Written back or Balance as at 30 June
December 2020 Accrued
. reversed written off 2021 (Unaudited)
(Audited)
M¥K | Commercial
g drafis 60,030.00 - 24,940.00 - 35,090.00
ant Total 60,030.00 - 24,940.00 - 35,090.00
3. UK 3.TRADE RECEIVABLES
2021 £ 6 A 30 HEREH 2020 4£ 12 A 31 HEREE
THH A Name of item CRigzgo (RO
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
T BR X Trade receivables 780,357,309.35 746,721,441.41
T EARMEM | Less: Provision for bad debt 29,439,173.03 29,166,987.34
1FAE Net 750,918,136.32 717,554,454.07

(D) R IR R

(1) Accounts receivable by the method of provisioning for bad debt

#2021 4 6 A 30 HEREE CRESHERK)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited)
SR AR BEARIE
Book balance Provision for bad debt
el Classification P E 7 A e HRIEE
AR | R (%) BRE | B RS
(%)
Lifetime
Percentage .
Amount ) Amount | expected credit Book value
° loss rate (%)
4B TE S | Provision for bad
FRBEERME | debt made on 23,094,569.76 2.96 | 23,010,577.26 99.64 83,992.50
1 individual basis
440 &5t | Provision for bad
FRIEARE | debt made ona 757,262,739.59 97.04| 6,428,595.77 0.85| 750,834,143.82
i collective basis
HRERAHE | Aging portfolio 757,262,739.59 97.04 | 6,428,595.77 0.85| 757,262,738.74
&5t Total 780,357,309.35 100.00 | 29,439,173.03 -| 750,918,136.32
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BE 2020 4F 12 A 31 HEREE (B8

Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)

HR AT AR AR BEHREE(
| Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt R T
S EfF TEIE
S| L (0 eu|
FHERE (%)
Lifetime expected
Amount Percentage(%) Amount P Book value
credit loss rate(%)
. | Provision for bad
TR BLIEG B
§ debt made on 23,094,569.76 3.09 | 23,010,577.26 99.64 83,992.50
HRHEM o )
individual basis
i s ... | Provision for bad
AR
debt made on a 723,626,871.65 96.91| 6,156,410.08 0.85 | 717,470,461.57
R ) )
collective basis
HRERAH & Aging portfolio 723,626,871.65 96.91| 6,156,410.08 0.85 | 717,470,461.57
a Total 746,721,441.41 100.00 | 29,166,987.34 - | 717,554,454.07
1) #eH G EHE IR AR 1) Bad debt provision for bills receivables made on a collective basis
B 2021 4 6 F 30 HEREE CRESHER)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited)
RS Age
R ARAE BREE A SUVTEIIE ISR (%)
Book balance Provision for bad debt Lifetime expected credit loss rate (%)
14ER Within 1 year 727,404,032.50 2,511,945.13 0.35
1-2 4 1 to 2 years 28,639,400.03 3,452,547.73 12.06
2-34F 2 to 3 years 1,215,661.52 460,457.37 37.88
3EME More than 3 years 3,645.54 3,645.54 100.00
ant Total 757,262,739.59 6,428,595.77 -
(2) MEWERZIZERES SR (2) Trade receivable by aging

(AN R R 2 B, AR E I R Before accepting new customers, the Group assessed the credit worthiness of
R Wp s fig
N a5 N o tential clients and set corresponding credit limits according to the internal
SRR E R PG ER Y
. - credit assessment policies. The Group applies different credit policies to
FHE SRR, REEERIE T ) Lo : )
different customers. Credit period is generally six months. As for commodity
ANIRIRHE FBOR 15 S — R R 75 M H sales, the trade receivables and operating revenue are recognised and the age
%‘FF%ID%@%%, Lﬂﬁ%ﬂ%i@@%ﬁ%‘éﬁ of the same is calculated after the control right has been transferred to the
1F s ISR R 8 SN TR R buyers.
FEBRGAET SRR
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2021 4 6 H 30 HEREH CRESHAL)

2020 4 12 A 31 HERRE (K884

Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)

Tl | Age WeERA | LEBI (%) SR WA | LEBI (%) e
Percentage Provision for Percentage Provision
Book balance Book balance
(%) bad debt (%) for bad debt
14EBL | Within 1
N 727,592,442.21 93.24 2,589,851.13 | 695,596,183.09 93.15 2,159,815.83
year
1-24F 1 to 2 years 30,308,875.26 3.88 5,122,022.96 29,112,315.62 3.90 6,821,027.12
2-34F 2 to 3 years 7,847,764.91 1.01 7,093,560.75 7,754,342.27 1.04 5,927,543.96
34, | More than 3
14,608,226.97 1.87 | 14,633,738.19 14,258,600.43 1.91| 14,258,600.43
+ years
an Total 780,357,309.35 100.00 | 29,439,173.03 | 746,721,441.41 100.00 | 29,166,987.34

(3) BEAMETHRFECEBMER
RAEAIFR
(4) AHFEHE, #E EgmE) R

H,

IR DL

sheet date.

in the year

(3) No amounts were past due but not impaired as at the balance

(4) Provisions for bad debts accrued and reversed (or recovered)

2020 £ 12 A
31 HERE (&€

HE 2021 £F 6 A 30 H LA SE S CREHR)

2021 4E 6 H 30 HER%H

%) Changes for the six months ended 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) CRIEH %)
Balance as at 31 EiETd EOHIEEEN A | YEl s | S e
Balance as at 30 June 2021
December 2020 The impact of the change in Recovered | Written back .
. Accrued (Unaudited)
(Audited) the scope of the merge or reversed | or written off
29,166,987.34 | 272,185.69 - - - 29,439,173.03

(5) ABIARA I REUHRTK,

(5) No trade receivables were written off in the period.

4. HEWCHK DR 4, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FINANCING
2021 4F 6 A 30 HER%H 2020 £ 12 A 31 HEREE
(RIS HRL) Ge: 2 )
HH Item
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
RIT A ST EZE Bank acceptance bills 7,874,680.55 25,799,692.96
=i Total 7,874,680.55 25,799,692.96

- 086 -



v BIEEmERHBERZLE
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5. B 5.Prepayments
2021 4 6 H 30 HEREE CRESHRRO | 2020 45 12 A 31 HERRE (58810
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) | Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
" e | Bl () o] bl ()
Amount | Proportion (%) Amount | Proportion (%)
14D Within 1 year 360,730,291.64 97.31 252,225,722.68 99.39
1-2 4¢ 1-2 years 9,508,647.15 2.57 1,395,388.38 0.55
2-3 % 2-3 years 358,628.39 0.10 89,754.86 0.04
3ELAE More than 3 years 92,501.80 0.02 55,507.10 0.02
&5t Total 370,690,068.98 100.00 253,766,373.02 100.00
6. HAhREGK 6.0ther receivables
. s 2021 4 6 A 30 HERRE CRESERIZD | 2020 4 12 A 31 HERRE (58810
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) | Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
RIS Interests receivable - -
JELS R Dividend receivable _ B
HAREREK | Other receivables 12,343,872.32 12,839,764.71
ot Total 12,343,872.32 12,839,764.71

6.1 HAth K

6.1 Other receivables

2021 4F 6 3 30 H B CRACH )

2020 4F 12 A 31 HERAE (K%

HH Items name Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020

(Unaudited) (Audited)
HoAth R Other receivables 16,209,731.89 16,705,624.28
I BEIARMEMS | Less:Provision for bad debt 3,865,859.57 3,865,859.57
i) Net amount 12,343,872.32 12,839,764.71

(1) HAEBG I B 2

(1)Classification of other receivables by nature

2021 4F 6 A 30 HEREE (RESHER) 2020 4 12 A 31 HEREE (A&

UEMNE Nature of amounts

Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
B e Deposit 11,177,583.90 11,698,878.77
A Current accounts 4,383,142.62 3,859,961.37
% Reserve 643,107.17 1,140,885.94
FHopt Others 5,898.20 5,898.20
G Total 16,209,731.89 16,705,624.28
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(2) Provisions for bad debt of other receivables

i 154 5 REEL SRR )
&t
First stage Second stage Third stage
R I2M8A | BEFEITEN | SR IEEEUTEE
@EE@{% Provision for bad debt ﬁﬁﬂ{%ﬁﬁiﬁ {%‘ﬂajﬁg& (ﬂié’é ﬁﬁ*ﬁig& (E§§§31§
ES AAFFIRE ) FHTE ) Total
12-month | Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
expected credit credit loss (not | credit loss (credit-
loss credit-impaired) impaired)
20211 H1H Balance on 1 January

BRER (REH %)

2021 (Audited)

3,865,859.57

3,865,859.57

20211 H1HE
At 188 WA R T Bk A
TEAW] (RE2EH%)

Book balance of
other receivables on

1 January 2021 in the

period
AHAEHE Accrued for the period - - _ _
A HA ] Reversed in the period - _ _ _
A AT Written off in the period - - _ _
A KA Cancelled in the period - - _ _
HAthssH) Other changes - - _ _

2021 % 6 A 30 H
BREE CREEEZ)

Balance on 30 June
2021 (Unaudited)

3,865,859.57

3,865,859.57
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7.8 7.Inventories
2021 4F 6 A 30 HEREE CREHIZ) 2020 4 12 A 31 HfREH (R
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
16 | ttoms PRTORRAE | TPISRREDEM | BRUORE(E | GBI | OB | SEmEE
Provision Provision
Book balance for inventory Book value Book balance for inventory Book value
impairment impairment
J&EFE | Goods in
593,474,173.69 3,136,215.98 | 590,337,957.71 | 502,352,990.13 3,001,808.91 | 499,351,181.22
Boh | stock
##HH | Goods
- - -1 85,657,695.50 85,657,695.50
B | sold
A5t | Total 593,474,173.69 3,136,215.98 | 590,337,957.71 | 588,010,685.63 3,001,808.91 | 585,008,876.72

8. Hifthinidhia pe

8.0ther current assets

2021 4 6 A 30 HR%H 2020 £ 12 A 31 HEREE
CRES#ER) (RRHEHZ)
IHH Items
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
AT ETE R A Input tax to be credited 41,065,221.07 44,543,885.83
g H Deferred expenses 319,045.96 833,493.45
&5t Total 41,384,267.03 45,377,379.28
9. ¥ 9.Fixed assets
2021 4 6 A 30 HEREE 2020 412 A 31 HERAH
CRESER) (&%)
TEHH Items
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
[ Fixed assets 345,442,686.42 354,551,660.22
(] 7 T R Liquidation of fixed assets _ R
Exis Total 345,442,686.42 354,551,660.22
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9.1 Fixed assets

(1) Breakdown of fixed assets
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HH

Items

B3 )

A B

LR

B

Buildings and

structures

Machinery and

equipment

Transportation

facilities

Office

equipment

—. HREEE

1. Original book value

1.2020 4 12
H 31 H # #
(e %)

1.Balance as at 31
December 2020
(Audited)

329,848,603.45

90,745,331.24

17,809,785.77

9,514,035.93

447,917,756.39

2. ARS8
HH ORKSH %)

2.Addition for the
period (Unaudited)

1,604,091.40

525,442.48

217,926.20

2,347,460.08

1) IsE

(1) Purchase

1,604,091.40

525,442.48

217,926.20

2,347,460.08

(2) TR
LLIN

(2) Transfer from
construction in-

progress

(3) EEH
m

(3) Addition as a
result of business

combination

3. AW &
HHORKE )

3.Reduction for the
period (Unaudited)

140,599.64

115,085.59

292,298.36

547,983.59

(1) pEEHR
JBE

(1) Disposal or

retirement

140,599.64

115,085.59

292,298.36

547,983.59

42021 6 A
30 HER# Ok
R

4.Balance as at
30 June 2021
(Unaudited)

329,708,003.81

92,349,422.64

18,220,142.66

9,439,663.77

449,717,232.88

=L HREHH

II. Accumulated

depreciation

1.2020 4E 12
H 31 H # %
(G822

1.Balance as at 31
December 2020
(Audited)

44,256,892.75

31,778,934.07

8,798,819.24

8,531,450.11

93,366,096.17

2. R 8
HHORKE R

2.Addition for the
period (Unaudited)

5,429,018.17

4,463,549.98

1,117,699.90

288,221.77

11,298,489.82

(1) &2

(1) Provision

5,429,018.17

4,463,549.98

1,117,699.90

288,221.77

11,298,489.82

(2) EEEH
1m

(2) Addition as a
result of business

combination

3. AW &
ORISR

3.Reduction for the
period (Unaudited)

115,085.59

274,953.94

390,039.53

(1) pEEsHR
Ji%

(1) Disposal or

retirement

115,085.59

274,953.94

390,039.53

4.2021 4 6 A
30 HEREE (R
KR

4.Balance as at
30 June 2021
(Unaudited)

49,685,910.92

36,242,484.05

9,801,433.55

8,544,717.94

104,274,546.46
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HH

Items

B3 )

A B TR B

B

Buildings and

structures

Machinery and Transportation

equipment facilities

Office

equipment

=, IREEA

1II. Impairment

provision

1.2020 4E 12
H31H # #®
(GE:229)

1.Balance as at 31
December 2020
(Audited)

2. ARS8
T ORKSH )

2. Addition for the
period
(Unaudited)

3. AR &
T ORKSH )

3. Reduction for the
period
(Unaudited)

4.2021 7 6 A
30 HEREE R
REEI%)

4.Balance as at
30 June 2021
(Unaudited)

P4, SR EE

IV . Book value

1.2021 £ 6 H
30 H AR i {8
CREEH L)

1.Book value as
at 30 June 2021
(Unaudited)

280,022,092.89

56,106,938.59 8,418,709.11

894,945.83

345,442,686.42

2.2020 4 12
A 31 HARMHIHE
B (W)

2.Book value as at
31 December 2020
(Audited)

285,591,710.70

58,966,397.17 | 9,010,966.53

982,585.82

354,551,660.22

BE 1 AREBINIEEEES, mER
TREEARSEES 0, AHARE IR 25t
FilErh, AAEHE 11,298,489.82 T,
AEED> FEHREEEERE, BR
ELHR R B (AR A 5 FH ) 1 i 3 P SR (E
8,972,750.95,

(2) R 2 P R o5 B 1 R

Note 1: RMBO was transferred from construction in progress into the
fixed assets increased in the period. RMB11,298,489.82 was accrued
in the period in the accumulative depreciation increased in the period.
Decrease in the period was due to disposal of fixed assets. The

original value of fixed assets with depreciation fully accrued at the

end of the period and still in use came in at RMB8,972,750.95.

(2) Fixed assets without getting ownership certificate ready

HH

Items

MR R

Book value

R PR e IR A

Reason for not getting ownership

certificate ready

JEEIN B 4 7y BRAC R P L

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Sorting

and Distribution Center

137,490,934.40

PERERE B

The application for ownership

certificate is still underway

aat

Total

137,490,934.40
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10. fERET AR 10.Construction in progress
. o 2021 4 6 H 30 HEREE CRESHIZ) 2020 4 12 A 31 HEREE (R%0
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
TE# T2 | Construction in progress 1,537,623.76 1,496,742.97
&5 Total 1,537,623.76 1,496,742.97
10.1 fEEE T2 10.1 Construction in progress
(1) TERETARAAMR (1) Breakdown of construction-in-progress
20214 6 A 30 AfREE CRESHEZ) 2020 4F 12 A 31 AR (#
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
HE Ttems MR T R AE TR EER HRR T (L M R A TRAEEE HRIA{E
Provision for Provision for
Book balance inventory Book value Book balance inventory Book value
impairment impairment
Hopthy Others 1,537,623.76 .| 1,537,623.76 |  1,496,742.97 S| 1,496,742.97
&wt | Total 1,537,623.76 .| 1,537,623.76 |  1,496,742.97 S| 1,496,742.97
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11. (R P 11.Right-of-use assets
FREEY) | AR peitadic] &t
Buildings | Machine
HH Items ¢ i Transportation
and and . Total
. vehicles
structures equipment
—., R RE 1. Original book value

1.2020 £ 12 A 31 H
B (R

1.Balance as at 31
December 2020 (Audited)

23,594,134.98

23,594,134.98

2. REI NG OR
KD

2.Addition for the period
(Unaudited)

1 A

(1) New lease

3. ARHIBD S OR
REE)

3.Reduction for the period
(Unaudited)

1) EE

(1) Disposal

42021 £ 6 A 30 H
BRER ORECHIZ)

4.Balance as at 30 June
2021 (Unaudited)

23,594,134.98

23,594,134.98

=, BEHE

II. Accumulated

1.2020 /£ 12 A 31 H
BREE (KR

1.Balance as at 31
December 2020 (Audited)

7,142,493.98

7,142,493.98

2. REI M B OR
&)

2.Addition for the period
(Unaudited)

1,470,228.70

1,470,228.70

(1) #HE

2. Addition for the period

1,470,228.70

1,470,228.70

3. AR HIEA B R
REE)

3.Reduction for the period
(Unaudited)

1) EE

(1) Disposal

4.2021 £ 6 A 30 H
R ORISR )

4.Balance as at 30 June
2021 (Unaudited)

8,612,722.68

8,612,722.68

=, HRmEE 11, Book value
1.2021 4 6 H 30 H | 1.Balance as at 30 June 14.981.412.30 14.981 41,30
FRIEE(E CRESHD) | 2021 (Unaudited) e ) el

2.2020 £ 12 A 31 H
AREEE (REEH%)

2.Balance as at 31
December 2020 (Audited)

16,451,641.00

16,451,641.00
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12. MIB% A 12.Intangible assets
e R FHAR &R &t
HH Items Computer Customer
Land use rights Total
software resources
—. HRmRE 1. Original book value

1.2020 4 12 A 31 H R4
(€S8 229)

1.Balance as at 31 December

2020 (Audited)

164,253,763.65

18,799,442.16

5,398,773.56

188,451,979.37

2. AN B ORKSH

2.Addition for the period

- 15,486.73 - 15,486.73
%) (Unaudited)
1) e (1) Purchase - 15,486.73 - 15,486.73
(2) Transfer from construction-
(2) TR TR - - - .

inprogress

3. AR B OREEH
%)

3.Reduction for the period
(Unaudited)

2,700,943.40

2,700,943.40

(1) & (1) Disposal - -1 2,700,943.40 2,700,943.40
4.20214F 6 A 30 HER#E (R | 4.Balance as at 30 June 2021

- 164,253,763.65 | 18,814,928.89 | 2,697,830.16 | 185,766,522.70
T (Unaudited)
. REHS II. Accumulated amortization

1.2020 4 12 A 31 H R %#

1.Balance as at 31 December

) 28,781,188.09 | 7,422,838.42 56,352.99 | 36,260,379.50
[€E:20) 2020 (Audited)
2. RHAMIIN<BRE (RALH | 2.Addition for the period
. 2,160,139.66 955,031.66 269,938.68 3,385,110.00
) (Unaudited)
(D #HE 2. Addition for the period 2,160,139.66 955,031.66 |  269,938.68 |  3,385,110.00
(2) BEAPHM (1) Provision - - R R
3. ARHAE D R (RESHE | 3. Reduction for the period
. - - 157,555.04 157,555.04
%) (Unaudited)
(1) e (1) Disposal - -|  157,555.04 157,555.04
4.20214F 6 A 30 HER#E (R | 4.Balance as at 30 June 2021
. . 30,941,327.75 | 8,377,870.08 168,736.63 | 39,487,934.46
KREHL) (Unaudited)
=, BEER I11. Impairment provision

1.2020 4 12 A 31 H R %
G2 229)

1.Balance as at 31 December

2020 (Audited)

2. AN EH ORI HE
)

2.Addition for the period
(Unaudited)

(1) #HE

2. Addition for the period

3. A B CREEH
)

3.Reduction for the period
(Unaudited)

(1) e (1) Disposal - - - _
4.2021 4 6 1 30 H R (R | 4.Balance as at 30 June 2021
SERL) (Unaudited) ) ) ) )
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LR Gl NS HRER &t
JHH Items ) Computer Customer
Land use rights Total
software resources
P, AR EIE 1V . Book value

1.2021 4 6 A 30 H ik ifi
fEE CRESHE)

1.Balance as at 30 June 2021
(Unaudited)

133,312,435.90

10,437,058.81

2,529,093.53

146,278,588.24

2.2020 4 12 A 31 H iR
R{E (RS9

2.Balance as at 31 December

2020 (Audited)

135,472,575.56

11,376,603.74

5,342,420.57

152,191,599.87

Fh: BE 202146 A 30 H, &A&EH
JHEIE0 16 P S B T I ST B 7

13. W%
(1) HEEE

Note :

13.Goodwill

internal research and development of the Group.

(1) Original value of goodwill

As at 30 June 2021, no intangible asset arose through the

WE
(e

Name of

the investee

2020 12 A AHARE AR 202146 A 30
31 AfREE (&% Reduction for the | HIEREH CRESH
) Addition for the period period %)
ﬁ:‘%é‘ﬁ? Hop EE FAth
Balance as at TR Balance as at
31 December As a result 30 June 2021
2020(Audited) of business | Others | Disposal |  Others (Unaudited)
combination

5 Al Zhuhai Ch:
PK 1 M1 5% | Zhuhai Charmacy |- 0 507 19 ; ; - S| 4,567,297.19
UNEIF WA Company Note2
Guangzhou
B M Al 3
2 Charmacy 26,328.12 - - - - 26,328.12
Company Note2
Huizhou
= A
o Charmacy 2,896,416.16 - - - - 2,896,416.16
ARElEEL
Company Notel
ast 7,490,041.47 - - - - 7,490,041.47
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(2) Provision for impairment of goodwill

2020412 A A HARE 0 AEAR D 202146 H
31 HEREH (B 30 HERE CR
WG B 4 | Name of the %) Addition for the period Reduction for the period 5K
B investee Balance as at 31 e HAth RE Hfth Balance as at
December 2020 30 June 2021
(Audited) Accrued Others Disposal Others (Unaudited)
Zhuhai
PRUFAIZE/\T] | Charmacy 1,465,937.31 - - - -| 1,465,937.31
Company
Guangzhou
BEINAISE/AE] | Charmacy - - _ _ _ _
Company
Huizhou
HUNAIRATE | Charmacy - - - - - -
Company
&5t Total 1,465,937.31 - - - -| 1,465,937.31

FE 1 A ER 2020 4 7 H Uk B
BIZE 0 F] 100% BERE, R T NREE
289.64 BT E,
FE2: AHEIR 20172 A, 201746
Ao BIBOHERIFAISE A F], BEMNAIER
FIRIREAE, WA T 456.73 Hiot. 2.63
EUCHIRE, BTG A B
BYVARERI AR — 8 AREEIARE
BT TIRERIE, SRR, RHIAR

TFAEIRE TE DL

Note 1: The Company acquired 100% equity
Charmacy Company in July 2020, resulting

RMB2.8964 million.

stake in Huizhou

in a goodwill of

Note 2: The Company acquired Zhuhai Charmacy Company and

Guangzhou Charmacy Company in February 2017 and June 2017,

respectively, resulting in a goodwill of RMB4.5673 million and

RMB0.0263 million. The asset group a goodwill belongs to is the

same with that at initial recognition of the goodwill. The Group

carried out an impairment test of goodwill at the end of the period,

finding no impairment in the period.
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14. REIHBRLH 14.Long-term expenses to be amortized
2020 4 12 2021 # 6
Fn | A Foll
31 HEREE (% AR ARS8 o 30 HERE Ok
) ~ s
JEHH Items Other
Balance as at . . X Balance as at
Addition for | Amortization reduction
31 December . X 30 June 2021
X the period | for the period for .
2020 (Audited) X (Unaudited)
the period
N Zhuhai Charmacy warehouse
syEy=4:
igiﬁi%ﬁ installation project 4,625,747.72 -] 355,819.32 - | 4,269,928.40
i (BRIPAIE A T )
Huizhou Charmacy warehouse
TN A
igﬁjﬁ%gg installation project 2,112,896.93 9,300.00 | 310,565.41 -| 1,811,631.52
R
(RINBIE AL TR )
Project of Delivery Centre Affiliated
BEM PIAEL 3% | to Guangzhou Logistics and Delivery
HC PR B L% | Centre 1,209,769.72 - 61,513.74 -1 1,148,255.98
HUL TR CBE NP 326 HhoCo B 1 P 326 o
DIFE)
. ;| Installation expenses for the guard
%;iig;q: house and delivery platform 126,720.86 - 4,109.86 - 122,611.00
re (BT A T )
BRifF 2 5 84 (& | Zhuhai canteen renovation project
N 10,395.14 - 10,395.14 - -
T (BRI RERETE) ’ ’
RN A ZE 4 | Shenzhen office renovation project
e - - 565,274.31 40,376.74 - 524,897.57
[CEN CRIAZEB T ) ’ ’ ’
A Total 8,085,530.37 574,574.31 | 782,780.21 -1 7,877,324.47

15. JELEFTF B PE AR RE FTAHE £ 1
(1) RESHEBRIEE S H e

(1) Deferred income tax assets not offset

15.Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

p:
m

2021 4 6 H 30 HER# CRASHR)

2020 £ 12 A 31 HERE (B8R

Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)

Ttems JRIEFT SR AR R 22 5 IRIEFT SR CIE SIS
Deferred income | Deductible temporary Deferred income | Deductible temporary
tax assets differences tax assets differences
R Provision for
YA PE IR E A o 9,119,025.07 36,476,100.21 9,023,671.47 36,094,685.82
asset impairment
N Government
BUF B 133,309.31 533,237.24 190,441.87 761,767.49
grants
QS 7] Deductible losses 837,639.51 3,350,558.03 78,521.43 314,085.71
Unrealized
REHNE | )
" internal sales gains - - - -
S AN
and losses
&t Total 10,089,973.89 40,359,895.48 9,292,634.77 37,170,539.02
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(2) Deferred income tax liabilities not offset

2021 4 6 A 30 HEREE CRECHZ) 2020 4F 12 A 31 HEREE (K%
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
HH Items . B N R )
RIEFTISI AE | BRI ER | RETSH A | BRI E R
Deferred income Taxable temporary Deferred income Taxable temporary
tax liabilities differences tax liabilities differences
B L Py Unrealized internal
. A sales gains and 298,566.95 1,194,267.80
frifaci==istn
losses
Asset assessment
gains arising
AE @ — 12 il .
from business
TELEHE 12,890.18 51,560.69 12,890.18 51,560.69
. combinations not
PERPAE R
under common
control
&5 Total 12,890.18 51,560.69 311,457.13 1,245,828.49
16. FEWIE 16.Short-term borrowings
202146 A 30 H 2020412 H 31 H
N ) BREE ORESHZ) PREE (%)
e R Types of borrowings
Balance as at 30 June Balance as at 31
2021 (Unaudited) December 2020 (Audited)
[ELERIEE Credit borrowings 55,568,527.80 89,266,365.10
TR K Guaranteed borrowings 264,929,876.51 202,852,488.75
EiR UL IEEd Secured borrowings 118,547,333.63 148,594,522.04
B Pledged borrowings 60,107,687.51 76,721,056.28
o Borrowings from
PECE B | , . 39,500,000.00 18,484,640.00
discounted bills receivables
At Total 538,653,425.45 535,919,072.17

Rl SR BIR (ORI IR
B, EEAMRRKARCHEESHERA
R 167,781,321.45 Jt.,

Note : The Group has no short-term borrowings that have not yet been
repaid after maturity. The repaid amount after the balance sheet date

was RMB167,781,321.45.
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17. BN 5205 17.Bills payables
i —To0214F 6 A 30 HERE GRAESHERD | 2020 4F 12 A 31 AIRAE (KSR
PR Classification of bills
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) | Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
SRATHASTMEEZE | Bank acceptance bills 828,285,576.43 938,611,254.96
&3 Total 828,285,576.43 938,611,254.96

ARG IRHIR AT AR RUIRE I TE 1
F2ZWo

The age of the aforementioned bills payables of the Group were

within 1 year.

18. FERTIR: 18.TRADE PAYABLES

(1) BERTIRER (1) Trade payables

HE e 2021 4F 6 H 30 HERE CRECERD) | 2020 4F 12 A 31 HERE (ER)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) | Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)

iR Loans 637,338,131.93 550,254,913.32

R Equipment costs 2,019,102.47 13,371,029.16

HEEJEZK | Customer resources costs - 6,200,592.62

EL Total 639,357,234.40 569,826,535.10

(2) FERTBRFRIRES 2347
2021 4E 6 A 30 H, MBEMEREKIZR

(2) Aging analysis of trade payables

Below is an aging analysis of trade payables based on transaction date

Zy HEARBRER XA 40 T - as at 30 June 2021:
—~ N 2021 4 6 A 30 HEREH CRESHFZ) 2020 4F 12 A 31 HEREH (RF%)
AIX c
¢ Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
14EDAN | Within 1 year 636,156,968.36 567,810,738.30
1-24F 1 to 2 years 1,640,670.09 890,901.02
2-3 4 2 to 3 years 1,057,449.49 757,753.60
34EPLLE | More than 3 years 502,146.46 367,142.18
aF Total 639,357,234.40 569,826,535.10
19. AR 19.Contract liabilities
_— 2021 4 6 A 30 HEREH CREGER) 2020 £ 12 7 31 HERE (&%)
'H tem
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
53K | Payment for goods 1,883,441.20 5,013,052.93
&5t | Total 1,883,441.20 5,013,052.93

22021 4F 6 A 30 H, A%HKEMARE
i 1 E LM EREGRAR,
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20. HERTI TN

20.Salaries payable to employees

(1) FEATIR T a8 o33

(1) Classification of salaries payable to employees

2020 £ 12 A 31

202146 H30H

R AR AR N
HERME (S | maE CRasER
TEHH Items Balance as at 31
Addition for the | Reduction for the | Balance as at 30 June
December 2020
period period 2021 (Unaudited)
(Audited)
I Short-term
S _ 5,788,619.82 | 41,877,190.28 | 43,017,036.40 4,648,773.70
remuneration

MR R AR - BT

Post-employment

benefits —Defined

2,533,247.67

2,533,247.67

fixeayil Lo
contribution plan
_ Termination - - - -
BEIRAER
benefits
—E N EHRH AL | Other benefits due
HEA] within one year ) ) ) )
aat Total 5,788,619.82 | 44,410,437.95 | 45,550,284.07 4,648,773.70
(2) FEHAHT M (2) Short-term remuneration
2020 12 A 202146 A 30
31 HEREH (& AHAE A | BERE CREG
TEHH Items w) w0
Balance as at 31 Balance as at
Addition for the Reduction for the
December 2020 30 June 2021
period period
(Audited) (Unaudited)
L3 BB, | Salares, bonuses, 5,730,367.82 | 30,694,392.51 | 31,831,018.94| 4,593,741.39
ERHEFI G allowances and subsidies 2 ' o : e : e '
B T rE A 2 Staff welfare payments - 2,928,874.00 2,928,874.00 -
R E Social insurance premiums - 1,238,745.83 1,238,745.83 -
Hrr: #{# | Of which: medical i
Aq:‘ B R w‘ o mediertmtranes - 1,012,574.77 1,012,574.77 -
554 premium
T < In dustrial inj
LR ey - 21,688.45 21,688.45 -
[ insurance premium
i Maternity i
R i elrm ymsanes - 204,482.61 204,482.61 -
5t premium
(LR AR Housing provident fund - 2,928,874.00 2,928,874.00 -
T & 48 E AR | Labor union expenses and
TR staff education expenses 58,252.00 350,894.07 354,113.76 55,032.31
Hith Others - - _ _
& Total 5,788,619.82 | 39,380,526.24 | 40,520,372.36 4,648,773.70

- 100 -



v BIEEmERHBERZLE

#-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

(3) mE iR rat#l

AL HE 2 MBS R AL AL &
TREGETE, ARRETE], ARBIZIE
BURHIA BRUE [ st BT # .
PR ERSIAF RS, AR RS
— RS, BRI HR ERRE
NE WHE SR AR PE A

AR ASAE D B TR, RER

(3) Defined contribution plan

The Group participated in social insurance plans operated by the

government authorities according to the regulations. Pursuant to the

plans, the Group made contributions to those plans in compliance with

the relevant provisions of local government authorities. Apart from

the aforesaid contributions, the Group assumed nofurther payment

obligations. The corresponding expenses shall be credited to the profit or

loss for the period or the cost of related assets when incurred.

The Group's contributions payable to pension insurance plan and

faatBSFEEHMR: unemployment insurance plan for the year are respectively as follows:
2020412 A 31 202146 H30 H
- AHALE N AHIR D o
HEREE (K% 7 CREER)
HEH Items Balance as at 31 . . Balance as at
Addition for the Reduction for
December 2020 . : 30 June 2021
. period the period .
(Audited) (Unaudited)
FEARZEIRIR | Basic pension insurance -| 2,496,664.04 | 2,496,664.04 -
U 1 t
U 00 1 I | 36,583.63|  36,583.63 -
insurance premium
&5k Total -| 2,533,247.67 | 2,533,247.67 -

AR A JIE [ 2 B R SR A7 A T EI
78 A N R 2,533,247.67 7L, 1?2021
6 H 30 H, AEECLRHA 2R,

21. 2B

The Group's contribution payable to the defined contribution plan that

the Group participated in amounted to RMB2,533,247.67, which was
fully paid as at 30 June 2021.

21.Tax payables

2021 4F 6 A 30 HERE CR | 2020 4F 12 A 31 HERE
RER) (&%)

HH Items
Balance as at 30 June Balance as at 31 December
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Audited)
AR VAT 47,388,067.11 43,642,419.74
EERRIERH Enterprise income tax 8,983,542.46 14,284,219.38
EPNGRES Individual income tax 58,060.66 76,116.86
JEFER Property taxes 1,522,354.39 90,529.94
EN{ER Stamp duty 307,627.40 313,317.87
BT 4 M | Urban maintenance and construction tax 65,489.66 82,651.86
28 Bk Education surcharge 46,932.65 59,037.05
b R Local education surcharge 148,508.99 -
HAth R Other taxes 1,050.00 1,050.00
Exis Total 58,521,633.32 58,549,342.70
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2021 4 6 30 HERAH CRESHRL) | 2020 4 12 H 31 HERAH (R8#H%)
HH Items Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
AR Dividend payables 12,160,000.00 -
HAMESTEX | Other payables 11,487,809.53 13,765,328.93
A Total 23,647,809.53 13,765,328.93
22.1 HAth RS 3% 22.1 Other payables
(1) HAtpE ARG M E 4 (1) Classification of other payables by nature of payment
SORHE | Noturoof payment 2021 4 6 A 30 HEREE CRESHERD | 2020 48 12 A 31 HEREE (RREFR)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) | Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
TR Margin 6,541,862.78 7,851,287.63
A2 Intermediary expenses 3,393,009.00 4,193,008.98
JE T Transportation costs 6,660.00 824,694.99
SRR | Equity transfers 468,852.24 468,852.24
Hopt Others 1,077,425.51 427,485.09
At Total 11,487,809.53 13,765,328.93

23, —AENEIGIRIETEh 1 1

23.Non-current liabilities due within one year

2021 4 6 A 30 HEREH

2020 4 12 A 31 HER#H

g . (REGHR) (Ge:2 )
H em
Balance as at 30 June 2021 | Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Long-term b ings d
—ENERR R | o e e 31,789,154.77 31,835,266.89
within one year
L liabilities d ithi
—AENEIR AR | 2,749,456.85 2,685,301.66
one year
aat Total 34,538,611.62 34,520,568.55
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24. RIWHES

(1) RUMEZIHE

24.Long-term borrowings

(1) Classification of long-term borrowings

2021 4 6 A 30 HEREE

2020 4F 12 A 31 HRAH

CREEER) (RB#E=Z)
(&2 FER Types of borrowings = ~
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
HEAFE R Secured borrowings 134,450,647.51 150,290,837.33
INEF Subtotal 134,450,647.51 150,290,837.33
T: — 4 N B | Less: long-term borrowings due
31,789,154.77 31,835,266.89
AR HAME R within one year 2D 039,
A Total 102,661,492.74 118,455,570.44

(2) REMEHENHHE DT -

(2) Analysis of long-term borrowings' maturity date is as follows:

2021 4 6 A 30 HEREH

2020 4 12 A 31 HER#E

(ORISR (Ge:2 )
HH Items
Balance as at 30 June 2021 | Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
¥ e B8 3% H 1% —4F | Within one year after the
Y 31,789,154.77 31,835,266.89
W balance sheet date
. ., | Over one year but not more
YEABRARER

—4, EABEME

than two years after the balance

sheet date

31,588,153.32

31,588,152.92

BEAERH R
M4, ENBEAE

Over two years but not more
than five years after the balance

sheet date

71,073,339.42

86,867,417.52

BEPE AR H AR A
A

Over five years after the

balance sheet date

B FRETAEIETH
R P EIREOR

Less: Current liabilities due

within one year

31,789,154.77

31,835,266.89

AN
=d

Total

102,661,492.74

118,455,570.44

)

aE —ENERERCEIFE
“—ENEIEREAE" , 2RA
BFEErs. 23,

Note: The long-term borrowings due within one year have been
reclassified to “non-current liabilities due within one year” as

shown in Note VI. 23.
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25. g Al 25.Lease liabilities
2021 4F 6 H 30 HfREA 2020 4F 12 A 31 HEREE
RE®Z F&S
HE Hem (REBHE) (=)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December
(Unaudited) 2020 (Audited)

First fter the
e B R RS 14 e yearatier fie 2,749,456.85 3,592,344.76

balance sheet date

Second year after the

Vi BRI S 2 4 3,060,038.72 3,722,741.39
balance sheet date
Third fter th

e LR AR 3 4 e yearatierie 3,240,252.07 3,736,689.52
balance sheet date

PUBAERE Subsequent years 7,765,933.14 10,072,302.76
Total mini 1

BARR S S o O i s 19,459,083.67 21,124,078.43
payments

- Less: fii 1 t
W KRG eus: Tinance costs o 2,643,402.89 3,107,574.36

recognized

P; t val f mini
B R (R resent value ot minimam 16,815,680.78 18,016,504.07

lease payments

Including: I liabiliti
Hop: ENEIORE R | e 2,749,456.85 2,685,301.66

due within one year

L liabilities di fi
BRI L0 case Habififies Cue arter 14,066,223.93 15,331,202.41

one year

i —FERNFPNHEAECESIEE Note: The lease liabilities due within one year have been reclassified
“—tENZHA AR E A& , ZHRAK to “non-current liabilities due within one year” as shown in Note
FiEE7S, 23, VI.23.

26. IEHEWE 26.Deferred income

(1) IEIEN 25 53 H8 (1) Classification of deferred income

2020 4E 12 A 31 HER%E N 2021 4 6 A 30 HERHEE
- AN AR e
g N (R ORES L)
H em

Balance as at 31 December | Addition for the Reduction for | Balance as at 30 June 2021
2020 (Audited) period the period (Unaudited)
BURF#HB) | Government grants 761,767.49 228,530.25 533,237.24
= Total 761,767.49 - 228,530.25 533,237.24
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(2) BURFHiBIHHE

(2) Government grant program

202012 A 20214E6 H
. o | AT RIBD | AR A A . B PEARIE
BFMBE | 3L HRH (45 | | temEy | 30 B k| R
F) - N R .
Amount
Balance as at 31 New grant . Balance as at
Government included Asset related/
December 2020 amount for . . Other changes 30 June 2021
grant program . . in other gains . Income related
(Audited) the period X (Unaudited)
for the period
Yy iE L IE
HEr sl
Government B A
grants for 761,767.49 - 228,530.25 - 533,237.24 N
. Asset related
logistics
standardization
program
&t
761,767.49 - 228,530.25 - 533,237.24
Total
27. A 27.Share capital
. 2020 412 A 31 AWEBR (+. -) 202146 H 30 H
h HERE () Increase/decrease in the year (+, -) BRAE ORESHER)
BATH pesite AER T HoAtl /et
Balance as at Shares Balance as at
Item 31 December Issuance Bonus transferred 30 June 2021
2020 (Audited) ofnew | res from | Others|  Subtotal (Unaudited)
shares
surplus reserve
Jie s W
Total number 108,000,000.00 - - - - - 108,000,000.00
of shares
A
108,000,000.00 - - - - 108,000,000.00
Total
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28. AT 28.Capital reserve
2020 £ 12 A 31 HER N 20214E6 H30H
s ASARE N AW |, o
HORER) B ORESE)
THH Items Balance as at 31
Addition for the Reduction for the | Balance as at 30 June
December 2020
period period 2021 (Unaudited)
(Audited)
o Share
FBEAR it (B . 278,001,901.04 - - 278,001,901.04
premium
Other
HAMEANFE | capital 988,928.00 - - 988,928.00
reserve
ast Total 278,990,829.04 - - 278,990,829.04
29. BERAHE 29.Surplus reserve
2020412 H 31 H 202146 A 30 H
. AN A .
WA (KSR T s GResER
HH Item Balance as at 31 » .
Addition for | Reduction for the Balance as at 30 June
December 2020
. the period period 2021 (Unaudited)
(Audited)
Statuts
BEEGAR | 18,439,830.70 ; ; 18,439,830.70
surplus reserve
& Total 18,439,830.70 - - 18,439,830.70
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30. AR5 EEAIH 30.Undistributed profits
(% 2021 4 6 A 30 Hik it 1
BEAN2F6 A0 000 ey mappo
ANER OREERZ)

HH Items
Six months ended 2020
30 June 2021 (Unaudited) (Audited)
_FHARAR AREE Balance at the end of last period 97,118,259.82 80,869,499.06

e BRI 3 B A R

B

Add: Adjustment to the balance of
undistributed profit at the beginning
of the period

AR R AR

Balance at the beginning of the

period

97,118,259.82

80,869,499.06

Nz AR A A E]
e & BT A

Add: Net profit attributable to the
owners of the parent company for

the period

25,961,380.05

40,555,965.43

e SRBUA T BER AR

Less: Appropriation of statutory

surplus reserve

2,707,204.67

Dividends payable on ordinary

AT A R b 21,600,000.00 21,600,000.00
shares
Dividends on ordinary shares

WK MR > - -
converted to share capital

AHAHAR fREE Balance at the end of the period 101,479,639.87 97,118,259.82

31BN, EREA

31.0perating revenue and operating cost

#,E 2021 4 6 A 30 HILAEA = 2020 42 6 A 30 HikAEA
CGRESF) (RESHFEZ)
HH Items Six months ended 30 June 2021 Six months ended 30 June 2020
' ON [B%N A RRA
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
ST | Principal businesses | 1,978,105,883.41 | 1,857,967,782.94 | 1,847,725,714.32 | 1,738,486,641.89
HLAMEETS | Other businesses 14,908,237.18 - 13,033,681.47 -
&t Total 1,993,014,120.59 | 1,857,967,782.94 | 1,860,759,395.79 | 1,738,486,641.89
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32.Taxes and surcharges

#=E 6 A 30 HIL/AMEA

Six months ended 30 June

HE Items
2021 4 CRESHRR) | 2020 4 CRESHR)

2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)
ENTER Stamp duty 1,494,035.83 835,806.73
BRPER Property tax 2,028,693.54 1,509,770.46
IR R R Urban maintenance and construction tax 403,447.11 434,185.78
Gl Education surcharge 172,998.49 186,079.63
7T HE B Local education surcharge 115,332.32 124,053.06
F st R Tax on land use 164,079.78 164,079.78
HifiRR Vehicle and vessel tax 6,156.00 8,711.32
BRI Environment protection tax 2,100.00 2,100.00
&t Total 4,386,843.07 3,264,786.76

e M NG EE B 2 AT RE L

For the rate of taxes and surcharges, please refer to Note V Taxation.

I,
33. St e 33.Selling expenses
#=E 6 A 30 HIEAMEA
Six months ended 30 June
HH Items
2021 4 CRISHER) 2020 F CGRESHEZ)
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)
T e Staff remuneration 26,346,332.08 22,363,760.71
EHT Transportation costs 6,673,975.85 4,749,418.83
YA Office expenses 3,561,236.17 3,451,996.94
A7 B B GY Depreciation and amortization 13,198,893.14 8,836,445.99
FHBEEE | Promotion and advertising expenscs 224,180.34 25,081.99
EBIRGE Travelling expenses 423,099.42 84,413.30
EhiRE Business entertainment expenses 150,265.72 107,127.98
HAth Others 1,706,925.45 1,020,522.27
&t Total 52,284,908.17 40,638,768.01
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34, EMEH 34.Management expenses
s oo 0
Ik T35 Staff remuneration 11,319,863.19 9,600,435.89
N =4 Office expenses 3,454,009.11 2,212,071.23
A7 B LG Depreciation and amortization 3,227,085.27 3,512,980.81
FEEE RS Expenses on engaging intermediary agencies 814,981.29 1,024,186.43
Hrr: BEHAHEN4: | Of which: Auditor's remuneration 70,012.34 50,000.00
- FHHIRG e — Audit service expenses 70,012.34 50,000.00
Ay 7 Ak Share-based payment - R
i Travelling expenses 60,993.65 38,242.66
EBIBGT Business entertainment expenses 56,525.36 40,617.79
BHERE ST Promotion and advertising expenses 33,543.24 56,310.68
1FE#EE Loss on inventory - -
Hith Others 21,948.18 33,059.68
A Total 18,988,949.29 16,517,905.17
35. s 35 Finance costs
BE 6 A 30 Hik/ @A
HH Htems Six months ended 30 June
221 7F CREEHID) | 2020 F CRESERD

2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)

FEFH Interest expenses 20,300,388.76 14,509,595.87

A=Y ON

Less: Interest income

1,921,670.20

2,096,766.33

fn: HEaERNE Add: Interest on lease liabilities 467,673.23 435,906.14
hn: MESTiES Add: Loss on foreign exchange -240,579.13 -7,793.86
m: FPEE Add: Handling fees 3,190,283.75 2,467,089.02
&t Total 21,796,096.41 15,308,030.84
36. HAtlfss 36.0ther gains
BE 6 A 30 Hik/xEH
Six months ended 30 June
HE Items — —
2021 4F CRESHEZ) | 2020 F CRESER)
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)
. N . Government grants for logistics
Vi e TE H BUF i) L 228,530.25 228,530.25
standardization program

e FaEiRg Individual income tax fee refund 66,654.59 122,044.65
8% Total 295,184.84 350,574.90
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#E 6 A 30 Hik/AMEA
Six months ended 30 June
HH Item — SN
2021 4 CRESFZ) 2020 fF CGRESHZ)
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)
BEARHR Loss on bad debts -247,245.69 -3,107,249.35
&at Total -247,245.69 -3,107,249.35
38. HEERIEHER 38.Impairment loss of assets
BE 6 A 30 Hik/x @A
Six months ended 30 June
THH Items — —
2021 4F CRESHEZ) 2020 4 CRESHZ)
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)
FEBEER Loss on impairment of inventories -3,136,215.98 -2,954,328.08
[EESEAEEEEN Impairment loss on goodwill _ _
aF Total -3,136,215.98 -2,954,328.08
39. ErFEE A 39.Gains on disposal of assets
#E 6 H 30 HikAEA PR
iH Six months ended 30 June IS eH
. . Al harged
Items 20214 CRESHERD) | 20204 CRESTRD mount chargecio
non-recurring profit or
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited) i
loss for the period
FEIE G i B
-11,149.73 12,944.85 -11,149.73
Gains on disposal of noncurrent assets
Hepr: Rlo BRAARHER
At P -11,149.73 12,944.85 -11,149.73
Of which: Gains on disposal of non-current
assets that are not classified as held for sale
I Y i TR AR
-11,149.73 12,944.85 -11,149.73
Gains on disposal of fixed assets
P
(=F]
-11,149.73 12,944.85 -11,149.73
Total
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40. BRI 40. Non-operating revenue
#=E 6 A 30 HiE/AMEA BFAARHEAE PR R A
_ Six months ended 30 June Bl
B B Amount charged to non-
Ttems 2021 4 CREEHE) 2020 £ CREEHEZ) .
recurring profit or loss for the
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited) .
period
EUT ) 40,526.40 730,198.46 40,526.40
Government grants
FoAt
28,865.64 233,919.13 28,865.64
Others
&
69,392.04 964,117.59 69,392.04
Total
41. BRI 40.Non-operating expenses
#% 6 A 30 HikAMEA j N
S A AA AL R MR 2 A AR
ix months ended 30 June
THH Items — — Amount charged to non-recurring
2021 4 CRESHRL) | 2020 4F CRESHZ) !
profit or loss for the period
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)
$IMEY | External donation 28,920.00 63,643.95 28,920.00
Hop Others 117.34 49.17 117.34
8% Total 29,037.34 63,693.12 29,037.34
42, FRiHBLE M 42.INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(1) FrsfEA

(1) Income tax expenses

BE 6 A 30 HikAMEA

For the six months ended 30 June

HH Item — —
2021 4F CRESERL) | 2020 48 CRASHEZL)
2021(Unaudited) 2020(Unaudited)

FL R KRR R 5H L | Current income tax calculated according to

9,664,994.87 11,110,742.43

ARG AR the tax law and related regulations

- R KRBTSR Corporate income tax in Mainland China 9,664,994.87 11,110,742.43
- FRFE RS Profit tax in Hong Kong, PRC - _
JEIE TSR 2 Deferred income tax expenses -1,095,906.07 -238,292.14
GEu Total 8,569,088.80 10,872,450.29

F A A 4 [ #2020 4E 2 2021 4E 6
A 30 HI1E7<ME B ES SRR,
HOI S TSR 2021.

The Group had no Hong Kong income tax, since it had no taxable

income in Hong Kong for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and
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(2) Reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax

BE 2021 4F 6 A 30 H1LAMEA

e
HH e CREEHEIX)
For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Unaudited)
A A O F R 4R Combined total profit for the year 34,530,468.85

ik AR R RS
MEMH

Income tax expenses calculated at statutory/

applicable tax rate

9,664,994.87

RATHRANRI A, B RESR

=47
Nz

Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses and losses

% ST B SRR S P15 AR 3 PE 1Y
AR I 22 B AT A s
I8

Effect of deductible temporary differences or
deductible losses on deferred income tax assets not

recognized in the current year

-1,095,906.07

RES =4 Income tax expenses 8,569,088.80
43, T ARG R R 43.Return On Net Assets And Earnings Per Share

HRPEEsEEEREE® (A
BT A S BB ER RIS 9
SRR AR R B R R S
eEE (2010 FE8R]) ) WIEE, A%
BB R R, HEAFRIL

In accordance with the requirements of the “Preparation Rules for
Information Disclosures by Companies Offering Shares to the Public
No.9 — Calculations and Disclosures for Return on Net Assets and
Earnings Per Share (Revised in 2010)”  ( {/ABA#T#EHMI/ATH
BB TR AR USRS 9 % — 13 8 A Wik R AT A MR i O 5K

AR RIS AN T : i#E (2010 FEE5ET) ) ) issued by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission, the weighted averagereturn on net assets, basic earnings
per share and diluted earnings per share of the Group are as follows:

ANREFYS i KRS
G R
(%) Earnings per share
SRS HAFTE Profit for the reporting period %$%%W§ ﬁ¥$§%u&§
Weighted OREEHRL) CRESH )
averagereturn | Basic earnings per | Diluted earnings
on net assets (%) share per share
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
GBI REA T | Net profit attributable to the shareholders
SRR of p:rem company 5.07 0.2404 0.2404
HIBRAEEE R 448 | Net profit attributable to the shareholders
25 1B 57 B A BEA | of parent company  (excluding non- 5.02 0.2381 0.2381

AR A

recurring profit and loss)
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44. GOFBER AR

44.Supplementary information to statement of cash flow

)
m

Items

BE 6 A 30 Hib/AEA

Six months ended 30 June

2021 4 (CREE#H %)
2021 (Unaudited)

2020 FF CRESHFR)

2020(Unaudited)

1. MR R R A TR B B

1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:

A

Net profit

25,961,380.05

e PR E A

Add: Provision for impairment on

assets

3,136,215.98

fERBEREER

Impairment loss of credit assets

247,245.69

[ R B, TR AT
FE. AEPEMEAEVIE T

Depreciation of fixed assets, depletion
of petroleum and natural gas properties,

depreciation of productive biological

10,463,957.87

6,782,981.61

assets

IR T8 Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1,470,228.70 1,417,223.48

TETE 3 1 Amortization of intangible assets 3,227,554.98 3,119,574.48
Amortization of long-term expenses to

S B RS “ griem exp 1,264,236.86 851,780.97
be amortized

B E T B . fEE P | Loss on disposal of fixed assets,

HAeth BRI FERIIES: (%5 | intangible assets and other long-term -11,149.73 -12,944.85

BL -7 138))

assets (“~” for gain)

I 7 Y P B PR R (W DA
“7 )

Loss on scrapped fixed assets  (“~ for

gain)

AREEEEER (R
“7 )

loss arising from changes in fair value

(“~ for gain)

MBS (aRbl -7 515)

Finance costs (-~ for gain)

21,796,096.41

10,258,723.35

BEEL (a7 55

Investment loss  (“~ for gain)

18,000,000.00

IEEFAFRE R (4
meL - g

Decrease in deferred income tax assets

“- for increase)

-797,339.12

-255,893.64

IRSEF SR B A (G
DBL T )

Increase in deferred income tax

liabilities (“— for decrease)

-298,566.95

TR (AN BLE-" 351

Decrease in inventories (“— for

increase)

-5,329,080.99

-2,032,187.97

ROETEENOR B i (4
EL - )

Decrease in receivables from operating

w

activities (“~” for increase)

-153,733,582.43

47,420,177.52

B TEREATIE E A (O
DL 7 )

Increase in payables from operating

activities (“— for decrease)

-35,199,470.96

-324,164,970.71
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BE 6 A 30 Hib/AEA

Six months ended 30 June

HH Items
2021 4F CRESHEIZ) | 2020 4F CRESHERZ)
2021 (Unaudited) 2020(Unaudited)
HAth Others _ _

RETR B B R T
i

Net cash flow from operating activities

-109,802,273.64

-256,615,535.76

2. R KB SN E RS 5T :

2. Non-cash significant investing and financing activities:

HBHREA

Conversion of debt into capital

— £ N F A T 5 0 ]
77

Convertible corporate bonds due within

one year

R RN T ¥

Fixed assets under finance lease

3. & MBS EYFE G

3. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

BB IR ER A

Cash balance as at the end of the period

35,410,806.58

61,154,914.63

s

¢ BB ER AR

Less: cash balance as at the beginning

of the period

113,771,300.25

40,149,434.90

e BB E AR ERER

Add: balance of cash equivalents as at

the end of the period

e BB EY A ETRI R

=

Less: balance of cash equivalents as at

the beginning of the period

B B S R A

Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents

-78,360,493.67

21,005,479.73
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L. AOHER L VIL CHANGES IN SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION
1. e Py, AR S (F 6 [ A 5 1. During the reporting period, the Group had no
fet& L, changes in scope of consolidation.
AL TEHA R RERE VIIL INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
1. fEF AR 1. Interests in subsidiaries
(1) LML (1) Composition of the corporation
FEREEB (%)
FE N beEs: A N Proportion of
JNF] A2 RE - 2 .~ P
FATFGRE i sEHt — BT kA sharcholding (%) i EEVEN
Hi% [EiEE
Place of N X
Name of Lo Place of Type of Nature of Registered . . .
. principal X X X X Direct | Indirect | Method of acquisition
subsidiary A registration | legal status | business Capital
operation
BERAIEAT | BR=M | Hhl HREAE | BEEEMNT | 15,000.00 7T | 100.00 P RAL
Guangdong Pearl L . .
) Limited Pharmaceutical . Established by
Charmacy River o o 150 million 100.00 )
Foshan liability distribution investment
Company Delta
N _ N - - - - AE— {2l R
BRigRIEAR | BR=f | KKl BIREE | BEESTH | 360.00 T 100.00 A{; :
=
Zhuhai Pearl . . Businesscombination
) X Limited Pharmaceutical L
Charmacy River Zhuhai o o 3.6 million 100.00 not under common
liability distribution
Company Delta control
_ - . _ Al — 42 R
BONBIEAT | = | BOW | HRREME | MEESHH | 200000 8% | 100.00 fg Pl P
i
Guangzhou Pearl L . Business combination
) Limited Pharmaceutical -
Charmacy River Guangzhou | = . 20 million 100.00 not under common
liability distribution
Company Delta control
WIBIZEAT | BR=/A | W AIRFME | BEEERDH | 2,080.00 #IT 100.00 PE AL
Shenzhen Pearl . . X
) Limited Pharmaceutical . Established by
Charmacy River Shenzhen o o 20.8 million 100.00 .
liability distribution investment
Company Delta
e . . . — E AR it T NVETEE S
HUNAIZEAT | K= | N HIREE | BEEAERE | 1,500.00 87 | 100.00 e {; "
=)
Huizhou Pearl . X Business combination
) . Limited Pharmaceutical o
Charmacy River Huizhou o o 15 million 100.00 not under common
liability distribution
Company Delta control
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THER, FRAZEH REEES. H
RSB e D B oy 35 AL AE A AR AT
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IX. RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's major financial instruments include borrowings,
receivables, payables, financial assets held for trading, financial
liabilities held for trading, etc. Details of these financial instruments
are set out in Note VI. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the risk management policies adopted by the Group
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure such risks

are contained within a prescribed scope.

1.0bjective and policies of various risks management

The Group engages in risk management with the aim of achieving
an appropriate balance between risk and return, where the negative
effects of risks against the operating results of the Group are
minimized, and to maximize the interest of Shareholders and other
stakeholders. Based on such risk management objectives, the
fundamental strategy of risk management of the Group is to ascertain
and analyse all types of risk exposures of the Group, establish
appropriate risk tolerance thresholds, carry out risk management
procedures and perform risk monitoring on all kinds of risks in a
timely and reliable manner, thus containing risk exposures within a
prescribed scope.

(1) Market risk

1) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk arising from changes in fair value
or future cash flows of financial instrument resulted from changes
in exchange rate. The Group's foreign exchange risk relates mainly
to Hong Kong Dollars. Except for the proceeds from the H Share
offering, payment of H Share dividends and minor expenses incurred
in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, other main business
activities of the Group are settled in RMB. As at 30 June 2021, the
changes in the fair value or future cash flows from the assets and
liabilities of the balance of the account denominated in HKS due to
changes in exchange rates may have impact on the Group's operating

results as set out in the flowing table.
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2021 £ 6 3 30 HERAH CREEHERZ)

2020 4F 12 A 31 HEREH (K%

TH
IA H Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
tem

FTENEE)  (RMB equivalent) & NEE)  (RMB equivalent)
B - g

Monetary fund — HK$

368,083.50 372,691.25

AEEERER S A EI T,

2) FIZER

AR ETEEA AR R R AY 2 1 A R
AR EIE R E,

3) HAthfERS R

AIREAR R HAE RGN SIS
R, AR B e (B A S

(2) EHERR

2021 4 6 H 30 H, wRETIEALEEM
7B S ONEV N (MBS Y NE) S
AR5 — 77 R RENEAT R BS T E B A R 1]
SERNEEEARER, R

B OFERE AR CRERR ISR PE
R SR, B DA AR R SRl
TAME, MR E R T H R,
B AR AR BRI, Hoi R R
HFRE AR SR A AR L TR

P WA AR F b, A% B2 I8 P 4 T P
EEABE, ETEAER TRITHE
BV P DA CR SR ER 2 B2 A48 ] 3 101
A, Hhoh, ALENEEEEAERH
GBI T, DARELR
LI TA I WS O B 7 20 SRR
IR0, A G2 I T o o A £ T TR HE F
15 F BB CAE R R AR,

S B PR 0 S < 7 T 5 P A 55
HISRAT, #omBhE SA(E R,
AR R T BRI BORECR AR 8 &
FREEA RFRER Rk,

(3) MBI
B 2 A B 1 2 ] 1 TR R AT FLM
AR TR, A P 8 1 R R A
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The Group closely monitors the effect of exchange rate on the Group.
2) Interest rate risk
The major liabilities of the Group with interest rate risk include short-
term borrowings and long- term borrowings.
3) Other price risks
The Group holds no other debt investments and trading financial
assets, and it has no such price risk.

(2) Credit risk
As at 30 June 2021, the maximum credit risk exposure that might
incur financial losses to the Group was mainly attributable to the
losses of financial assets due to a contractual failure of counterparty
to perform its obligations. Specifically, such losses include:
The carrying amount of financial assets recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet. For financial assets at fair value, the carrying amount
reflects the risk exposure, but not the maximum risk exposure, which

will vary with the changes in future fair value.

In order to mitigate credit risk, the Group established special
departments to determine credit limits and perform credit approval,
and carries out other monitoring procedures to ensure necessary
measures are taken to collect overdue debts. Besides, the Group
reassesses the recovery of each receivable items on an individual
basis at each balance sheet date, so as to ensure sufficient provision
for doubtful debts is made for amounts that are not recoverable. As
such, the management of the Group believes that the credit risks
assumed by the Group has been significantly mitigated.

The Group's liquidity is deposited in banks with higher credit rating,
so the credit risk of the liquidity is lower.

The Group has adopted necessary policies to ensure that all the trade
customers have good credit history.

(3) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its

financial obligations at maturity. The Group manages liquidity risk by



TR R R AN B AR AT E
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ensuring that it has ample liquidity to meet its obligations as they fall
due without incurring unacceptable losses or causing damage to its
reputation. The Group regularly analyses the structure and maturity of
its liabilities to ensure that sufficient funds are available. The Group's
management monitors the use of bank loans and ensures compliance
with loan agreements. It also negotiates with financial institutions on

financing to maintain a certain credit limit and reduce liquidity risk.

Analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group by

maturity of undiscounted contractual cash flows is set out as follows:

54
: ) -5 4E A
RRIAIE B 14EDAN 1-54F BLE &aat
HE Items
L Over 5
Book value Within 1 year 1to 5 years Total
years
U e Monetary funds 435,875,043.20 | 435,875,043.20 - - | 435,875,043.20
JEE i B Bills receivables 12,064,910.00 | 12,064,910.00 - -] 12,064,910.00
TSR 2k Trade receivables | 750,918,136.32 | 750,918,136.32 - -| 750,918,136.32
Accounts
JRELA R KT receivable 7,874,680.55 7,874,680.55 - - 7,874,680.55
financing
HAth YR Other receivables 12,343,872.32 | 12,343,872.32 - -] 12,343,872.32
HAh % e Other current assets |~ 41,384,267.03 | 41,384,267.03 - -|  41,384,267.03
R — Short-term
TR ) 538,653,425.45 | 538,653,425.45 - -| 538,653,425.45
borrowings
e Bills payables 828,285,576.43 | 828,285,576.43 - -| 828,285,576.43
TEAT B Trade payables 639,357,234.40 | 639,357,234.40 - -| 639,357,234.40
Salari bl
JRE AR TN aranies payabie 4,648,773.70 | 4,648,773.70 - S| 4,648,773.70
to employees
HoAth e Other payables 23,647,809.53 |  23,647,809.53 - -|  23,647,809.53
Non-current
—FENEIHR
. liabilities due 34,538,611.62 |  34,538,611.62 - -|  34,538,611.62
B A o ) ” ’ ’
within one year
Long-ts
R one-term 102,661,492.74 | 102,661,492.74 | 102,661,492.74
borrowings
NG Contract liabilities 1,883,441.20 1,883,441.20 - - 1,883,441.20
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2. AfefElE
BRIEPERSRI A EN A R EERE T
R IEEE

A R R AR A M7 A 16 B T S50
RLE R KR A R B RIS
e PRV BT S5 AT L (B S A T B
e ;

HihSrlEELemafs ( AEEm
AT H ) A RMEER R AR K SR
T BRI AR FH T (B A R R
FRTEIZ N BRAT T35 22 5 (EAE RERR ;
E TR A REEBR TGRS A
FeR B

AREEEHERE, WHRRP R
BRAET A BRI 7 N <l LA AR
BRI R BRSSO (EE,

+ BRI R B2

(=) BT B

1. PR i A il 7
(1) PR R A& 2l 75

2. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is determined
in accordance with the following methods:

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and in active markets are determined
by reference to the prevailing bid and ask prices in the corresponding
active market;

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than derivative instruments) are determined by the general pricing
model based on the discounted future cash flow method or recognized
by observable current market transaction prices;

The fair value of the derivative instruments is determined by quoted
price in active markets.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost in
the financial statements approximate to the fair value of such assets

and liabilities.

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(I). Relationship with related parties
1. Controlling shareholder and ultimate controller

(1) Controlling shareholder and ultimate controller

EEli i e S E SR IR — BN EI R LB (%) BIARREIIRRHELLA] (%)
Name of controlling shareholder ; onali Percentage of shareholding in Percentage of voting rights in
1] t
and ultimate controller Atlonatly the Company(%) the Company(%)
I/ B4
Befilie e 54.63 54.63
Yao Chuanglong Chinese

(2) ¥R AIREE A B H b

(2) Registered capital of controlling shareholder and its changes

2020412 H 31 H 202146 A 30 H
EElindii - AT AR -
. BREE (RRER) - . BREE CRISHER)
Controlling Addition for Reduction for
Balance as at 31 December Balance as at 30 June
shareholder i the period the period .
2020 (Audited) 2021 (Unaudited)
Sl
iy 59,000,000.00 - - 59,000,000.00
Yao Chuanglong

(3) FRIBe i B AP35 i () B b 2 b
L4l
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Rl %8 R e (%)
P Shareholding amount Percentage of shareholding (%)
Controlli 2021 4E 6 A 30 HEREE | 2020 4F 12 A 31 HiR%E 2021 4E 6 A 30 HEREE | 2020 4F 12 A 31 HEREE
ontrolling
ORESH) (€€ 229) ORESH#L) (€€ 229)
shareholder
Balance as at30 June 2021 | Balance as at 31 December | Balance as at 30 June 2021 | Balance as at 31 December
(Unaudited) 2020 (Audited) (Unaudited) 2020 (Audited)
WeAlRE
§ 59,000,000.00 59,000,000.00 54.63 54.63
Yao Chuanglong
2. FAH] 2.Subsidiaries

FARERRARRE T\ 1. 1) &
SEEEEATRE MR A,

For details of subsidiaries, please see "VIII

corporation" under these notes.

. 1. (1) Composition of the

3. HAth PR 3. Other related parties
H A B 7 2 R I::I:::f other related BN FIRAR Relationship with the Company
WEETIRRPE S AT 1.57% M, Holding 1.57% equity interest in the Company, a

MEWEE (AR
=0

Youran Investment

P EE AR B TR

A

shareholding platform that is mainly consisted of

employees of the Company

TS A

FAERA] 1.67% IHE,

Holding 1.67% equity interest in the Company, a

Zhich o
MAMPE (BR I ieuang BEEHAR B THAR | shareholding platform that is mainly consisted of
&) nvestment YN
& Rl =i employees of the Company
AT 2.96% ki Holding 2.96% equity interest in the Company,
. )

AT BB B2l /\E B TAHERk Y | a sharcholding platform that is mainly consisted
@;4\%2 &~ % R( ﬁ‘BE Meizhi Investment T E, HR#FTES, | of employees of the Company and an enterprise

- FHHGWE, MBLEHK | in which Lin Zhixiong, our executive Director,

=9

BEEEEESB AR
*

secretary of the Company and Chief Financial

Officer, serves as a general partner
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Name of other related

H BRI T 4R parties BAANEIRR Relationship with the Company
PR S TR Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Baiyunshan Hong
(DUFEERE “EZILES) Kong Company Limited (hereinafter referred
FrEANE H [ 790.65 | to as “Baiyunshan Hong Kong”), a subsidiary
Guangzho B, (SARAFIBALERE | of Baiyunshan and a strategic investor of the

jit Zzhou -
Baiyugnshan 7.32%, HZABAZWLRS | Company, holds 7,906,500 H shares of the
INT BN B .

JBEM 2211 B2 %54 | Pharmaceutical THRT, BANFERKE Company, representing 7.32% of the total

E R AR A

Holdings Co., Ltd.

BEH, HRARFHRE

share capital of the Company. Due to the close

= H INF
(BAFfS 8 “E | (hereinafter referred Kmﬁ%ﬁ&"f’g nElt business association between the Company and
A o .| TEEREmMRRA, HiE | . o .
Zey” ) MH | to as “Baiyunshan L A A T Baiyunshan and its subsidiaries, the shareholding
TEEREFATR | (AZW0kS ) L1 L N A | percentage of Baiyunshan Hong Kong controlled
e 1 = PRI 5%, H
aE AR and its holding SES by it in the Company has exceeded 5%, and it has
bsidiaries and joint 2017 ERIARI R 1 # Y pany N
su :1 Not J HAMEA BB EET | appointed a Director, Li Weisheng in 2017 to the
ventures ote FEIRAI, ARG | Company. Based on the principle of substance
ZlifBetn R B IEREA | over form, the Company deemed Baiyunshan
FAIMEGEATRERAL | and its holding subsidiaries and joint ventures as
Elislho related parties of the Company
Guangzhou
EMNEZELEHER | Baiyunshan Guang I TEHZEAIE(TEHE | An enterprise in which our non-executive Director
ERHERRAT] Hua Pharmacy Co., | {3 Li Weisheng holds a directorship
Ltd.

s . . Guangzhou L . An enterprise in which Li Weisheng, the non-
ERERUARMA | Phamaceutical AR TR R AR executive Director, serves as the chairman of the
BRZAF] Baiyunshan Macau | SR ’

Company Limited board
Guangzhou

it e bt :

E%%’E%{ﬁ*ﬁ Pharma‘ceuucal‘ JEHYTEH 2R E(TEY | An enterprise in which our non-executive Director
%) HERERA | (Zubai Henggin) HWRE Li Weisheng serves as a supervisor
FR/NE] TCM Industry Co.,

Ltd.
EMNAE L E REE S:::rgl:f;is:mg JEBYTEEZS(E A HE(FE | An enterprise in which our non-executive Director
FAHRATF Co.Ltd HRIE Li Weisheng serves as a supervisor

Zheng Yuyan,
WRRE M Lin Zhixiong, Li

R, TR,
JEIE BB, SRIR.
WYL, MRS
B

Weisheng, Wan Chi
Wai Anthony, Zhou
Tao, Guan Jian,
Zhang Ling, Zheng
Xiyue, Lin Zhijie,
Liu Yingyu

AFHEH, BHERE
HAR

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of

the Company

SR, BIEH

Wu Binhua, Liu Jigui

EHERFA AT 5% DA%

Natural person shareholders directly holding more

[NI=EINE S than 5% of the Company's shares
Shenzhen Lafang P . .
- o e - . An enterprise in which Wu Binhua, a shareholder
PRI £ | Investment 418 59 LA LRSS holding more than 5% of Shares, serves as general
B RRAR Management Co., | J{EABKCIIAA {3 ¢ ‘ ¢

Ltd.

manager
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Name of other related

H BRI T 4R parties BAANEIRR Relationship with the Company
e N voue. | Anenterprise in which Wu Binhua, a shareholder
R EAR A | Shenzhen Yijing T 5% DA o A

holding more than 5% of Shares, serves as general

PR Investment Co., Ltd. | JE{TARLSTHAI B3
manager
King & Wood B AT I An enterprise in which Wan Chi Wai Anthony,
S aRESE S0 Ml:lisonsoo 1£§¥Z }\ég e D the independent non-executive Director, serves as
partner
I BB ERRTI S %5 | Grandway Law JeS7 AERTEE S ETEYS(T | An enterprise in which Zhou Tao, the independent
Ft Offices =) - IN: ke non-executive Director, serves as partner

HM International

HM International

T AFPUTE R RS

An enterprise in which Wan Chi Wai Anthony, the

independent non-executive Director, serves as the

Holdings Limited Holdings Limited fI%ﬁﬂE%ﬂf?i?E@ﬁ?% . ) .
independent non-executive Director
An enterprise in which Wan Chi Wai Anthony, the
JEIEZERAE R AE Steering Holdings LA TR R S indepenl;lpem non-executive Director, serves a}; the
Limited LA TE SRR ’

independent non-executive director

TR T 2 e e

C.K.J Professional
Dental Hospital

EHIRRERL AR T

An enterprise in which Zhang Ling, the
Supervisor, serves as the independent non-

HERA AR AHE s HARBHE o
Group Limited executive director
VLR ZE PR T AR Jlangsu Kunyee BN HIER B (T4 #4544 B4 | An enterprise in which Zhang Ling, the
= Environmental A . K i
BIRAT . . B3 Supervisor, serves as the chief financial officer
Engineering Co., Ltd.
R Shanghai New P AEHTIE SR 4% | An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent
> /\“L B Focus Education 70% Wi EEITEEAID | non-executive Director, holds 70% of shares and
e I o
echnology Co., Ltd. | 3 serves as the executive director
Shanghai Baitung
I E A | Long Field Enterprise | 537 JEHVTHE HRASERSL | An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent
BIRARF UL (F | Management Service | 99% i i F#E &5 A | non-executive Director, holds 90% of shares and
RETE) Center (Limited 13 serves as the executive partner
Partnership)
. . X o L An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent
HLE ALY | Hubei Forbon BT AT non-executive Director, serves as an independent
AIRAF Technology Co., Ltd. | JHZAFHUTH IR ’

non-executive director

aE BB E S EE R A A IR AR
(BATfiiRs “BZilifkdn” ) RHTE
i e RNCT)S S = VNS AGIL L
B RBAAN:

Note: The details of the relationship among Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to
as “Baiyunshan” ) and its holding subsidiaries and joint ventures

are as follows:
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Related party
NGB 1 Company name FRLBA relationships with
W75 RRIAR i
Baiyunshan
eIl R B HZEl1 | Aholding compan
Foshan GPC Jianze Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. = -g pany
FRAH] IR of Baiyunshan
TR EERIZERESR . ) . HZ=I1l|Zz | Aholding company
Fujian GuangYao Jieda Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
G| BAT] of Baiyunshan
BEVHEH E & HEg% 3 | Guangxi Baiyunshan Yingkang Pharmaceutical Company HEIZ A holding company
fRZNF] Limited Eali NG of Baiyunshan
BEVHIRAH — OV X X - . HEZ An associate of
. _ Guangxi Hongxiang Yi Xin Tang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. y .
FREAEAH] s ¥ Baiyunshan
5N 122 L1 P 2= 75 % i | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chen Li Ji Pharmaceutical Factory HZEZ | Aholding company
HIRAF Co., Ltd. RN of Baiyunshan
BN 2 L e S B HEZ A holding compan
F s Guangzhou Baiyunshan Guang Hua Pharmacy Co., Ltd. =i ¢ pany
AR RN of Baiyunshan
BN 2 L5 B2 4% | Hutchison Whampoa Guangzhou Baiyunshan HZ1lZ | Aholding company
PR E] Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. bialv /NG| of Baiyunshan
BN Z WA EC E# A | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Hutchison Whampoa Chinese HZEIZ A joint venture of
B R/NE] Medicine Co., Ltd. = 3 Baiyunshan
&N H 2 7% 5 55 %% 3 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pan Gao Shou Pharmaceutical Co., HEZ A holding company
BB IRAF] Ltd. PN of Baiyunshan
BEINHZE L FREEES HEZ A holding compan
=0 Guangzhou Baiyunshan Qi Xing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. = ‘g pany
[RAE Eal NG of Baiyunshan
RN ISR ki1 ) - ) M=z | Aholding company
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Tian Xin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. .
ERAE AT of Baiyunshan
BN SRR (553 HZ1l1 | Aholding compan
= ( ) Guangzhou Baiyunshan Xing Qun Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. = ¢ pany
By ERRAF EialNE of Baiyunshan
JRE Y 1 25 L S 2 .
” = _ F';* . | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Co., Ltd. HEIZ A holding company
EE] S UNGII=ESITEE . ) ) = .
L Guangzhou Baiyunshan He Ji Gong Pharmaceutical Factory | f5f&/\H] of Baiyunshan
NI
BEINEE L R HZ1l1Z | Aholding compan
= - Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Marketing Co., Ltd. = -g pany
FRAF] AT of Baiyunshan
BEMNHEZE I H—E%37F | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Zhong Yi Pharmaceutical Company | FHZE ([~ A holding company
FRAH] Limited PN of Baiyunshan
BN 2= L A LA g HEZ A holding compan
= Guangzhou Baiyunshan Ming Xing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. = ‘g pany
fRZAH] PN ] of Baiyunshan
BEIN I Z L H2%8K B | Guangzhou baiyunshan Chinese Medical Drink and Pill | FHZZ(l]Z | A holding company
FRAH] Co., Ltd. bial NG| of Baiyunshan
BEM R ZMEERRA HZ1l1 | Aholding compan
Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. = ¢ pany
Al BEAT] of Baiyunshan
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Related party
NGB 1 Company name FRLBA relationships with
W75 B %% )
Baiyunshan
BN R Z B EEE R HZEl1 | Aholding compan
Guangzhou Caizhilin Medicine Co., Ltd. = -g pany
Al El R YNE of Baiyunshan
o HEZ An associate of
FEIN R Z BaEEH R /AT | Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
AT Baiyunshan
e HZEZ | Aholding compan
FEINE R BEEE R /A F] | Guangzhou Jianmin Pharmaceutical Company Limited = ‘g pany
RN of Baiyunshan
BN T ZEEERNDE . . FZE1lZ | Aholding company
Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. .
FRAH] bialvNG| of Baiyunshan
L HZ1l12 | Aholding compan
BEINEFB84E AR /AT | Guangzhou Xin Te Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. = & company
EAlv NG of Baiyunshan
ERNNE TN T N HEZ A holding compan:
LA L Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Pharmacy Co., Ltd. =il ¢ pany
Al El/NE] of Baiyunshan
HZ1l1Zz | Aholding company
BEINBEEERL 3 PR /A ] | Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Company Limited
- P ] of Baiyunshan
N B2 EE % ) A5 FR 2\ 7] | Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. Da Zhong Drug Sales | [1ZE1l12 | A holding company
KEREE Y E N T] Branch AT of Baiyunshan
JE& PN B8 43 Y 1 FR 2 | Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import and Export Company HEZ A holding company
i Limited PN of Baiyunshan
TR IFRELIR HEZ A holding compan
Hainan GP Chenfei Pharmaceutical Company Limited = ‘g pany
VNG| Eal NG of Baiyunshan
5 7 6 B — 0> A BE 48 | Hainan Hongxiang Yi Xin TangPharmaceutical HEZ An associate of
SHAERAH] Chain Co., Ltd. i 3 Baiyunshan
PO — 0Vt B S EH A HEZ An associate of
Sichuan Yi Xin Tang Gurative Gatenation Co.,Ltd. X
FRAH] e Baiyunshan
—ILHEEEEEE NG | . HEZ An associate of
Yixintang Pharmaceutical Co.,Ltd. .,
FRAE] S Baiyunshan
TR i 5 45 IS B 22 5 R HZElZ | Aholding compan
Zhuhai Guang Yao Kangming Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. = -g pany
NG IR of Baiyunshan

sl BENTHEEM AR P EERR T R4 2
BEM B EERR T R IR Al

Chinese Medical Drink and Pill Co., Ltd.

Note:Guangzhou Chinese Medicine Corporation Chinese Medical

Drink and Pill Factory was changed to Guangzhou Baiyunshan
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(=) BREES
1. B B D

(IT) Related party transactions

1.Details of related party transactions

Pricing method

=6 H 30 Hik 6 fHA

R Six months ended 30 June
= Types of| BRI 5 & and decision
[HH6 774 #%  |Name of related party o related party | {E75 3% 5t| making procedure 2021 4 2020 4
z'.] transactions SRFEF|  forrelated party|  (GRESER) CRESHERL)
. transactions
2021 (unaudited)| 2020 (unaudited)
1, SYEEHRAESSH  1.Sales and rendering of services
5 Determined after
BEHEJEE | (State)GuangDong e o
St . . s Sales of| 2 f£ tiation b
B4 | Baiyuantang Gurative Ifg;,: ageoigs %zgzg . fer::f:f;:’;keyt 1,833,596.98|  1,378,699.22
INF ;
FRZAH] Gatenation Co.,Ltd. rates
Determined after
BEPEIEFH— | Guangxi Hongxiang Yi Xin e ) .
S St
LEEE | Tang Pharmaceutical Co, | | Salesoff SHEWIRE  negotiationby| 1y 007 00 06l 431 849,63
REEAT L T goods| F& 1 ifEE | reference to market
i ) rates
- Determined after
JEE N R Z K s e -
e Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin HtE Sales of| Z2FHiHE negotiation by
N .
?éﬁﬁﬂﬁ “" | Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. P goods| H& {7 il E | reference to market 4,500,253.17) - 22,551,072.74
rates
Determined after
EEM % B | Guangzhou Guo Ying ik Sales of| 2F A negotiation by 161.092.67 11.853.77
424 R/\F] |Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. G goods| {7 RifkEE | reference to market [ e
rates
gy | Cuangzhou Jianmin Witz salesof| 2EmnE De:ergn;::t?oiffyr
AR AT ]P:lil;rirtr:;ceutlcal Company T goods *%T&Téﬁﬁ@i reference to market 4,667,907.39 3,066,269.16
rates
Determined after
JE N BEEER . " X -
- Guangzhou Pharmaceutical | §4# Sales of| ZHHE negotiation by
A
iﬁﬁjﬁmL\ Pharmacy Co., Ltd. P goods| F& {7 RiffEE | reference to market 96,141.67 52,114.36
" rates
Determined after
BN BE 4% | Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals| ## Sales of| Z2FHGE negotiation by 17.649 954.38
A R/AE |Company Limited ET] goods| K17k E | reference to market [
rates
TN B ST Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Determined after
BARAA )\ DaZhong Drug | Sales of| ST negotiation by 48,916.72 ;
KRB Sal:)s Brlanch Hih goods| {7 RiRkEE | reference to market ’ :
Y| rates
Hainan Hongxiang .
Determined after
HFIEA— | Yi Xin Tang " nec
i . i les of| 2Tl
LRI |Pharmaceuical L e i omeoruton | 1,947,10078|  1,500,787.12
SR ' . i
FHAPRZNE]  |Chain Co., Ltd ates
P Determined after
. Sichuan Yi Xin Tang e Sales of| Z2ETWIGE negotiation by
i1
i?ﬁfi‘ﬁ Gurative Gatenation Co.,Ltd.| Bifh goods| &7 RifEE | reference to market 292,726.30 319,288.95
an rates
hEE Determined after
“*[ilﬁj':‘{ﬁ}ﬁ Yixintang Pharmaceutical Fich Sales of| S HiIGHE negotiation by 901.604.75 )
@ /A:)J( Co.,Ltd. ) goods| K&17A R HfEE | reference to market [
A

rates
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#=E 6 H30HIL6EHA

R Pricing method|  Six months ended 30 June
pese Types of| BilfZZ 5 7E and decision
B 754 F% | Name of related party J}}}*XE related party | {E /53| making procedure 2021 4¢ 2020 4
% transactions HHFEFF|  for related party (REEHZ) CRESTNZ)
transactions
2021 (unaudited)| 2020 (unaudited)
N Determined after
PRiGRE44¥ | Zhuhai Guang Yao . .
i R . HtE Sales of| 2#Tit5HE negotiation by
i%%ﬁﬁﬁ gzngﬁttl;ng Pharmaceutical R woods| HelfamaHEE | reference to market 104,520.29 41,040.34
“ C rates
N Determined after
égzﬁzﬁﬁ Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin B Sales of| 25 HE negotiation by 260.234.85
- a Medicinal Co., Ltd. T goods| &t RifEE | reference to market ) ’ )
" rates
e . . Determined after
zﬁm%%ﬁ Hainan GP Chenfel e Sales of| SEHIHE negotiation by
JEBEEEE IR | Pharmaceutical Company en S - 54,401.78
AT Limited T goods| F&17H R fEE | reference to market

rates

2. FRAELRZZ95%5 2. Procurement and acceptance of services

Determined after

BEMEZL | Guangzhou Baiyunshan = ) .
S
JRHEN |Guang Hua Pharmacy Co. | Hol| POUenent SEEATAN  neOMIn Y1 263,000.00) 6369026
() ASE1 HA
BIARATE  |Ltd. ates
Determined after
EEMEZLL |Guangzhou Baiyunshan - e
* Z2ETY
FEEHG | Hutchison Whampoa iR Procurement)  SHWHH  negotiationby) 4 1) 317 60 6 060,483.70
@ 45/AF] | Chinese Medicine Co., Ltd T i of goods| &1 RiHiEE | reference to market
T rates
BN EEL Determined after
e Guangzhou Baiyunshan Tian | £[i#f| Procurement| Z#Tiij{E negotiation by
1] 1Y
zg%%lﬁ Xin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.| Fi&h of goods| f&17 R fifE E | reference to market 8,831,380.59 4,648,963.32
“an rates
. Determined after
BEMEZ1 |Guangzhou Baiyunshan = e
o4 % iE
BZERF4RE |Chen Li Ji Pharmaceutical | Dolb| Procurement| SHE|  negotiationby) 0 o) 695 365 400 304,96
HIRAR Factory Co.. Ltd T of goods| F&17RiHEE | reference to market
/NG actory Co., Ltd. ates
BN 2L Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pan Determined after
s s =4 . FRIE| Procurement| ZHTHE negotiation by
BHERA gzo i?;u Pharmaceutical B of goods| K4 4RI | reference to market 33,689,754.11| 10,269,431.08
Gl C rates
Determined after
BEMNEHZEL |Guangzhou Baiyunshan Qi - nee
N SETI
SEFEH |Xing Pharmaceutical Co,, | ToM| Procurement Sk negotiation bY| 3 0 900.31|  1,249,864.20
BT Ltd Hidh of goods| &1 filE | reference to market
3 ) rates
e Determined after
§ = . o s
o Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji $2ME| Procurement| Z2FHiHH negotiation by
G L7
%%H‘j{ljﬁ Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. T of goods| 17 ififE & | reference to market 28,963,221.47  26,920,611.65
A rates
. Determined after
BEMEZLL |Guangzhou Baiyunshan - -
! o % 18
— #6477 |Zhong Yi Pharmaceutical | Dol| Procurement| SHMIH|  negotiationby| g 00 25y o1 44 950 478.96
BT Company Limited T of goods| F&17 R filEE | reference to market
/NG ompany e ates
BEMEZ |Guangzhou Baiyunshan ]
ERAEE | Pharmaceutical Holdings FRI§| Procurement| ZHTHE De;zng::;?oiTr
AT |Co., Ltd. Guangzhou % E, of goods e ﬁmﬁz - refemi " markey‘ 18,091,253.20|  6,748,349.68
FIZZ a3 | Baiyunshan He Ji Gong o i
NI B Pharmaceutical Factory rates
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B HE 6 A 30 Hik 6 fEHA
R Pricing method|  Six months ended 30 June
pese Types of| BilfZZ 5 7E and decision
[ 774 #%  |Name of related party J}}}*XE related party | {E /53| making procedure 2021 4 2020 4
% transactions HHFEFF|  for related party (REEHZ) CRESTNZ)
transactions
2021 (unaudited)| 2020 (unaudited)
. Determined after
M I |Guangzhou Baiyunshan = ned
i 5
BEGH P | Pharmaceutical Marketing | | Procurement| SEWI  negotiation by| o7 00y 157 61| 99 819 650,76
WA Co.. Ltd el virn of goods| F 17 HififE & | reference to market
3 C rates
Determined after
gggxm G.udngm Baiyunshan . FRI#| Procurement| SH TG negotiation by
43 | Yingkang Pharmaceutical i . e N i 191,472.00 -
BT Company Limited T of goods| &7 HilEE | reference to market
3 rates
- Determined after
JEMNSRZ A it 5 .
Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin M| Procurement| Z2FHiiHHE negotiation by
AN
f%ﬁﬂﬁ 2" | Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. T of goods| F& 17 HifE & | reference to market 159,786.60|  12,615,06.26
" rates
Determined after
BN %54 | Guangzhou Guo Ying 7% Procurement| Z2ETIGE negotiation by
#EHR/\E)  |Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. T of goods| F417ififi & | reference to market 5,905,955.88 4,845,184.04
rates
Determined after
N BE4E% | Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals| ##f#i| Procurement| £ miiHE negotiation by
3 R/AE |Company Limited [EhT of goods| F%17ififE & | reference to market 49,179,885.68|  93,459,748.28
rates
Determined after
g;ggf Foshan GPC Jianze 17| Procurement| Wi negotiation by 66.600.00 199.847.79
[ﬁ/\ﬂ Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. T h of goods| f&17 R filE | reference to market ’ : ’ °
“n rates
Determined after
BEMRFEE | Guangzhou Xin Te | Procurement| ZE i {HE negotiation by 5.208.014.20 .
244 R/\F] |Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. T of goods| 17 fifE € | reference to market FEEEEET
rates
Determined after
BEMHZL |Hutchison Whampoa - _ .
" ¥ % b
FIE54 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan IR Procurement)  SHMBIH  negotiationby) 490, 206,734.52
BT Pharmaceutical Co.. Ltd ET] of goods| F417iHifE i | reference to market
T rates
BN =L Guangzhou Baiyunshan Determined after
SR (B Xing Qun Pharmaceutical IRI) Procurement) - #1145 negotiation by -1 17,753,933.03
B EIRA Co th d [T of goods| &1 fiEE | reference to market [t
Gl T rates
. Determined after
%E”f?éf lci;u:f:::; 3 d;:dccz:waﬂ £RI) Procurement)  SHTWIHH)  negotation by - 270,796.46
% Lilflite i P PAY | pg of goods| F&17 R fifi & | reference to market 2o
" rates
- . Determined after
=7
;gi?@ Fujian GuangYao Jieda 7% | Procurement| Z2ETIGHE negotiation by ) 1.285.164.15
A Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. T of goods| 17 ififE € | reference to market T
i

rates

FE BNRZMACRIZEM AR AR 4
FRBEN R Z B EEA IR AF]
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Note: Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Corporation Bei Shang Chinese

Raw Medicine Co., Ltd. was changed to Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin
Medicinal Co., Ltd.
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(TIT) Related party balances

H

2021 RS

=6 H30HIL6 A

Six months ended 30 June

HEER Company name 20217 (RESHERD) 2020 4 GRESHR)
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)
FEWEFX Trade receivables
BEMBEEERL YR /AT] | Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Company Limited 20,019,532.00 -
JE o U B8 % )# 1 | (State)GuangDong Baiyuantang Gurative
490,887.32 539,686.86
BRZANH] Gatenation Co.,Ltd.
T 7 8 B — 0 i B2 %381 | Hainan Hongxiang Yi Xin Tang Pharmaceutical
1,084,529.03 532,663.90
SHERAF] Chain Co., Ltd.
J P B — 0 A 25 2 | Guangxi Hongxiang Yi Xin Tang Pharmaceutical
620,022.69 831,436.26
BREAEAT] Co., Ltd.
JEE N B B B S AT PR N Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 137,040.00 13,444.00
WL EEEEE | _ ,
Sichuan Yi Xin Tang Gurative Gatenation Co.,Ltd. 44,593.52 177,758.32
BRZYE]
BF 15 B 4% 15 B4 3% 45 R | Zhuhai Guang Yao Kangming Pharmaceutical Co.,
12,840.85 20,576.93
AF] Ltd.
N B EE R B R IR A k
- Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Pharmacy Co., Ltd. 46,080.00 4,030.24
H
Guangzhou Jianmin Pharmaceutical Company
N (e R B BE AT PR A ] 1,576,356.50 1,259,755.95
Limited
JBEIH R Z MR EE A TR Y o .
- Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. - 6,633,137.60
H
TN RS R A R A S
) Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Medicinal Co., Ltd. - 15,711.30
)
FE{THRFX Prepayments
JEE M 9 22 (L 25 % 2% 8 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chen Li Ji Pharmaceutical
2,195,689.93 2,700,357.37
ARAF Factory Co., Ltd.
BN 2= 1L 2 S 24 % | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Guang Hua Pharmacy
165,663.71 30.00
AR 2T Co., Ltd.
B 22 1L % B8 845 | Hutchison Whampoa Guangzhou Baiyunshan 153.000.00
53, . -
PR Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
BEMHEZ LR+ | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Hutchison Whampoa
L 3,227,217.46 153,526.28
BEARAH] Chinese Medicine Co., Ltd.
BN 22 1L 3% = # 442 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pan Gao Shou
11,976,993.34 14,101,340.42
BB RAF Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
BEINEHZ LA 2 %% A | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Qi Xing Pharmaceutical
998,183.07 118,870.05
FRZA] Co., Ltd.
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#-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

=6 H 30 Hik6 A

Six months ended 30 June

HEEE Company name 20214 CREEHE) | 20204 CRASTED
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)
JEE N 22 11y B2 4% 4E [ [ | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings
B BR A F 2 L[ 3#% | Co., Ltd. Guangzhou Baiyunshan He Ji Gong 1,071,856.00 3,154,620.52
Nl Pharmaceutical Factory
BN L A e . .
| Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Co.,Ltd.
PR INCIIEESTIEY 42478 42478
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical General
JE§ M 1 22 11 B8 4% 8 £ 45 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Marketing
17,144,366.03 3,373,252.31
FRZAR] Co., Ltd.
BEMEZ 1 —2%£% 4 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Zhong Yi Pharmaceutical
24,720,611.60 23,211,975.32
BRAT] Company Limited
JE N SR Z B A FR 2 | Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
2,432.20 -
|
BEM R & B a2 AR /AT | Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 5,205.54 R
M EEEEE RN E ) .
Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 3,085,114.94 2,222,791.91
FRZAT]
BEMN 122 LR AE (422 ) | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Xing Qun Pharmaceutical
- 5,900,102.71
AR H IR AR Co., Ltd.
JE M B8 B8 Y 1 H PR A | Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import and Export 25.720.09
- 125,720.
Gl Company Limited
FBEM E 20 K0 B EE Y | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Tian Xin Pharmaceutical
- 54,594.51
HR2F] Co., Ltd.
BEM 1 ZE LB LY 854 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Ming Xing 60.590.02
- ,590.
BRZAF] Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
HAMKPELGR Other receivables
M E ZE WL ATES B4 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Hutchison Whampoa
L 20,000.00 20,000.00
BEHIRAT] Chinese Medicine Co., Ltd.
BN 2= LA B 4 4% 2 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Jing Xiu Tang
20,000.00 20,000.00
A ERAH Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
BN FE RN A . )
Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 100,000.00 150,000.00
BRZE]
ME(TBERX Trade payables
LT R SRR B R ) )
Foshan GPC Jianze Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 35,840.71 -
FRAT]
BEVE I E L% %E 3 | Guangxi Baiyunshan Yingkang Pharmaceutical
1,844.25 .
BRAT] Company Limited
M E 2 L ATEL B R | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Hutchison Whampoa
64,340.71 -
BEHRR /N Chinese Medicine Co., Ltd.
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Six months ended 30 June

AR Company name 20214 CREEEED | 20204 CRAEHED

2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)
JEM 21 K0 B 22 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Tian Xin Pharmaceutical

469,308.46 347,981.64

AT Co., Ltd.
JE§ M 1 2 1) B8 %% 4 5 % | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings
34 IR 7 Z 1A 3 | Co., Ltd. Guangzhou Baiyunshan He Ji Gong 688,804.63 -
NE T Pharmaceutical Factory
BN MR A IR S o ,
- Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 1,351,417.11 4,642,565.10
H
JEEN B 7 B B AT R A Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 1,470,760.67 1,859,744.89
BENREF 845 R/AR] | Guangzhou Xin Te Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 764,312.74 -

M B EER A PR ]

Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Company Limited

26,321,541.82

36,115,271.11

ERREREEEAR | , ,
Fujian GuangYao Jieda Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. - 715,735.50
N
BN EZ L H 488 A | Guangzhou baiyunshan Chinese Medical Drink
- 1,846.80
PR and Pill Co., Ltd.
JERTELSE Bill payables
s LTI R R R AR ) )
Foshan GPC Jianze Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 516,870.00 225,828.00
BRAE
BEPH 2= 1% Hi %% %A | Guangxi Baiyunshan Yingkang Pharmaceutical
167,600.00 -
BRZE] Company Limited
JEE N 9 22 (L P 2= % 4% 8 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chen Li Ji Pharmaceutical
7,677,712.65 5,347,046.30
BIRAF] Factory Co., Ltd.
JEN H Z 1LY #E S5 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Guang Hua Pharmacy
677,910.00 750,000.00
AR ATE Co., Ltd.
BEM EZE L #% B8 4475 | Hutchison Whampoa Guangzhou Baiyunshan
535,490.00 233,610.00
BRZAF] Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
BEMNHEZ L FFLE S | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Hutchison Whampoa
» 6,115,410.00 4,516,549.60
BEHRRNF] Chinese Medicine Co., Ltd.
BN 22 1107 5 42 2 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pan Gao Shou
30,000,000.00 9,606,606.00
BB RAH Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
BEINEZE LA R 2 3¥A | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Qi Xing Pharmaceutical
2,681,659.70 1,091,740.50
FRZA] Co., Ltd.
FEN 2= K0 B EE % | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Tian Xin Pharmaceutical
8,233,930.10 6,275,527.06
A IR2AF] Co., Ltd.
JEE N 9 22 11 B % 42 [ % | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings
A R FZ L] 7 | Co., Ltd. Guangzhou Baiyunshan He Ji Gong 4,525,753.61 7,834,821.57
NiET Pharmaceutical Factory
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THHAHE

Company name

=6 H 30 Hik6 A

Six months ended 30 June

2021 4 CRESH)

2020 4 CRESHIZ)

2021 (Unaudited)

2020 (Unaudited)

JEM 221 B2 4485 8 4 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Marketing

FRZA] Co., Ltd.

22,592,716.21

22,905,601.75

M ZE LA — 834 | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Zhong Yi Pharmaceutical

35,036,343.47

33,356,725.00

BRAAH Company Limited
MR ZREEEH R A o .
- Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 10,215,405.80 19,269,762.52
A
JEMN R Z B %5 PR /A A] | Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 2,312,429.84 1,855,455.65
BN EE HEERNE ) )
Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 14,551,940.00 16,937,488.41
BRZA]
FEM IR B EE G TR /AE] | Guangzhou Xin Te Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 3,250,950.00 -
JEMN BEBEL PR E] | Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Company Limited 15,391,181.18 12,169,095.15
BEMEZ R (483 ) | Guangzhou Baiyunshan Xing Qun Pharmaceutical 1166451364
,664,513.
IRt R AT Co., Ltd.
JE 0 B8 %3tk Y 1 H R 7Y | Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import and Export
87,398.00
) Company Limited
_ Fujian GuangYao Jieda Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 736,500.00

]

(P9) RSB B

(IV) Compensation of key management

THH %7

#2% 6 A 30 Hik/ A

Six months ended 30 June

Name of Item

2021 4E CRESHZD
2021(Unaudited)

2020 4 CRESHEZD
2020(Unaudited)

et

Total remuneration

1,381,308.14

1,379,251.48

T EAIKH
BE 202146 A 30 H, REBERE
TET BN 5 B B I,

+=, BEAMRARSE

WEAMFHREAMEL, ARBETRE
IR P A ER HIRHIH,
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XI. COMMITMENTS

By 30 June 2021, the Group had no important commitment which

must be disclosed.

XII. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

As at the date of approval of this financial report, the Group has no

subsequent events on the balance sheet date that are subject to disclosure.
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XIII. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE PARENT

1. REWOIRER 1. Trade receivables

2021 4E 6 H 30 HEREE 2020 4£ 12 A 31 HEREE

THH % Name of item R0 (80
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
JEURBRZR Trade receivables 353,111,371.00 329,142,078.53
TR EAREE Less: Provision for bad debt 6,572,173.72 7,424,089.33
TFAE Net 346,539,197.28 321,717,989.20

(D IESHRE IR T IR R

(1) Accounts receivable by the method of provisioning for bad debt

W 2021 4F 6 A 30 HEREE CRESH#R)

Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited)

R ARAE R )
HR B
kPl Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt
S RUTTEINE
Eox il 9 B
A el (%) S} AR (o)
Book value
A ¢l p tage (%) A ; Lifetime expected
mount rcentay mount
© creentagelo o credit loss rate (%)
Provision for bad
21 ke gy
ﬁ_,EIEEHE% debt made on 2,436,214.20 0.69 2,436,214.20 100.00 -
HRAEA
individual basis
Provision for bad
4H OxtiE
ﬁ‘:ﬂ ARt R debt made on a 350,675,156.80 99.31 4,135,959.52 1.18 | 346,539,197.28
HRIMEA . .
collective basis
RIS Aging portfolio 350,675,156.80 99.31 4,135,959.52 1.18 | 346,539,197.28
R BRAH & Low risk portfolio _ _
&st Total 353,111,371.00 100.00 |  6,572,173.72 -| 346,539,197.28
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HE 2020 45 12 A 31 HERE (HE)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
HRIAI AR AR BRHRAE(
R fEIfE
Book balance Provision for bad debt
Ezh3ll] Classification BeE 7 A
BE| LEB (%) R FUEAE
FE (%)
Lifetime Book value
Percentage expected
Amount Amount X
(%) credit loss rate
(%)
% B 38 5 42 | Provision for bad debt made
AR on individual basis 2,436,214.20 0.74 | 2,436,214.20 100.00 -
1% #1 & #t 2 | Provision for bad debt made
- on a collective basis 326,705,864.33 99.26 | 4,987,875.13 1.53 | 321,717,989.20
ARERH S Aging portfolio 326,705,864.33 99.26 | 4,987,875.13 1.53| 321,717,989.20
R & Low risk portfolio - _ _
&k Total 329,142,078.53 100.00 |  7,424,089.33 -| 321,717,989.20
2. HAptgEisek 2. Other receivables
2021 4 6 A 30 H&REH 2020 £ 12 A 31 HEREE
(REG ) (%)
IHHE Items
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
IR Interests receivable - _
TEIS A Dividend receivable 18,000,000.00 -
HA WK Other receivables 81,472,425.20 34,922,983.93
B Total 99,472,425.20 34,922,983.93
2.1 HAhFEBGK 2.1 Other receivables
2021 4 6 H 30 HEREE 2020 £ 12 A 31 HEREE
OREE L) (R
TEHH Items name
Balance as at 30 June 2021 Balance as at 31 December 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited)
H At R Other receivables 81,477,425.20 34,927,983.93
5 S Less:Provision for bad
T SR 5,000.00 5,000.00
debt
pert:ii] Net amount 81,472,425.20 34,922,983.93
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(1) HAhREBGR R IE M- M (1) Classification of other receivables by nature

2021 4 6 A 30 HERER 2020 4 12 A 31 HERAE
SRS i 2

AR Nature of amounts Balance as at( i;iiil Balance as at 31 Dccc(:‘r;)%ilo
(Unaudited) (Audited)
FARER Deposit 73,446,537.38 26,539,650.05
R Current accounts 7,624,516.00 7,704,516.00
fAE Reserve 401,371.82 678,817.88
HAth Others 5,000.00 5,000.00
=i Total 81,477,425.20 34,927,983.93

(2) HAtEGR AR R

(2) Provisions for bad debt of other receivables

H—REEL SRR F=REEL
First stage | Second stage Third stage
REFHEITE | BEFEETEY
AR 1213 HEREL (R | EHEX (BRE =L
R AREM Provision for bad debt JEMERES | T ( R ;( N o
RS FIE ) (EGEREAIED) Total
12-month | Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
expected credit credit loss (not credit loss (credit-
loss credit-impaired) impaired)
2021 1H1H Balance on 1 January 2021
) (Audited) - - 5,000.00 | 5,000.00
Book balance of other
20214E1H1H ivabl .
receivables on 1 Januar:
st | - - - :
fEA (SR 2021 in the period
T (Audited)
AHEHE Accrued for the period - - - _
2 H i ] Reversed in the period - - _ R
A Written off in the period - - _ -
EN Y Cancelled in the period - _ , :
HoAth s, Other changes - - _ _
2021 4 6 A 30 A& | Bal: 30 June 2021
6 73 30 Fiff | Balance on 30 June - - 5,000.00 | 5,000.00

B ORKHEZ)

(Unaudited)
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3. RIGIBHER

(1) REBHERE

3. Long-term equity investments

(1) Classification of long-term equity investments

2021 4 6 A 30 HEREH CRESHER) 2020 4£ 12 A 31 HEREH (SF%)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) Balance as at 31 December 2020 (Audited)
TKIAER | IfE R MK E MKTAIARER | MBS MK E
IiH | Item
Provision for vamfon
Book balance inventory Book value Book balance| . or Book value
. . inventory
impairment . .
impairment
XtF | Investment
J\F] |in the 219,978,852.24 -l 219,978,852.24| 219,978,852.24 -| 219,978,852.24
A |subsidiaries
A1t | Total 219,978,852.24 -l 219,978,852.24| 219,978,852.24 -| 219,978,852.24

(2) HYAFKE

(2) Investment in the subsidiaries

IR
202146 A 30 TN
2020412 A 31 AHA AHA B (GRags AREEHER | 2021 4E 6 A
HRAE (R H%) #hn b e V) fEY¥EM | 30 HEREH
3 GRS
?%%g Investees Balance of
LA Balance as at » . . provision for
Addition | Reduction Balance as at | Provision for . .
31 December . . impairment
for the for the 30 June 2021 | impairment for
2020 . X . K as at the
i period period (Unaudited) the period
(Audited) 30 June 2021
(Unaudited)
Guangdon,
B seone
™ | Charmacy 150,000,000.00 - -| 150,000,000.00 - -
FEH]
Company
. Zhuhai
BRigAl
Charmacy 25,710,000.00 - - 25,710,000.00 - -
E ]
Company
Guangzhou
BEENAY
£ Charmacy 20,000,000.00 - - 20,000,000.00 - -
Company
Shenzhen
RS Charmac 20,800,000.00 - - 20,800,000.00 - -
%/Aa y J ) N ) ) N
Company
Huizhou
HUNAL
__ | Charmacy 3,468,852.24 - - 3,468,852.24 - -
/|
Company
&at Total 219,978,852.24 - -| 219,978,852.24 - -
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4. Operating revenue, operating cost

H

2021 RS

HE 2021 4F 6 A 30 Hik/<EA HE 2020 42 6 A 30 Hik/EA
(R (R
Six months ended 30 June 2021 Six months ended 30 June 2020
HH Items (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
[N BRA L'ON A
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
. Principal
ER-£377 . 780,033,701.19 735,760,813.67 755,284,990.60 712,147,742.13
businesses
Other
HAhSERS . 31,191,150.26 5,705,627.49 24,681,324.72 3,486,963.95
businesses
&5t Total 811,224,851.45 741,466,441.16 779,966,315.32 715,634,706.08
5. Prelc 5. Investment income
BE 6 H 30 HIEAMEA
Six months ended 30 June
HH Item
2021 CRESH) 2020 4 CRESHRZ)
2021 (Unaudited) 2020 (Unaudited)
R Long-term equity investment
Eﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’i*@ income accounted for using the cost 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
Eita {6
method
&5k Totals 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
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